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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Description of business

We are an independent aircraft leasing company avidtading market position. It is our strategytquire aviation
assets at attractive prices, lease the asset#dblsuessees, and manage the funding and othse lelated costs efficiently.
We also provide aircraft management services. Wievgethat by applying our expertise through ousibass model, we
will be able to identify and execute on a broadyeof market opportunities that we expect will gate attractive returns
for our shareholders. We are headquartered in ®ikadands and have offices in Ireland, the Un8&ates, Singapore,
China, and the United Arab Emirates, with a tofdl %3 employees, as of December 31, 2011.

We operate our business on a global basis, prayigitraft to customers in every major geographiegion. As of
December 31, 2011, we owned 251 aircraft and sesgmes, managed 42 aircraft, had 27 new aircraftrder (including
five Boeing 737 purchase rights), had enteredsates contracts for five aircraft and had an exastidtter of intent to sell
one aircraft.

We lease most of our aircraft to airlines underrapieg leases. Under an operating lease, the léssesponsible
for the maintenance and servicing of the equiprdening the lease term and the lessor receivesahefl, and assumes the
risk of the residual value of the equipment atehd of the lease. As of December 31, 2011, our dvamel managed aircraft
were leased to 104 commercial airline and cargeoatpecustomers in 50 countries.

We have the infrastructure, expertise and resouocegecute a large number of diverse aircrafts@ations in a
variety of market conditions. From January 1, 2@0®ecember 31, 2011, we executed over 300 airceafsactions. Our
teams of dedicated marketing and asset tradinggs@fnals have been successful in leasing anchtyadir aircraft
portfolio. Between January 1, 2009 and DecembeRB11, our weighted average owned aircraft utimatate was 98.3%.
Our utilization rate for aircraft is calculated bdson the average number of months the aircrafbatease each year. The
utilization rate is weighted proportionate to thet hook value of the aircraft at the end of theqzemeasured.

We were formed as a Netherlands public limitedilighcompany (‘haamloze vennootschap or N)on July 10,
2006. On November 27, 2006, we completed the Irtigolic offering of 26.1 million of our ordinaryhares on the New
York Stock Exchange. On August 6, 2007 we complétedsecondary offering of 20.0 million additiowmatlinary shares on
the New York Stock Exchange. On March 25, 2010,alshare acquisition of Genesis was completedinoctased our
outstanding ordinary shares by 34.3 million. On &lober 11, 2010, we completed a transaction with Bhabi-based
investment holding company Waha. As part of thasisaection our outstanding ordinary shares increbgét®.8 million. On
October 7, 2011, we closed on the sale of AeroTerld International Lease Finance Corp (“ILFC”). éfsDecember 31,
2011, we had 149.2 million shares issued and austg of which 9.3 million ordinary shares are hafdtreasury stock.

Our principal executive offices are located at AgpCGiouse, Stationsplein 965, 1117 CE Schiphol, The
Netherlands, and our general telephone numberli28355-9655. Our website addressnsw.aercap.comnformation
contained on our website does not constitute agfahis annual report.



Our Business strategy
We intend to pursue the following business strat&gi
Manage the Profitably of our Aircraft Portfolio byelectively:
» purchasing aircraft directly from manufacturers;
» entering into sale-leaseback transactions wittrait operators;

» using our global customer relationships to obfairorable lease terms for aircraft and maximizirgraft
utilization;

* maintaining diverse sources of global funding;
» optimizing our portfolio by selling select airét;zand

e providing management services to securitizatieicles, our joint ventures and other aircraft omsra limited
incremental cost to us.

Our ability to profitably manage aircraft throughdieir lifecycle depends in part on our abilitystaccessfully
source acquisition opportunities of new and usectat at favorable prices, as well as secure leng funding for such
acquisitions, lease aircraft at profitable ratemimize downtime between leases and associateditadtexpenses and
opportunistically sell aircraft.

Efficiently Manage our Liquidity. As of December 31, 2011, we had access to $lli@nbdf committed undrawn
credit facilities. We strive to maintain a divefsencing strategy, both in terms of capital pr@rsland structure, through
the use of bank debt, securitization structuresexqmabrt/import financings including European Exporedit Agencies
(“ECA")- guaranteed loans, in order to maximize énancial flexibility. We also leverage our lontaading relationships
with the major aircraft financers and lenders touse access to capital. In addition, we attemphaximize the cash flows
and continue to pursue the sale of aircraft to ggeeadditional cash flows.

Expand Our Aircraft Portfolio. We intend to grow our portfolio of aircraft thiglunew aircraft purchases, sale-
leasebacks, airline refleetings, acquisitions aheéroopportunistic transactions that increase oaradt portfolio. We will
rely on our experienced team of aircraft markefgssionals to identify and purchase assets weugetiee being sold at
attractive prices or that we believe will increaseélemand and value. In addition, we intend to iowe to rebalance our
aircraft portfolio through acquisitions and salesraintain the appropriate mix of aviation assetsieet our customers’
needs.

Maintain a Diversified and Satisfied Customer Bas®e currently lease our owned and managed airwrdf94
different airlines in 50 different countries. We mitor our exposure concentrations by both lesseecanntry jurisdiction
and intend to maintain a well diversified custornase. We believe we offer a quality product, batterms of asset and
customer service, to all of our customers. We hlaxeessfully worked with many airlines to find malty beneficial
solutions to operational and financial challeny#s. believe we maintain excellent relations with oustomers. We have
been able to achieve a high utilization rate onaiaraft assets as a result of our customer raadhyuality product
offering.

Selectively Pursue AcquisitionsWe intend to selectively pursue acquisitions thatbelieve will provide us with
benefits currently not available to us, such asGkaeesis and Waha Transactions. The synergiespetes of scale and
operating efficiencies we expect to derive from acquisitions will allow us to strengthen our conipes advantages and
diversify our sources of revenue.

Risk factors

Our business is subject to various risks relatinghtanging competitive, economic, political, regoitg, legal,
social, industrial, business and financial condgioThese conditions are described below. Theviatig main risk factors
could harm our business, financial condition andraping results, adversely affect our revenuespaofitability, and
possibly lead to a drop in the trading price of sliares. See our Annual Report on form 20-F fagtailbd description of the
following risk factors:



Risks Related to Our Business
* We require significant capital to fund our obligais under our forward purchase commitments.

e Our business model depends on the continual réntgas our aircraft and engines when current leasgére and the
leasing of new aircraft on order, and we may notlble to do so on favorable terms, if at all.

» Our financial condition is dependent, in part, be financial strength of our lessees; lessee dsféhdnkruptcies and
other credit problems could adversely affect onafiicial results.

» If our lessees encounter financial difficulties amel decide to restructure our leases, the restingtwould likely
result in less favorable leases which could adeeféect our financial results.

* In 2011, we incurred significant costs resultingnfrlease defaults.

» The business of leasing, financing and sellingraftdas historically experienced prolonged periotisversupply
during which lease rates and aircraft values haadited, and any future oversupply could materialig adversely
affect our financial results.

* The value and lease rates of our aircraft couldimand this would have a material adverse efiecbur financial
results.

» The recent changes in demand and supply of aircoaft depress lease rates and the value of araéiportfolio.

* We were required to write-down the value of somewfassets during 2010 and 2011 and if conditlemsen again
or further worsen, we may be required to make &t significant write-downs.

*  Our limited control over our joint ventures mayaiebr prevent us from implementing our businesstetyy which
may adversely affect our financial results.

« Changes in interest rates may adversely affectioaincial results.
» Our substantial indebtedness incurred to acquireincraft requires significant debt service paytsen

» The concentration of some aircraft models in otoraft portfolio could adversely affect our busisesd financial
results should any problems specific to these @ddr models occur.

» We are indirectly subject to many of the econommid political risks associated with emerging marketsich could
adversely affect our financial results.

* We are exposed to significant regional politicall @sonomic risks due to the concentration of ossdes in certain
geographical regions which could adversely affectfmancial results.

» If we or our lessees fail to maintain our aircrétfgir value may decline and we may not be abledse or re-lease
our aircraft at favorable rates, if at all, whicbwid adversely affect our financial results.

» Strong competition from other aircraft lessors doadlversely affect our financial results.

« Aircraft have limited economically useful lives addpreciate over time, which can adversely affectfimancial
condition.

» The advanced age of some of our aircraft may casige incur higher than anticipated maintenanceeses, which
could adversely affect our financial results.

e The advent of superior aircraft and engine techylur the introduction of a new line of aircraftubd cause our
existing aircraft portfolio to become outdated #merefore less desirable, which could adverselcafbur financial
results.



« Airbus and Boeing have launched new engine variavadable for the A320 family aircraft and Boeing7 family
aircraft respectively, which could decrease theeand lease rates of aircraft we acquire.

« If our lessees’ insurance coverage is insufficigrtould adversely affect our financial results .

» If our lessees fail to appropriately dischargeraitdiens, we may be obligated to pay to dischdhgeaircraft liens,
which could adversely affect our financial results.

* In certain countries, an engine affixed to an aiftamay become an accession to the aircraft anchayenot be able
to exercise our ownership rights over the engine.

» Failure to obtain certain required licenses, dedites and approvals could adversely affect ouitybo re-lease or
sell aircraft, our ability to perform maintenan&s\sces or to provide cash management serviceghwhould
materially and adversely affect our financial caiwti and results of operations.

« Our ability to operate in some countries is restddy foreign regulations and controls on investise

e There are a limited number of aircraft and engireufiacturers and the failure of any manufacturend¢et its
aircraft and engine delivery obligations to us doatlversely affect our financial results.

* We and our customers are subject to various enviemal regulations that may have an adverse ingpaour
financial results.

* We are the manager for several securitization Vehiand joint ventures and our financial resultsiide adversely
affected if we were removed from these positions.

» The departure of senior managers could adverstdgtajur financial results.
Risks Related to the Aviation Industry

« Interruptions in the capital markets could impair essees’ ability to finance their operationsaihcould prevent
the lessees from complying with payment obligatitmas.

* The recent global sovereign debt crisis could taathigher borrowing costs and more limited availigy of credit,
as well as impact the overall airline industry &nel financial health of our lessees.

« Airline reorganizations could impair our lessedslity to comply with their lease payment obligat®to us.

« Areturn to historically high fuel prices or coniigd rapid fluctuations in fuel prices and high foests could affect
the profitability of the aviation industry and dessees’ ability to meet their lease payment ohiiga to us, which
would adversely affect our financial results.

» If the effects of terrorist attacks and geopolitioanditions continue to adversely affect the ficiahcondition of the
airlines, our lessees might not be able to meét lese payment obligations, which would adverséfgct our
financial results.

» The effects of epidemic diseases and natural disgstuch as extreme weather conditions, floodtheeakes and
volcano eruptions may adversely affect the aidimtustry in the future, which might cause our less® not be able
to meet their lease payment obligations to us, whiould adversely affect our financial results.

Risks Related to Our Organization and Structure

» If the ownership of our ordinary shares continwebé highly concentrated, it may prevent minorhltgr&holders
from influencing significant corporate decisionslanay result in conflicts of interest.

» We are a Netherlands public limited liability comgg“naamloze vennootschap or N.V.”) and it maydifécult to
obtain or enforce judgments against us or our dkexofficers, some of our directors and some afrtamed



experts in the United States.
« Our international operations expose us to geopaliteconomic and legal risks associated with bajlbusiness.
» If our subsidiaries do not make distributions toangswill not be able to pay dividends.

» Our financial reporting for lease revenue may paificantly impacted by a proposed new accounttagdard for
lease accounting.

Risks Related to Taxation
* We may become a passive foreign investment comparBEIC, for U.S. federal income tax purposes.
* We may become subject to income or other taxesrisdictions which would adversely affect our fic#i results .
* We may incur current tax liabilities in our primawperating jurisdictions in the future.
 We may become subject to additional Irish taxegthas the extent of our operations carried onetaird.
* We may fail to qualify for benefits under one ornmdtax treaties.
2011 Financial and Operating Review
*  We acquired $0.9 billion of aviation assets inchgdl3 aircraft in 2011.

e OnJune 10, 2011, we amended our $775 million eaourse facility, established in 2006 and arrarigedBS
Securities LLC, to allow for an additional two yeawolving period with a three year term-out periextending the
transaction to June 2016;

* OnJuly 15, 2011, we entered into a purchase-lem&edrrangement with American Airlines to finangeta 35
Boeing 737-800 Next Generation aircraft schedubeblet delivered to American Airlines. On Novembey 2911,
American Airlines filed for voluntary Chapter 11rauptcy protection and as a result our remainibiggations for
the 31 deliveries under the purchase and leasatmtkact automatically terminated.We have agreeld smerican
Airlines to continue funding new aircraft on a dmgone basis under the previously agreed leasestantil such
time as we agree to re-instate the original coht@iace the bankruptcy filing we took deliveryasfother four
aircraft. As of March 23, 2012, we have taken daijvof eight of the 35 aircraft.; and

* On October 7, 2011, we closed on the sale of Aettoifia to ILFC.
Results of operations

Net income attributable to AerCap Holdings N.V. fioe full year 2011 was $172.3 million. Adjusted meome
was $299.4 million, up 41% as compared to $211lifomiin 2010. Adjusted net income excludes nonkcelsarges relating
to the mark-to-market of interest rate caps andeshased compensation, a one-time charge relatitigetbuy-out of the
Genesis portfolio servicing rights and excludegss lfrom discontinued operations. The increasdjiuséed net income was
driven primarily by the deliveries of forward ordarcraft and the purchase of the remaining 50%stwent in AerVenture.
Total basic and fully diluted earnings per sharetfie full year 2011 were $1.18. Adjusted earnipgsshare were $2.04.
The average number of outstanding shares was tdibién for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Non-Cash Charge for Share-based Compensation

The non-cash charge for share-based compensagéibof tax, was $6.5 million for the full year 20Ihe charge
relates to restricted shares and share optionstities that own a substantial percentage of oareshand which are held by
members of our senior management, independentalisegnd a consultant and share options in AerGagdifts N.V.
which are held by members of our senior manageriéet.charge did not reduce our net equity.



Non-Cash Charge for Mark-to-market of Interest Raaps

The non-cash charge for mark-to-market of interast caps, net of tax and minority interest, wak.$®nillion for
the full year 2011. We use interest rate caps tlgd@gainst the impact of interest rate increasasnable-rate debt. Our
interest rate caps do not qualify for hedge acdngninder Dutch GAAP and the periodic mark-to-madans or losses of
our caps is recorded as interest expense.

AeroTurbine Transaction

On October 7, 2011, we completed the sale of Aeroifia to ILFC for $228.0 million. As a result ofetlsale we
recognized a loss from discontinued operations4@t$ million in the year ended December 31, 201t [Bss consisted of:
(1) $22.5 million of bank fees, legal fees and cactual incentive payments to AeroTurbine managenigna $8.7 million
deferred tax asset write-off as a result of thegfer of tax losses to the buyer; and (3) a $16llfombook loss.

Buy-out of Genesis Portfolio Servicing Rights
In 2011, we completed the buy-out of the Genesitfqio servicing rights. The buy-out resultedar$21.4 million
one-time charge, net of tax, which has been reeednin selling, general and administrative expengé&sexpect the buy-

out to generate savings of approximately $6.0 amiljper annum.

The following is a reconciliation of adjusted netdme to net income attributable to AerCap HoldiNgé. for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2010 2011
(US dollars in millions)
NEE INCOIMB. ... ittt et e et e e e bt e et e e be e e beeeabeeesbeesabeesbeeanbeeesbeeanbaesnreesseeenns $195.4 $172.3
Plus: Non-cash charges relating to the mark-to-ptaskinterest rate caps, net of tax........... 13.5 51.3
Non-cash charges related to share-based caap@m net of tax ..........ccccccvvvvvvvvieennn... 2.8 6.5
Net income excluding non-cash charges related to mato-market of interest rate caps
and share-based cOMPEeNSAtIQN...........oooiiiiiiii e $211.7 $230.1
Plus: Loss on discontinued operations (AeroTurbing).........ccccceeeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee, — 47.9
Buy-out of Genesis portfolio servicing rghts..........cccvvvvvviiiieiiee e, — 21.4
AdJUSTEA NETINCOME........iiiitiiiciie ettt ettt et e e abe e st e e eaee e e tae e eaeeearee s $211.7 $299.4

Aviation Assets

We acquired $0.9 billion of aviation assets inchgdl3 aircraft in 2011. Total assets were $9.1dmilat
December 31, 2011. Total assets decreased 5% difiiigwhich was driven primarily by the sale of &Burbine and the
sale of our 50% interest in a joint venture contajrthree A330 aircraft. The number of aircrafbir portfolio was 350 as
of December 31, 2011, consisting of 251 owned aftcd2 managed aircraft, 27 aircraft on orderl(iding five Boeing 737
purchase rights), 31 Boeing 737 purchase and laakebircraft with American Airlines, five A320NEQuzhase and
leaseback aircraft and six aircraft subject tola agreement/letter of intent.

Liquidity and Access to Capital

Our cash balance at the end of 2011 was $648.#bmilicluding restricted cash of $237.3 million amngt
operating cash flow was $621.6 million for the fy#lar. The available lines of credit at December2811 were
approximately $1.0 billion. Our debt balance at &aber 31, 2011 was $6.0 billion and the averagealrinterest rate on
our debt in 2011 was 3.6%. Our debt to equity ratiid at 2.6 to 1 as of December 31, 2011. We agpseveral
financings during 2011.

The table below provides information as of Decen8ier2011 regarding our derivative financial instants that
are sensitive to changes in interest rates on auoling, including our interest rate caps and ffod he table presents the
average notional amounts and weighted averageestiteates which are contracted for the specified.ydotional amounts
are used to calculate the contractual payments &xbhanged under the contract. Weighted averaggblarates are based
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on implied forward rates in the yield curve at #pplicable date.

Fair
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter value
(US Dollars in millions)
Interest rate caps
Notional amounts..........cccceeeeviivvieeeeceeeens. $2,378 $1,893 $1,397 $1,115 $747 $467 $80 $21.0
Weighted average strike rate.............cc.eee.... 3.02% 2.50% 2.81% 2.99% 3.37% 3.34% 3.84%
Fair
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter value
(US Dollars in millions)
Interest rate swaps
Notional amounts............cccceeveeivieecvmmenanne. $720 $509 $233 $31 — — —  $(13.5)
Weighted average pay rate...........ccceeeveeeenen. 1.55% 1.31% 1.48% 2.23% — — —
Fair
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017  Thereafter _ value
(US Dollars in millions)
Interest rate floors
Notional amounts..........cccceeevviivieeeeceeens. $107 $70 $45 $27 — — —  $(6.0)

Weighted average pay rate..........cccceevvveeenn.. 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% — — —
The variable benchmark interest rates associatddthigse instruments ranged from one to six-motBOR.
Personnel

We had 153 (2010: 356) employees as of Decemhet(@1L. We expect that the number of personnelrestiain
relatively constant throughout 2011.

Financial outlook

AerCap expects to grow earnings based on the ctieth@ircraft purchases despite the continued taiogies of
the global economic environment. Nor withstandimg foregoing, set forth below are the anticipatededs for AerCap’s
2012 financial performance, which are subject tangfe, in light of the highly fluid market conditmrPurchases of aviation
assets in 2012 is expected to be approximatelydilliGn. The amount of basic lease revenue is etgibto increase
approximately 2 to 5% when compared to 2011, exatuthe impact of the AeroTurbine Transaction. Thet of debt in
2012 is expected to be approximately 3.5 to 4.0%.ekpect our effective tax rate to be 8.5 — 9.0%raturn on equity to
be approximately 10%.

Corporate Governance

As we are listed on the NYSE and are a Netherlaottic limited company (“naamloze vennootschaplor.”) we
are required to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxleyakut certain corporate governance requirements @stplbactices set out
by NYSE, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commig@&C) and Dutch Corporate Governance Code. We éigeted to
be exempt from the NYSE rules on Directors indepeice as a foreign private issuer.

At AerCap, we are committed to upholding the higtstandard in corporate governance and ethicipeactWe
believe our numerous internal policies and procesiprovide a structure for the operation of the Gamy that is consistent
with the best interests of our shareholders antbmexs as well as requirements of applicable lagivrandern standards of
corporate governance. We endeavour to ensure diaiggcand procedures comply with both U.S. andcbworporate
governance requirements, to the extent possiblalasiable. In this report, we discuss our corgogatvernance structure.

The Dutch Corporate Governance Code (also refeorddrein as the “Code”) contains principles aestipractices
for Dutch companies with listed shares. The DutohpGrate Governance Code requires companies tereidmply with the
best practice provisions of the Code or to expletiry they deviate from these best practice proviion

Corporate Governance related documents are aleadabour website, including our Articles of Assaiadn, the
Board Rules, the Audit Committee Charter, the Natiom and Compensation Committee Rules, the Co@oofiuct, the
Whistleblower Procedure and our Insider TradingeRul



In the following, we discuss our corporate goven® to the extent not already addressed elsevilnénes report.
Board of Directors
Responsibilities

Under our Articles of Association, under the Ruftasthe Board of Directors including its Committesasd under
Netherlands corporate law, the members of the BoaRirectors are collectively responsible for thanagement, general
and financial affairs and policy and strategy of company.

Our Board of Directors consists of 10 Directorsviravhich the Board shall appoint one Executive OoecThe
Executive Director is our Chief Executive Officarmo is primarily responsible for managing our dayday affairs as well
as other responsibilities that have been deledatéte Executive Director in accordance with outiddes of Association
and our internal rules Rules for the Board of Dines. The Non-Executive Directors supervise thee€CEkecutive Officer
and our general affairs and provide general adaiaur Chief Executive Officer. In performing theluties, the Non-
Executive Directors are guided by the interesthefcompany and shall, within the boundaries setlgvant Netherlands
law, take into account the relevant interests afahareholders and other stakeholders in the Coynfdre Board has
appointed from among its Non-Executive Directors @hairman and the Vice-Chairman of the Board oé8ors. The
Chairman of our Board of Directors is obligatectsure, among other things, that (i) each Direeoeives all information
about matters that he or she may deem useful @seary in connection with the proper performandei®br her duties, (ii)
each Director has sufficient time for consultatéond decision making, and (iii) the Board of Direstand the Board
Committees are properly constituted and functionirtge Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors shallcharged with the
Chairman’s tasks, should the latter become temippi@arpermanently incapacitated or prevented fraxting. The internal
affairs of the Board of Directors are governed by Rules for the Board of Directors.

The current Directors are:

Name ‘Age  Nationality Gender  Position
Directors
Pieter Korteweg 70 The Netherlands M Non-Execufitairman
Aengus Kelly 38 Ireland M Executive Director andi€ftExecutive Officer
Salem Al Noaimi 36 United Arab M Non-Executive Director
Emirates
Homaid Al Shemmari 44  United Arab M Non-Executive Director
Emirates
James (Jim) Chapman 49 USA M Non-Executive Director
Paul Dacier 54 USA M Non-Executive Director
Richard (Michael) Gradon 52 United Kingdom M Noneextive Director
Marius Jonkhart 62 The Netherlands M Non-Execuihrector
Gerald (Liam) Strong 67 United Kingdom M Non-ExeveetDirector, Vice Chairman
Robert (Bob) Warden 39 USA M Non-Executive Director

Pieter Korteweg.Mr. Korteweg has been a Director of our compangesSeptember 20, 2005. He serves as Vice
Chairman of Cerberus Global Investment AdvisorsClLand Director of Cerberus entities in the Ne#adk. In addition, he
serves as Non-Executive Member of the Board of $haisho Co. Ltd (Tokyo), Member of the SupervisBoard of
BawagPSK Bank (Vienna) and Non-Executive MembehefBoard of LucidaPlIc. (London). He currently adsoves as
Member of the Supervisory Board of Mercedes BendeXland BV and as senior advisor to Anthos B.V. Kbirteweg
previously served as Non-Executive Member of tharBaf Aozora Bank Ltd., (Tokyo), Chairman of thgp8rvisory
Board of Pensions and Insurance Supervisory AuthofiThe Netherlands, Chairman of the Supervigwogard of the Dutch
Central Bureau of Statistics and Vice-Chairmarhef$upervisory Board of De Nederlandsche Bank. F®&Y to 2001,
Mr. Korteweg was President and Chief Executive €2ffiof the Group Executive Committee of Robeco @riouRotterdam.
From 1981 to 1986, he was Treasurer-General atNBEtigerlands Ministry of Finance. In addition, Mroeweg was a
professor of economics from 1971 to 1998 at Eradumigersity Rotterdam in The Netherlands. Mr. Kerég holds a PhD
in Economics from Erasmus University Rotterdam.

Aengus Kelly. Mr. Kelly was appointed Executive Director andi€@hexecutive Officer of our company on May,
18" 2011. Previously he served as Chief Executiveo®ffof our U.S. operations since January 2008 andds our Group
Treasurer from 2005 through December 31, 2007 thf¢es his career in the aviation leasing and iiranbusiness with
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Guinness Peat Aviation in 1998 and has continuedking with its successors AerFi in Ireland and debirFinance and
AerCap in Amsterdam. Prior to joining GPA in 1988, spent three years with KPMG in Dublin. Mr. Kellya Chartered
Accountant and holds a Bachelor's degree in Comenancl a Master’s degree in Accounting and Finarara fJniversity
College Dublin.

Salem Al Noaimi. Mr. Salem Rashid Al Noaimi is the CEO of Waha iGd@?JSC. Prior to his current role, Al
Noaimi served as Deputy CEO of Waha Capital and ©Ei® wholly-owned leasing subsidiary, Waha LegsiEarlier in
his career, Mr. Al Noaimi held several roles in Hanking and financial industry, including leadépgbositions at Dubai
Islamic Bank, the UAE Central Bank, and the Abu Bifeund for Development. He chairs and sits onbiberd of a number
of companies, including Abu Dhabi Ship Building, ida Finance, Siraj Finance, the MENA Infrastructited, Bahrain’s
ADDAX Bank, and Aercap (Netherlands). Mr. Al Noaimia UAE national and holds a Bachelor's degrd@nance and
International Business from Northeastern UniversitBoston, USA.

Homaid Al Shemmari. Mr. Al Shemmari is the Executive Director of Mulzda Aerospace. He serves as Chairman
of Abu Dhabi Aircraft Technologies (ADAT), Strataof@posite Manufacturing, Horizon Flight Academy, Adee Military
Maintenance Repair and overhaul Centre (AMMROC) Bthabi Autonomous Systems Integration (ADASI) ol
Dhabi Ship Building (ADSB) PJSC. He is also a Boameimber of Piaggio Aero, Yahsat and YahAdvancedbiggoining
Mubadala, Mr. Al Shemmari was a Lieutenant Colonehe UAE Armed Forces serving military aviationaintenance,
procurement and logistics. Mr. Al Shemmari hold3aghelor’s degree in Aeronautical Engineering fiembry Riddle
Aeronautical University in Daytona Beach, USA, dnudds a black belt six sigma from General Electric.

James N. ChapmanMr. Chapman has been a Director of our compamgesDecember 7, 2005. Mr. Chapman
serves as a Non-Executive Advisory Director of SkyWg Capital, LLC, an aviation and aerospace mamagé consulting
services company based in Greenwich, Connectichithahe joined in December 2004. Prior to SkyWols, Chapman
joined Regiment Capital Advisors, an investmentisaivbased in Boston specializing in high yieldéstments, which he
joined in January 2003. Prior to Regiment, Mr. Ghap was a capital markets and strategic planningutant and worked
with private and public companies as well as hddgds (including Regiment) across a range of indestMr. Chapman
was affiliated with The Renco Group, Inc. from Dexteer 1996 to December 2001. Presently, Mr. Chapseares as a
member of the Board of Directors of Tembec Inc. @odier International, Inc., as well as a numbeprdfate companies.
Mr. Chapman received an MBA with distinction fronaffmouth College and was elected as an Edward $abklar. He
received his BA, with distinction, magna cum laufile;n Dartmouth College and was elected to Phi B&tapa, in addition
to being a Rufus Choate Scholar.

Paul T. Dacier. Mr. Dacier has been a Director of our companyssidiay 27, 2010. He is also currently Executive

Vice President and General Counsel of EMC Corpomain information infrastructure technology antlisons company).
He joined EMC as Corporate Counsel in 1990 andpsasioted to General Counsel in 1992, Vice Presioeh993, Senior
Vice President in 2000 and Executive Vice Preside2006. He was a Non-Executive Director of Genésim November
2007 until the date of the amalgamation with Aer@dprnational Bermuda Limited. Prior to joining EIMMr. Dacier was

an attorney with Apollo Computer Inc. (a computarkvstation company) from 1984 to 1990. Mr. Dacegeived a BA in
history and a JD in 1983 from Marquette Universiig. is admitted to practice law in the CommonweaftMassachusetts
and the state of Wisconsin.

Richard (Michael) Gradon. Mr. Gradon has been a Director of our compangesiMay 27, 2010. He is also
currently a Non-Executive Director of Grosvenor itied, Exclusive Hotels, Modern Water plc, and herighe Board of
Directors of The All England Lawn Tennis Ground R0®e All England Lawn Tennis Club and, Wimbledon
Championships. He was a Non-Executive Director efié&sis from November 2007 until the date of thelgamaation with
AerCap International Bermuda Limited. He practitad at Slaughter & May before joining the UK FTS&)company The
Peninsular & Oriental Steam Navigation Company (®&where he was a main Board Director from 1998l its
takeover in 2006. His roles at P&O included theugrcommercial & legal director function and he sehas Chairman of
P&Q’s property division. In addition Mr. Gradon ged as Chairman of La Manga Club, Spain, and (Exefcutive Officer
of the London Gateway projects. Mr. Gradon hold$/ndegree in law from Cambridge University.

Marius J.L. Jonkhart. Mr. Jonkhart has been a Director of our compangesiDctober 11, 2005. He is currently
also a member of the Supervisory Boards of BAWAG.R. AG, Tata Steel Nederland B.V., Orco Bank In&ional N.V.
and Staatsbosbeheer, and a Non-Executive Direttaoznra Bank. Mr. Jonkhart is an advisor to Ceuse&lobal
Investment Advisors, LLC. Mr. Jonkhart is an indegent consultant. He was previously the Chief ExgelDfficer of De
Nationale Investerings Bank N.V. and the Chief Estiee Officer of NOB Holding N.V. He also servedths Director of
monetary affairs of the Dutch Ministry of finande.addition, he has been a professor of finandgatmus University
Rotterdam. He has served as a member of a numisepefvisory boards, including the Supervisory Beaf the
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Connexxion Holding N.V., European Investment BaB&nk Nederlandse Gemeenten N.V., Postbank N.V., NPM
Capital N.V., Kema N.V., AM Holding N.V. and De Nexdandsche Bank N.V. He has also served as Chaiofndre
Investment Board of ABP Pension Fund and sevehardtinds. Mr. Jonkhart holds a Master’s degreBusiness
Administration, a Master’s degree in Business Eooioe and a PhD in Economics from Erasmus UniveRijterdam.

Gerald P. (Liam) Strong Mr. Strong has been a Director of our compangesiJuly 26, 2006. He currently is a
Partner and CEO of Cerberus European Capital AdvisbP running operations in Europe. Mr. Strong éafensive senior
experience in a number of industries, includingres, global communications, retailing, and consuproducts. He has
served senior roles in the restructuring and bagdif a number of international businesses in aiser including B.A.,
Sears and Reckitt & Colman. Mr. Strong was Chairwfaine Advisory Board on Telecom Security to tliweynment of the
United Kingdom from 2002 to 2005 and President @haf Executive Officer of Teleglobe Internatiom#dldings Limited,
2002-2006. He is also a member of the Governingn€ibof the Ashridge Business School, a directothef Faculty of
Public Heath for the UK. Chairman of Torex Ltd adairman of Virtual IT. Mr. Strong received his B¥ith honors from
Trinity College, Dublin.

Robert G. (Bob) WardenMr. Warden has been a Director of our compangesBeptember 20, 2005. He is also
currently a Managing Director of Cerberus Capitafdgement, L.P., which he joined in February 2803 Warden is also
currently a Director of various public and privatempanies, including BlueLinx Corporation, Equahizent
Financial, LLC and Four Points Media Group LLC.dPttio joining Cerberus, Mr. Warden was a Vice Riest at J.H.
Whitney from May 2000 to February 2003, a PrincigaCornerstone Equity Investors LLC from July 1988/1ay 2000
and an Associate at Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrettenfduly 1995 to July 1998. Mr. Warden receivedAisfrom Brown
University.

Board Meetings

Each Director has the right to cast one vote ang lmarepresented at a meeting of the Board of Riredy a
fellow Director. The Board of Directors can onlysgaesolutions if a quorum of four Directors, coisipg of at least the
Chairman, or -in his absence- the Vice-Chairmad,tha Executive Officer, participate in a meetiAli.resolutions must be
passed by an absolute majority of the votes chistete is a tie, the matter will be decided by @&irman, or -in his
absence- the Vice-Chairman. Resolutions of the o&Directors may, instead of in a meeting, bespdsn writing by a
majority of the Directors in office.

In 2011, the Board of Directors met on eight oamasi Throughout the year, the Chairman of the Baadl
individual Non-Executive Directors were in closentact with our Executive Officers. During its meefs and contacts with
the Executive Officers, the Board discussed supltt$oas the Company’s annual reports and annualiats for the
financial year 2010, the sale of AeroTurbine, thechase and lease back transaction with Americaings in respect of up
to 35 B737-800 aircraft, the Company’s liquiditysiimn, remaining funding requirements and fundingrces, the
Company’s hedging policies, topics for the AGM 20ttie company’s overall strategy, macro economé:rannetary
developments in the world and in Europe in paréicuhe Company’s share repurchase program, inddstrelopments,
review and discussion of reports from the varionaf8 committees, shareholder value, the budgetGa®, remuneration
and compensation, Board rotation, governance akdwanagement and control, including but not lichti@ compliance
with the Sarbanes Oxley Act.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Board also matérform a self-assessment of the Board’s perfocealt
assessed its own functioning and that of its imtligsl members and the outcome was that Board amdlitsdual members
functioned satisfactorily. The Board maintains mtnaduction program for new Non-Executive Directasith the purpose to
familiarize them with relevant AerCap business,agfoance and compliance aspects. In 2011 Mr. Al idband Mr. Al
Shemmari participated in this program. The Boarsldetermined a profile for its Non-Executive Dimstwhich has been
made available on the Company’s website.

Conflicts of interest

As per Best Practice Provision 11.3.2 of the Du@drporate Governance Code each Director shall inatelg
report any potential conflict of interest concegaDirector to the Chairman of the Board of Diogst The Director with
such conflict of interests shall in such case gtevthe Chairman with all information relevant te ttonflict. A Director may
not participate in the discussions and/or the d@timaking process on a transaction or subjeatlation to which he or she
has a conflict of interest with the Company. Resois to enter into such transactions must be ajggrdy an absolute
majority of the votes cast, excluding such intezdddirector or Directors. During the year, thereaweo conflicts of
interests reported.
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Appointment, suspension and dismissal

The Directors are appointed by the general meetirsihareholders. Our Directors may be elected bytie of a
majority of votes cast at a general meeting ofahaiders provided that our Board of Directors hagppsed the election.
Without a Board of Directors proposal, Directorsymaéso be elected by the vote of a majority ofubtes cast at a general
meeting of shareholders if the majority represantsast one-third of our issued capital. Sharedrsldnay remove or
suspend a Director by the vote of a majority ofith&es cast at a general meeting of shareholdexédad that our Board of
Directors has proposed the removal. Our sharetmlday also remove or suspend a Director, withceretheing a proposal
by the Board of Directors, by the vote of a majoat the votes cast at a general meeting of shédet®wif the majority
represents at least one-third of our issued cafiited Company does not apply provision 1V.1.1 &f Butch Corporate
Governance Code in so far it deals with the liftefgjuorum requirements related to proposed Dirstttismissals, since
this provision is written for general meetings wathigh degree of absenteeism, whereas at shaezohdeetings of the
Company absenteeism is relatively low.

The Non-Executive Directors who were appointeddf@&have been appointed for an indefinite periotinoé. At
the 2007 annual general meeting of shareholdexggeheral meeting of shareholders confirmed theirtitial term of their
appointment was four years, ending on the day nhounual general meeting of shareholders in 20i€h & conformity
with our articles of association. The Board of Btogs has introduced a rotation schedule, whicvislable on the
Company’s website, in order to ensure that the devfrihe Directors would not all end at the sameetiFor this purpose, at
the 2008 annual general meeting of shareholdexggeheral meeting of shareholders has reappointeddfteweg and Mr.
Bolger as Directors and their renewed term of ampeent will end on the day of our 2012 annual gaheeeting of
shareholders. At the 2009 annual general meetishareholders, the general meeting of sharehofderseappointed Mr.
Chapman, Mr. Jonkhart and Mr. Teitelbaum as Dinscémd their renewed term of appointment will endle day of our
2013 annual general meeting of shareholders. A281® annual general meeting of shareholders,ghergl meeting of
shareholders has reappointed Mr. Ingersoll, Mr.d&arand Mr. Strong as Directors and their renewad bf appointment
will end on the day of our 2014 annual general mgatf shareholders. Furthermore, at the 2010 drgergeral meeting of
shareholders, the general meeting of shareholdersdappointed Mr. Heinemann as Director for artimehél! term of 1 year
and his renewed term of appointment ended on theftlaur 2011 annual general meeting of sharehslderaddition, at
the 2010 annual general meeting of shareholdexggeheral meeting of shareholders has appointetninection with the
amalgamation with Genesis Lease Limited that tdakgoon 25 March 2010, Mr. Dacier, Mr. Greene and Gtadon as
Directors for a term of four years and their terhappointment will end on the day of our 2014 anmgemeral meeting of
shareholders. At the 2011 annual general meetisyarfeholders, the general meeting of sharehotderseappointed Mr. P.
Korteweg and his renewed term of appointment wil en the day of our 2015 annual general meetirghafeholders.
Furthermore, at the 2011 annual general meetisafeholders, the general meeting of shareholdesrajpointed, in
connection with the Waha transaction which closed D November 2010, Mr. Al Shemmari and Mr. Al Na@md their
term of appointment will end on the day of our 2@hHiual general meeting of shareholders. In adgitdr. R.J. Bolger,

Mr. W.B. Ingersoll, Mr. D.J. Teitelbaum and Mr. N.Breene have voluntarily resigned, before theadrtleir term of
appointment, as Non-Executive Directors effectismfithe day that our 2011 annual general meefispareholders has
been held.

Directors Remuneration

The general policy for the remuneration of our Bbaf Directors is determined by the general meetiihg
shareholders upon proposal by our Nomination anufigmsation Committee of the Board of DirectorssTeimuneration
policy is posted on our website. The remuneratioRicectors is determined by our Board of Director@accordance with
the general remuneration policy upon proposal kyNbmination and Compensation Committee. With regar
arrangements concerning remuneration in the forshafes or share options, the Board of Directorst submit a proposal
to the shareholders for approval. This proposaltpais minimum, state the number of shares orestyations that may be
granted to Directors and the criteria that applthteogranting of the shares or share options oaltieeation of such
arrangements. It is noted that the shareholders approved, on October 31, 2006, prior to thenigsbf the shares in our
Company on the New York Stock Exchange, an incerlan for that is designed to promote the Compaimgerests by
granting remuneration in the form of, amongst athehare or share options to Directors, employmesultants and
advisors with a view to align their interests witle Company’s (the “AerCap Holdings N.V. Equity émtive Plan”). As per
December 31, 2011 our Non-Executive Directors logltions to acquire a total of 33,551 shares inGbmpany, which
have been granted under this plan,as further spdditlow in this report.

The revised Dutch Corporate Governance Code, aféeat of January 1, 2009, contains specific pplesi and best
practice provisions with respect to Directors’ revetation and the disclosure thereof. Some of teereenuneration related
provisions are not applied due to pre-existing @meitial arrangements. As regards disclosure, weveethat our way of
disclosing Directors’ remuneration in this repartlear, transparent and in line with the intentiod spirit of the Dutch
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Corporate Governance Code, taking into accounCtmapany’s governance structure, a one-tier Boatl avily one
Executive Director and the remaining members béiag-Executive Directors.

For information regarding the remuneration of oinebtors, reference is made to the remuneratioicyak
referred to above (available on our website), tenBneration Report 2011 included in this Annuald&epnd Note 27
“Board Remuneration” of our Annual Report.

Some of our Non-Executive Directors have, priothiir appointment, acquired shares in our Comphargugh
conversion of their equity instruments (ADR’s) iri2sis Leasing Limited into the Company'’s ordirgrgres in
connection with the amalgamation with Genesis oiM2%ch 2010.

Some of our Non-Executive Directors and our Exeeubirector have, prior to the listing of the shsaim our
Company on the New York Stock Exchange, receivedhfone large (indirect) shareholder of the Compapstions to
acquire shares in the capital of that (indirecgreholder. In 2008 these options have been exchdangeptions to purchase
from a subsidiary of that (indirect) shareholdearsis in our Company. These options were not grantede Company.

Board Independence

In 2011 our Board of Directors has assessed itspeddence under the independence definition & 2lof the
Code and it has determined that these independeitesa are met.

Committees of the Board of Directors

In order to more efficiently fulfill its role, anich compliance with the Dutch Corporate Governanode; the Board
has created committees including: a Group Exec@mwmmittee, a Group Portfolio and Investment Cortamita Group
Treasury and Accounting Committee, an Audit Comarithnd a Nomination and Compensation Committee t Whews is
is more detailed description of the Audit Commitéenel the Nomination and Compensation Committee.

Our Audit Committeassists the Board of Directors in fulfilling itssponsibilities relating to the integrity of our
financial statements, our risk management andnateontrol arrangements, our compliance with |legel regulatory
requirements, the performance, qualifications adependence of external auditors, and the perfarenafthe internal
audit function. The Audit Committee is chaired byeason with the necessary qualifications who oamed by the Board
of Directors and is comprised of three Non-Exeaifdirectors who are “independent” as defined hyldR10A-3 of the
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as well as uftteNetherlands Corporate Governance Code. Therdumembers of
our Audit Committee are Mr. Chapman (in the Chait), Jonkhart and Mr. Gradon.

The Audit Committee meets periodically to nominatérm to be appointed as independent auditorsittit she
financial statements and to perform services réladghe audit, review the scope and results ohtt with the
independent auditors, review with management aadnitiependent auditors our annual operating reantisconsider the
adequacy of the internal accounting proceduredfaméffect of the procedures relating to the auditodependence.

As recommended by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and thehDTiorporate Governance Code, the Audit Committee
includes at least one Financial Expert, who musehia-depth experience and knowledge of finandatements,
international accounting principles and internaitcols and procedures for financial reporting. Beard has concluded that
Mr. Chapman and Mr. Jonkhart meet these requiresnent

Our Audit Committee met seven times during 201degular meetings. Throughout the year, the memtfeise
audit committee were in close contact with our Exiee Officers. Principal items discussed during theetings and through
contacts with our Executive Officers included theiew of annual and quarterly financial statemenis disclosures, review
of external auditor's reports, review of activitaaxd results in respect of our continued Sarbamxésy@ompliance, review of
the external auditor’s audit plan for 2011, reviefiwnternal audit reports, the functioning of timeirnal audit function and
the internal auditor's audit plan for 2012, revigithe Company's compliance and risk managemeitips| review of the
Company's tax planning policies, review of the tiorting of the audit committee, the audit committéarter and the audit
committee cycle.

Our Nomination and Compensation Commitseéects and recruits candidates for the positiétiseoChief
Executive Officer, Non-Executive Director and Chaén of the Board of Directors and makes recommémtain respect
of their remuneration, bonuses and other termsmpi@yment. In addition the Nomination and Compeiosa€Committee
approves the remuneration, bonuses and other t#reraployment and appoints the members of the GRartfolio and
Investment Committee, the Group Treasury and ActiogrCommittee and the Group Executive Committegt an
recommends candidates for the Audit Committee dauaspthe succession within the Board of Directoid @ommittees. It is
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chaired by the Chairman of our Board of Directard & further comprised of up to three Non-Exeauirectors appointed
by the Board of Directors. The current membersuwfMomination and Compensation Committee are Mridédmeg (in the
Chair), Mr. Warden, Mr. Jonkhart and Mr. Dacier.

The Dutch Corporate Governance Code (the “Codejires the Board to have three committees: an audit
committee, a compensation committee and a nomimatonmittee. For efficiency reasons, includingfime that we have
only one Executive Director, we have combined thcfions of the compensation committee with thdsb@nomination
committee into one Nomination and Compensation Citteen Under the Code, the Chairman of the Boaadl slot chair
the compensation committee; he may, however, thainomination committee. Given the fact that weeheombined both
committees and also having regard to the factttt@Chairman of the Board is very familiar withamational executive
compensation, we believe that the Chairman of ther@is the best person to chair our Nomination@adhpensation
Committee.

Our Nomination and Compensation Committee mettiives during 2011. During such meetings it discdss®l
approved occurrences and developments under th@&uors bonus and incentive plans, salaries anddsmof members
of the Group Executive Committee, certain changés rgspect to certain Executive Officers, sucaasgilanning, the
granting of options and other compensation to geEaecutive Officers, all within the limits of ouemuneration policy. In
line with the Dutch Corporate Governance CodeQbmpany has included the 2011 remuneration repdhis Annual
Report.

Profile of the Board

Our Board of Directors maintains a profile of therNExecutive Directors containing guidance and irequents
with respect to composition of the Board and compets and experience of its Non-Executive membéies profile is
available on the website of the Company. In 20&1Bbard has carried out an assessment on thedfasglisch it has
determined that the requirements of the profilthefNon-Executive Directors continue to be metddition, any Non-
Executive Director’s (re)appointment to the Bodndlsbe based on consistency with the profile.

Executive Officers
Pursuant to our Articles and Board Rules the ExeeWirector is the Chief Executive Officer of ti@mpany. He
is responsible for managing the operational runoiitipe AerCap group of companies and he is assistehe Group

Executive Committee.

The current Executive Officers (in addition to Mielly who is our Executive Director and Chief Exéea Officer,
as described above) are:

Name Age Nationality Gender Position
Executive Officers
Wouter (Erwin) den Dikken 44 The Netherlands M Clperating Officer & Chief Legal Officer
Keith Helming 53 USA M Chief Financial Officer
Tom Kelly 48 Ireland M Chief Executive Officer, A@ap Ireland
Edward (Ted) O'Byrne 40 France M Chief Investmefficer
Paul Rofe 52 United Kingdom M Group Treasurer
Joe Venuto 54 USA M Chief Technical Officer
Kenneth Wigmore 43 USA M Chief Marketing Officer

Wouter M. (Erwin) den Dikken. Mr. den Dikken was appointed as our Chief Opaga©fficer in 2010 in addition
to his role as Chief Legal Officer to which rolewas appointed in 2005. Mr. den Dikken also presipgerved as the Chief
Executive Officer of our Irish operations. He jaiheur legal department in 1998. Prior to joining Ms. den Dikken worked
for an international packaging company in Germanganior Legal Counsel where he focused on meagetacquisitions.
Mr. den Dikken holds a law degree from Utrecht lémsity.

Keith A. Helming. Mr. Helming assumed the position of Chief Finah€fficer of AerCap in 2006. Prior to
joining us, he was a long standing executive atGaRgital Corporation, including serving recently five years as Chief
Financial Officer at aircraft lessor GECAS. He wéth General Electric Company for over 25 yeargibeing with their
Financial Management Program in 1981. In additithe GECAS role, Mr. Helming served as the ChiafiRcial Officer
of GE Corporate Financial Services, GE Fleet Sesvand GE Consumer Finance in the United Kingdaowh,adso held a
variety of other financial positions throughout bageer at GECC. Mr. Helming holds a Bachelor aéSce degree in
Finance from Indiana University.
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Tom Kelly. Mr. Kelly was appointed Chief Executive OfficerAerCap Ireland in 2010. Mr. Kelly previously
served as Chief Financial Officer of our Irish cgt@ns and has a substantial aircraft leasing emaahéial services
background. Previously, Mr. Kelly spent ten yeaithWGECAS where his last roles were as Chief Firer@fficer and
director of GECAS Limited, GECAS'’s Irish operatidvir. Kelly also served as global controller for GEEin his role as
Senior Vice President & Controller. Prior to joigiGECAS in 1997, Mr. Kelly spent over eight yeaitwkKPMG in their
London office, acting as a Senior Manager in tfinancial services practice. Mr. Kelly is a ChaegrAccountant and holds
a Bachelor of Commerce degree from University Qal®ublin.

Edward (Ted) O’Byrne Mr. O'Byrne has been appointed Chief Investn@fiicer in January 2011. Previously he
held the position of Head of Portfolio Managemergrseeing aircraft trading, OEM relationships andfplio management
activities. He also currently serves as ChairmateBoard of AerCap’s subsidiary AerVenture. MiB@ne joined
AerCap in July 2007 as Vice President of PortftMianagement and Trading. Prior to joining AerCapwleked as Airline
Marketing Manager at Airbus North America and lasDirector, Sales Contracts for Airbus Leasingkdts in Toulouse,
France. Mr. O’Byrne received his MBA from the Unisity of Chicago Booth School of Business and hisfdm
EuroMed in France.

Paul Rofe. Mr. Rofe was appointed the Group Treasurer of2&grin January 2008, previously serving in the role
of Vice President Corporate Group Treasury, singarg the company in September of 2006. He begmndreer in the
aviation leasing and financing business with a fl@rt Benson subsidiary in 1995, and then movea8lA& Systems for
seven years, where he held the positions of Diressset Management and General Manager—Portfolindgament.

Mr. Rofe qualified as an accountant in 1986 inltiméted Kingdom.

Joe Venuto. Mr. Venuto was appointed Chief Technical OffioéAerCap in February 2012. He previously served
in the role of Senior Vice President Operationstfier Americas at AerCap for four years. From 2@02@G08, he was the
Senior Vice President Operations at AeroTurbinpaasible for all technical related issues. Prigjotning AeroTurbine,

Joe Venuto held the role of Senior Director Maiatece at several airlines including Trump Shuttkkdr Airways and
Amerijet International. He has over 30 years exgr@e in the aviation industry and he commencedviation career as an
Airplane & Powerplant technician for Eastern Aidi Joe Venuto is a graduate of the College of Aaartics and a licensed
FAA Airframe and Powerplant Technician.

Kenny Wigmore. Mr. Wigmore was appointed Chief Marketing Offider AerCap in September 2011. Previously
he held the position of Head of Marketing for thexdticas, overseeing customer relationships in NamthSouth America
since January 2008. Mr. Wigmore joined AerCap imilA3003 as Vice President Airline Marketing. Prtorjoining AerCap,
he worked as an Airline Analyst and later as SBliesctor-China over a nine-year period with thecgift manufacturer
Fairchild Dornier. Mr.Wigmore holds a Bachelor afiéhce degree from Mount Saint Mary’s UniversityMaryland, USA.

Executive Officer Compensation

In 2011, we paid an aggregate of approximately $8lon in cash (base salary and bonuses) andfiteias
compensation to our seven Executive Officers dutliegyear.

Compensation packages of our Executive Officenssisting of base salary and bonuses and, for sareugve
officers, annual grants of AER restricted sharesufzlong with other benefits), are determinedhgyNomination and
Compensation Committee upon recommendation of tliefExecutive Officer on an annual basis. The ahnu
compensation package of our Chief Executive Officensisting of base salary, bonus and annual §AER restricted
share units (along with other benefits), is deteadiby the Board of Directors, upon recommendaifche Nomination and
Compensation Committee. In addition, equity awandy be granted by the Nomination and Compensatamnmiittee
under our equity incentive plan, as further outlitelow.

The amount of the annual bonus and, if applicasieual AER restricted share units (RSU) grantefoh
Executive Officer and our Chief Executive Officdetermined by our Nomination and Compensation Cdtamand the
Board of Directors, respectively, as set out ab@dependent on the target bonus level, pre-éskedul for each individual
Executive Officer and the Chief Executive Diredbgrthe Nomination and Compensation Committee aadtbard of
Directors, respectively, in combination with outwsd performance relative to our internal budgetfe past financial year,
as approved by the Board of Directors each year tlaen personal performance of the individual ExeeuDfficer and the
Chief Executive Officer, respectively. The annuahbses are paid in arrears. Actual bonuses wileroged target bonus
levels as long as our budget for the relevant flaamot been met, subject to exceptions whicto, ifvll be disclosed in this
annual report. As a matter of policy, actual bosus#l be determined below target level in yeaia tur budget is not met,
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unless specific circumstances require otherwise.drimual RSU awards are granted in arrears; thesksRare time based
with a three-year vesting period.

Equity awards granted to our Executive Officersemalr equity incentive plan are subject to vestiriggria
related to our performance relative to our inteinalget or multiple-year planning, as approvedhgyBoard of Directors
each year, except the share options granted inrBleme2008 which are solely subject to time-basetinvg criteria in view
of the unpredictable global economic situatiorhattime of granting those particular option awards.

The restricted share units granted to our Exec@ifficers in 2010 and 2011 are all subject to vestriteria
related to our average performance over a numbgears in order to promote and encourage good ipesiace over a
prolonged period of time. All equity awards contalange of control provisions causing immediateingof all equity
awards, to the extent not yet forfeited, in casa ofiange of control as defined in the respectipgtg award agreements as
per customary practice.

Severance payments are part of the employmentmgras with three of our executive officers, inchglthe Chief
Executive Officer. The amount of the pre-agreecssnce is based upon calculations in accordandetiétso called
cantonal court termination formula, as customaapylied in the Netherlands labor practice.

Equity Incentive Plans
Equity Incentives issued by the Cerberus Funds

In connection with the 2005 Acquisition and agaiming 2006, the Cerberus Funds, our indirect sladehns,
issued restricted shares and share options tdrceftaur employees, directors and a consultanétain such individuals
and motivate them to achieve our primary long-tperformance goals. Since their issuance, restnistan all restricted
shares have lapsed and restricted shares in tie@srFunds have been exchanged for AerCap slaacksll vesting
criteria on options issued have either been fidlysfied or have lapsed. The indirect and direahenship in our ordinary
shares represented by the grants of shares amhspliscussed above are reflected in the tablerdnd8hare Ownership”.

AerCap Holdings N.V. Equity Incentive Plan

On October 31, 2006, we implemented an equity itieeplan that is designed to promote our interbgtenabling
us to attract, retain and motivate Directors, eiygds, consultants and advisors and align theirdsts with ours. This
equity incentive plan provides for the grant of goalified share options, incentive share optiohara appreciation rights,
restricted share, restricted share units and there awards (“NV Equity Grants”) to participantshe plan selected by the
Nomination and Compensation Committee of our Baddirectors. Subject to certain adjustments, tlaimum number
of equity awards available to be granted undeptag is equivalent to 4,251,848 of our shares.

The terms and conditions of awards, including wgspirovisions for share options, are determinethby
Nomination and Compensation Committee and for @necctbrs by the Board of Directors in line with treamuneration
policy approved by the general meeting of sharadrslcexcept that, unless otherwise determined dtimination and
Compensation Committee, or as set forth in an awgrdement: (a) each share option is granted foyegars from the date
of grant, or, in the case of certain key employees,employees owning more than 10% of our ongiishares, for five
years from the date of grant; provided, howeversimare option period may extend beyond ten years the date of grant;
(b) the option price per share for incentive slop®ons may not be less than 100% of the fair marikie of the ordinary
shares except that the option price per share feyya&mployee may not be less than 110% of thenfaiket value of the
ordinary shares at the time the incentive shar®wojg granted; and (c) incentive share options oy be issued to the
extent the aggregate fair market value of shar#ésnespect to the exercise of the incentive shpti®ws for the first time by
an option holder during any calendar year is $10D @r less, with any additional share options béiagted as nonqualified
share options.

In 2007 a total of 2,400,000 of non-qualified shapdions were issued under the equity incentive pbacertain
employees of the Company. All options issued vest a period of four years based on both time arébpmance based
criteria. The options are exercisable at a strifigeg of $24.63 per share option. As of Decembe£811 1,162,500 of these
options remain outstanding, all of which are vesteith the remainder having been forfeited duedbmeeting
performance based criteria or otherwise.

In June 2008, a total of 100,000 of non-qualifibdre options were issued under the equity incepiiae to a
certain employee of the Company. All options issuest over a period of four years based on botk imd performance
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based criteria. The options are exercisable ailegirice of $15.03 per share option. As of Decengi, 2011, none of
these options remain outstanding with the remaihdgg been forfeited due to not meeting perforceamased criteria or
otherwise.

In December 2008, a total of 700,000 non-qualifibdre options were issued under the equity inoepiian to
certain employees of the Company. All options igsaie time-based only and vested on December 31, bject to
certain conditions and all options are exercisabke strike price of $2.95 per share option. ABetember 31, 2011
550,000 of these options remain outstanding wighréimainder having been exercised or forfeited.

In 2009, no additional awards were granted unde®grCap Holdings N.V. equity incentive plan.

In 2010 a total of 725,000 restricted share uniésawssued under the equity incentive plan to tedamployees of
the Company. 200,000 of these restricted share wilitvest on May 31, 2013 based on both time pedormance based
criteria. 100,000 of these restricted share unilisvesst on February 28, 2015 based on both tinte@erformance based
criteria. The remaining 425,000 share units wiktven May 31, 2015 based on both time and perfocenaased criteria.
The performance criteria related to these resttisteare units take into account the Company’s gesparformance over a
number of years with a view to promote and enccaigapd performance over a prolonged period of tifaseof
December 31, 2011, all restricted share units remaistanding.

In December 2010, a total of 21,287 non-qualifiedre options were issued under the equity incemiae to the
Non-Executive Directors of the Company. All optiassued are time-based only and vest at Janu@@14 and all options
are exercisable at a strike price of $14.12 peresbption. As of December 31, 2011 all of theséamstremain outstanding.

In 2011 a total of 1,035,000 restricted share uméee issued under the equity incentive plan ttageofficers and
employees of the Company. 500,000 of these restrighare units were issued to our Chief Executiffie€ and they will
vest in May 2015 based on both time and performaased criteria. 100,000 of these restricted stiaits will vest on May
31, 2014 based on both time and performance bagedac It is noted that the performance criteghated to both grants of
restricted share units take into account the Cowyipaverage performance over a number of yearsavitiew to promote
and encourage good performance over a prolongéadpefrtime. The remaining 435,000 restricted shariés were issued
to certain employees of the Company not includirgabove-mentioned officers. These restricted simite will vest on
March 31, 2015 and they are time-based only. A3amfember 31, 2011 all of these options remain antkng.

In December 2011, a total of 23,662 non-qualifiedrs options were issued under the equity inceipliar, of
which 19,360 to the Non-Executive Directors of @@mpany and 4,302 to two non-executive directothefCompany’s
subsidiary company AerCap Ireland Limited. All apts issued are time-based only and vest at Jadua2G15 and all
options are exercisable at a strike price of $1p&9share option. As of December 31, 2011 alhe$é options remain
outstanding.

In March 2012, the Board of Directors approved & Bejuity Incentive Plan for officers and employeesl
approved an increase in the compensation packatipe @hief Executive Officer.

Risk Management and Control Framework

Our management is responsible for designing, implging and operating an adequate functioning iafeisk
management and control framework. The purposeisfitamework is to identify and manage the strategperational,
financial and compliance risks to which we are esquh to promote effectiveness and efficiency ofaperations, to
promote reliable financial reporting and to promodenpliance with laws and regulations. Our intemnsd management and
control framework is based on the COSO framewosletiped by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatimirthe
Treadway Commission (1992). The COSO framework agnmovide reasonable assurance regarding eftawtiss and
efficiency of an entity’s operations, reliability financial reporting, prevention of fraud and cdiapce with laws and
regulations.

Our internal risk management and control framewwk the following key components:
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Planning and control cycle

The planning and control cycle consists of an ahbudget and business plan prepared by management a
approved by our Board of Directors, quarterly fasts and operational reviews and monthly finarreipbrting.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

We have developed a system of policies and proesdor all areas of our operations, both finanared non-
financial, that constitutes a broad system of makcontrol. This system of internal control haséeveloped through a
risk-based approach and enhanced with a view ti@@dg and maintaining full compliance with the vég@ments of section
404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“SOX"). Our systeminternal control is embedded in our standarsiress practices and
is validated through audits performed by our indkauditors and through management testing of S@xrols, which is
performed with the assistance of external advidaraddition, senior management personnel and é@amanagers of our
main operating subsidiaries annually sign a detdé#er of representation with regard to financegorting, internal
controls and ethical principles. All of our emplegeworking in finance or accounting functions arkjsct to a separate
Finance Code of Ethics.

During 2011, we have further expanded our risk rgan@ent policies, internal control documentation and
assessment of such internal controls to providiaéurassurance regarding the reliability of ouaficial reporting. As of
December 31, 2011, our management (with the ppaticin of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief &intial Officer)
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofifsgn and operation of our disclosure controts@ocedures. Based on
this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer andi€lrinancial Officer concluded that as of DecemB#&r2011, such
disclosure controls and procedures were effectiyirdvide reasonable assurance that financialnmdtion required to be
disclosed by us is free of material misstatemehé fesults of these assessments have been disoutisedir Audit
Committee and Disclosure Committee. Based on aluatiren and recommendation by the Disclosure Cotesithe Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officeie have concluded that:

» the financial statements as of and for the yeaeémkcember 31, 2011 provide reasonable assuraaicené
financial statements are free of material misstatgm

« the internal risk management and control systertts i@spect to financial reporting have operatedatiffely in
2011 and no material weaknesses were detected; and

» there are no indications that the Company’s infecoatrols over financial reporting will not opeeagffectively in
2012.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or attl
misstatements, inaccuracies, errors, fraud andcoampliance with law and regulation. Therefore, etrese systems
determined to be effective can only provide reablnassurance with respect to financial statemesgigration and
presentation.

Controls and Procedures Statement Under the Sarta@xley Act

As of the end of the period covered by this repout, management (with the participation of our €Erecutive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer) conducted arakiation pursuant to section 302 of the U.S. SaabaDxley Act and
Rule 13a-15 promulgated under the U.S. Securiteh&nge Act of 1934, as amended of the effectivenéthe design and
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls prmatedures. Based on this evaluation, our Chietttkee Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that as of the efthe period covered by this report, such dmate controls and
procedures were effective to provide reasonablerasse that information required to be disclosedi®in reports we file or
submit under the U.S. Securities Exchange Act @418s amended is recorded, processed, summaride@orted within
the time periods specified in the rules and forfinthe Securities and Exchange Commission.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Disclosure Committee assists our Chief Exeeuificer and Chief Financial Officer in overseemg
financial and non-financial disclosure activitiesldo ensure compliance with applicable disclosegeirements arising
under U.S. and Netherlands law and regulatory requénts. The Disclosure Committee obtains inforomafor its
recommendations from the Company’s operationalfexaghcial reviews, internal letters of represematinput from the
documentation and assessment of our internal derdwer financial reporting and input from risk nagement activities
during the year along with various business repditte Disclosure Committee comprises various mesbesenior
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management.
Code of Conduct and Whistleblower Procedure

Our Code of Conduct is applicable to all our empkeg; including the Chief Executive Officer, Chigfidncial
Officer and controllers. It is designed to prombtamest and ethical conduct and timely and acculiatdosure in our
periodic financial results. Our Whistleblower Pgligrovides for the reporting, if so wished on anm@ymous basis, of
alleged violations of the Code of Conduct, allegesfularities of a financial nature by our empleggeDirectors or other
stakeholders, alleged violations of our compliapEcedures and other alleged irregularities witlaoyt fear of reprisal
against the individual that reports the violatiarircegularity.

Compliance Procedures

The Company has various procedures and prograplade to ensure compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, including anti insider trading procesy anti-bribery procedures and anti-fraud prooesiurhe Company’s
compliance officer is responsible for the desigd affective operation of the compliance procedares programs.

Corporate Social Responsibility

During 2011 the Board has discussed and reviewedarporate social responsibility (CSR) objectiagsl
activities. Although it is acknowledged that ourceaft are generally used for high impact actigtkehen it comes to the
environment, we maintain a fleet of young and &féitient aircraft and engines that are relativielss pollutive in
comparison with other, older aircraft and engires tise more fuel and produce higher noise lelresddition the Board
has discussed and reviewed our activities and adraduit relates to ethics, labor environmentzeitiship and transparency
and financial reporting.

External Auditors

Our external auditor is responsible for auditing fimancial statements. Following the recommendabip the Audit
Committee and upon proposal by the Board of Dimsctine General Meeting of Shareholders appoirds gaar the auditor
to audit the financial statements of the curremificial year. The external auditor reports to coard of Directors and the
Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. The eri auditor is present at the meetings of the AGdmmittee when our
quarterly and annual results are discussed.

At the request of the Board of Directors and thelifBCommittee, the Chief Financial Officer and theernal Audit
department review, in advance, each service tatéded by the auditor to identify any possiblediriees of the auditor’s
independence. The Audit Committee pre-approvesyexegagement of our external auditor. In accordavitteapplicable
regulations, the partner of the external audit finncharge of the audit activities during a contins period of five years will
rotate off. The current responsible partner waaped in the year 2010 for the first time.

Internal Auditors

We have an internal audit function in place to jevassurance, to the Audit Committee and the Coyipa
Executive Officers, with respect to the Companyey krocesses, to the extent not already coverebebgxternal auditors
and/or the SOX 404 auditors. The internal auditfiom independently and objectively carries outibasisignments in
accordance with the annual internal audit plarag®soved by the Audit Committee. The head of therival audit function
reports, in line with professional standards ofltisitute of Internal Auditors, to the Audit Contieie (functional reporting
line) and to our Chief Executive Officer (admingtve reporting line). The work of the internal &uwtepartment is fully
endorsed by the Audit Committee and the Compamesive officers and is considered an integrat paithe Company’s
system of control and risk management.

Ordinary Share Capital
As of December 31, 2011, our authorized capitalat®to 250,000,000 authorized ordinary sharesygae

€0.01 per share, of which 149,232,426 were issnddatstanding inclusive of 9,332,982 treasury ebacquired through
the Company’s share buy back program that was ée@curing 2011.

Pursuant to our Articles of Association, our ordinshares may only be held in registered form.cAlbur ordinary

shares are registered in a register kept by us ouo behalf by our transfer agent. Transfer ofsteged shares requires a
written deed of transfer and the acknowledgmerthbyCompany. Our ordinary shares are freely traabfe.
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Issuance of Ordinary Shares

A general meeting of shareholders can approvestwance of ordinary shares or rights to subscabertlinary
shares, but only in response to a proposal for msttance submitted by the Board of Directors $piegi the price and
further terms and conditions. In the alternatite, shareholders may designate to our Board of Wirgcauthority to
approve the issuance and price of issue of ordislaayes. The delegation may be for any period @bdjve years and must
specify the maximum number of ordinary shares ey be issued.

At the Annual General Meeting held in 2011, pursaarour Articles of Association, our shareholdéetegated to
our Board of Directors, for a period of five yeats power to issue and/or grant rights to subedidb ordinary shares up to
the maximum amount of our authorized share capitéth, as of the date of this annual report wasra8lion ordinary
shares.

Preemptive Rights

Unless limited or excluded by our shareholders @ai of Directors as described below, holders dinarry shares
have a pro rata preemptive right to subscribe figradinary shares that we issue, except for orglishares issued for non-
cash consideration or ordinary shares issued temployees.

Shareholders may limit or exclude preemptive rigBtsareholders may also delegate the power to éingxclude
preemptive rights to our Board of Directors witspect to ordinary shares, the issuance of whictbeas authorized by our
shareholders. At the Annual General Meeting hel@dbl, pursuant to our Articles of Association, shareholders
delegated to our Board of Directors, for a peribéive years, the power to limit or exclude preeivetrights.

Repurchase of Our Ordinary Shares

We may acquire our ordinary shares, subject taireprovisions of the laws of The Netherlands ahdus Articles
of Association, if the following conditions are met

* a General Meeting of Shareholders has authonzedoard of Directors to acquire the ordinary slsawhich
authorization may be valid for no more than 18 rhent

e our equity, after deduction of the price of aifion, is not less than the sum of the paid-in ealted-up
portion of the share capital and the reservesthgataws of The Netherlands or our Articles of Asation
require us to maintain; and

* we would not hold after such purchase, or holgladgee, ordinary shares with an aggregate paeval
exceeding one-tenth of our issued share capital.

At the Annual General Meeting held in 2011, pursaarour articles of association our shareholdete@ized our
Board of Directors to acquire ordinary shares, Whaathorization is valid for 18 months.

In 2011 we repurchased ordinary shares and asgeeriber 31, 2011 we hold 9,332,982 ordinary sheses
treasury stock.

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

A general meeting of shareholders is held eachtge@mongst others, discuss the annual reportaadopt the
annual accounts. Extraordinary meetings will bellael often as the Board of Directors deems desir&hle to the fact that
the Company is a Dutch company incorporated in Né#herlands with a listing at the NYSE, we must ponwith both
U.S. and Dutch rules and regulations. We alsoestavharmonize prevailing U.S. and Dutch practiteshe extent
practically possible. With regard to the registrator record date for determining the shareholdérs are entitled to vote at
a shareholders meeting, the Dutch Corporate Gomeen@ode stipulates that Dutch listed companiesaldhdetermine a
record date for the exercise of voting rights bgreholders at a general meeting. Pursuant to se2tid 9 sub 2 of Dutch
Civil Code such record date must be on th®& @8y before the meeting, which provision we shailg in relation to our
annual general meeting of shareholders to be he212. Resolutions to amend our Articles of Asatieh are valid if
adopted by the General Meeting of Shareholdersdisnple majority of the votes cast upon proposatheyBoard of
Directors.

21



Protective Measures
There are no protective devices against takeovgutace.
Remuneration Report

This remuneration report is based on the remumergiblicy of AerCap Holdings N.V. The remuneratfoslicy
was adopted by the Board of Directors and apprdweithe shareholders meeting on November 16, 200i§.rfEmuneration
report is applicable to members of our Board ofblors.

Non-Executive Directors

We currently pay each Non-Executive Director anuahifiee of €75,000 and pay each of these Direetors
additional €4,000 per meeting attended in persc@Lg®00 per meeting attended by phone. We pay bair@an of our
Board of Directors €150,000 per year. In additwe,pay the chair of the Audit Committee an annaaldf €25,000 and
each committee member will receive an annual fe&l8{000 and a fee of €4,000 per committee meetitegded in person
or €1,000 per committee meeting attended by phé&feefurther pay the chair of the Nomination and Cengation
Committee an annual fee of € 15,000 and each cdaeenitember will receive an annual fee of €10,0@Dafee of €4,000
per committee meeting attended in person or €1p@d@ommittee meeting attended by phone. Furthermerpay Non-
Executive Directors who are a member of the Grorga3ury and Accounting Committee and/or the Groupfélio and
Investment Committee an annual fee of €10,000 deé af €4,000 per committee meeting attended iagreor €1,000 per
committee meeting attended by phone. In additianNmn-Executive Directors receive an annual grdmpdions to acquire
shares in the Company, as provided for in the Cayipaemuneration policy for members of the Boaf@dwectors and in
accordance with the terms of the Company’s shatieroplan. This plan is designed to promote the Gany’s interests by
granting remuneration in the form of, amongst athehare or share options to Directors, employaesultants and
advisors with a view to align their interests witle Company’s (the “AerCap Holdings N.V. Equity émtive Plan”), as
approved by our shareholders on October 31, 2004, to the listing of the shares in our Companytloe New York Stock
Exchange. On December 31, 2010 options to acqutabof 21,287 shares in the Company have besmtgd under this
plan to our Non-Executive Directors. All optionsugd are time-based only and vest at January 4, &@d all options are
exercisable at a strike price of $14.12 per shat®w. On December 2011, options to acquire a wftdB,662 shares in the
Company have been granted under this plan to onrB@cutive Directors. All options issued are tibased only and vest
at January 1, 2015 and all options are exercisshdestrike price of $11.29 per share option. Alditostrictly not in line
with the best practice provisions of the Dutch @ogbe Governance Code, we believe these relatsrabll numbers of
options are an effective means to further complérmaenNon-Executive Directors’ remuneration, wherézey do not go
against the spirit of the corresponding provisiothie Code. All members of the Board of Directaes r@imbursed for
reasonable costs and expenses incurred in attentiatings of our Board of Directors.

Executive Director

During 2011, we paid Mr. Kelly, our only Executiiérector, an annual base salary and we accruetthéopayment
of an annual discretionary bonus. In addition wanggd Mr. Kelly with restricted share units. Mr.Ilg&s compensation
package was derived based on our understandingngbarable compensation packages for similar-sip@tpetitors in our
industry. Mr. Kelly’s compensation package has bdisolosed in the proxy materials for the annualegal meeting of
shareholders held in 2011, at which meeting MrlyKleas been appointed as Executive Director ofQbmpany. We
believe that the ratio of fixed and variable/incemicompensation is reasonable and provides aropppte level of
incentive compensation to promote the achievemieestablished targets. The targets establishedlation to the incentive
compensation relate primarily to the achievemertiibfyear net income targets. The restricted shamies granted to Mr.
Kelly are based on both time and performance besttia. The performance criteria take into acaahe Company’s
average performance over a number of years wifeva 0 promote and encourage good performanceapeolonged
period of time. In addition, Mr. Kelly participat@sthe Company’s defined benefit pension plan. Killy also receives
other employment benefits such as health insurandea company car allowance. Mr. Kelly’'s employmeoritract expires
on the day following the 2015 annual general mgetihnshareholders, scheduled to be held in May 2BiSemployment
contract includes a severance clause with a preedgseverance amount based upon calculations andacee with the so
called cantonal court termination formula, as cotoly applied in the Netherlands labor practichjch is deemed
reasonable in view of his long term employmentdnisivith the Company. The serverance will be paithe event that his
employment is not renewed at expiration or is teatéd without cause or in case of voluntarily leforegood reason (as
such terms are defined in the employment agreeméstlescribed in this report, Mr. Kelly has aleeb granted share
options on our shares owned by one of our indsbkateholders. For further details on Mr. Kelly’suweneration we refer to
note 27 to the consolidated financial statementkigreport.
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Shareholders Share Plan

Funds and accounts affiliated with Cerberus Caplhagement, L.P., which are significant indird@reholders
of AerCap (the “Cerberus Funds”), issued shareoaptto certain of our Non-Executive Directors and Bxecutive
Director. For those options issued subject to mgstriteria, all such criteria were satisfied imnection with our initial
public offering in 2006 and all options have begareisable since that date. Any shares acquireditr the exercise of
such options, however, were subject to repurchasbebCerberus Funds in certain circumstances gfirétlovember 27,
2008. No options were exercised and thereforeCtrberus Funds repurchase right was never exengigmtto November
27, 2008, when the repurchase right lapsed. Inection with exchange rights granted by the CerbEwurgls at the time of
our initial public offering, all options in the Qmarus Funds held by our Non-Executive Directors@ndExecutive Director
have now been exchanged for options exercisabladdCap shares directly which are held by the QeibEunds. All of
the options referred to above expires on June @052

AerCap Holdings N.V. Equity Incentive Plan

Reference is made to the paragraph in respecechéinCap Holdings N.V. Equity Incentive Plan untter Executive
Officers section in this report.

Amsterdam, March 23, 2012

Pieter Korteweg

Aengus Kelly

Salem Al Noaimi

Homaid Al Shemmari
James (Jim) Chapman
Paul Dacier

Richard (Michael) Gradon
Marius Jonkhart

Gerald (Liam) Strong
Robert (Bob) Warden
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AerCap Holdings N.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2010 and 2011
(After proposed profit appropriation)

As of December 31,
Note 2010 (1) 2011

(US dollars in thousands except
share and per share amounts)

Assets

Cash and cash eqUIVAIENES ...........cioiiiceeeee e s $404,450 $411,081
RESIICIEA CASN ..ot e ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e s e e e et enbeeeeeeeees 3 222,464 237,325
Trade receivables, net of provisions of $2,606 $8&30 4 49,055 16,063
Flight equipment held for operating 1eases, Net ... 5 8,173,575 7,983,544
Net investment in direct finanNCe 18aSeS.........oou i 32,028 26,532
Notes receivable, net of provisions, of nil and.nil...............cccc 6 15,497 5,200
Prepayments on flight equipment ... 7 199,417 95,619
LNV ST MIENES .ttt e e e e e e e e e a e 8 72,985 84,079
L€ ToToTo 11| PP PPPPSOPRPPRP 9 3,281 —

T =g o1 o] =TSP 9 58,637 29,677
1N Z= 0] (o Y28 SRR 10 121,085 13,953
DEIVALIVE GSSEBES ..eiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e ettt e e e ettt e e e e e st bt e e e e e bt teeeesanbbbeeeeeesanbbeeeeeeaann 11 55,211 21,050
Deferred INCOME TAXES ....i.veiiiiie it e+ttt e ettt e e e s et e e e e s s abeeee s s e nnnbeeeeeeeennees 16 174,200 169,496
(@ (g1 g T oY £ PP PPPPROPPPRRR 12 57,140 32,684
TOLAI ASSEES ..eeieiiiiie it e et et e etee e e e st e ettt e e s st e e e st e e et e e ettt e ennae e e antee e e anneeeaanreeeennes $9,639,025 $9,126,303
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ... e e s e e e e e $16,045 $4,142
Accrued expenses and other abilItIeS.......cueeerviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 13 121,389 74,458
Accrued maintenance iability ...............iiceeemeeiieiie e 465,229 492,361
Lessee deposit Iability............oooieii e e e es e e e e e e e e e 130,031 102,844
5= o) TSP 14 6,414,162 5,962,490
Provision fOr ONErOUS COMNITACLS .............uummssreeeesiiitireeeesanitieeeeesasebeeeesssnsbeeeeessasneeeeas 15 12,928 3,971
DEfEITEA FEVENUE ...ttt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnbebb et teeneeeeeeeas 60,061 47,994
Derivative abiltIesS. ........oi i 11 55,769 27,159
NegatiVe GOOAWIlL...... ..ot e e e e e e e e e e eeeeas 32 102,419 83,882
o) = | T o] 11 (=TSRRI 7,378,033 6,799,301
Ordinary share capital, €0.01 par value (250,00D@@dinary shares authorized,

149,232,426 ordinary shares issued and outstanding)..........cccooccvveeeeennniiiieeeeennnee 18 1,570 1,570
Additional paid-in CAPITAL .........coiieiit e 1,297,750 1,297,750
Treasury stock (9,332,982 ordinary SNHar€S) .eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieiiie e e e e e — (100,000)
REVAIUALION FESEIVES ... .uuuiiiiiiiieiieeiscmmmm s eee ettt eeereaeaaaaaeeeseesasaaanssnresaaeeereereeeeeees 11 5,005 (8,513)
Accumulated retained EarNINGS........uuuuiiiiieieieiiiieee e e e e e e rrrreeeeeeeeeeeaanaans 950,620 1,130,114
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY .......cooc.uuueiiii ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeas 2,254,945 2,320,921
MinNority iINterest, NEt Of tAXES .....ooiii e a e e 17 6,047 6,081
IO L= U o U] Y2 PP PRPRTUOPPPRPR 2,260,992 2,327,002
Total LiabilitiesS and EQUILY ........vveeeeeiiiiimee e e e e ettt e st e e e e s st e e e e e s svan e e e e s strneeeeeeanes $9,639,025 $9,126,303

(1) In accordance with RJ240.210, we made a reclaasdit of $103,161 from additional paid-in capitkétained earnings relating to share-based
compensation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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AerCap Holdings N.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Income Statements

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011

Year ended December 31,
Note 2010 (1) (2) (3) 2011 (1)
(US dollars in thousands, except share
and per share amounts)

Revenues
LEASE FBVEIUE .....eeeeiiieeiieiiee ettt e e seemeeaeessteeeesneeeesnateeesnteeeeanteeeaasseeeanemannseeeennes $960,174 $1,106,541
Net gain 0N sale Of @SSELS........ooi oo ceceererre e rrre e 64,871 52,307
ManagemenNt fEE FEVENUE ............ooi oo o e e e e e e e et e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e ennnns 11,815 17,739
INEEIEST FEVENUE .....uiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e eeees 4,269 3,096
OtNEI FTEVENUE. ...ttt ettt ettt s e e e s s e e e e e nnees 13 3,819 12,283
TOLAl REVENUES ... .ottt e e e e e e e ettt e s e e e e e e e e e eeerearanaeeeeeees 20 1,044,948 1,091,966
Expenses
[D]=T o] £=Tol = 11T o PR PPPPURRTR 5 335,557 387,862
Asset impairment 22 22,844 28,250
Goodwill impairment and amortization .........ccee oot 9 318 —
INEErESt ON DT ... 14 240,258 300,917
Operating |8aSe-iN COSES ........uuuuiiiiiiiieaeiie it e e e e e e e e e eeeeeees 15 12,332 12,069
LEASING EXPEINSES .eeviiiiieieeeeeee i e e i e i e seeeeeeeee e e e e e et e s s ss e bt areeeeeereeeeaaaeeesanaanannnns 61,965 67,128
Provision for doubtful accounts receivable. ..o 4 1,167 6,241
Selling, general and administrative EXPENSES. ....uuuvvverieiieeeeeammeierieeeeeerrereaaaeaens 21 120,228 159,907
QLI ] = LI T4 0= FT= 794,669 962,374
Income from continuing operations before income tags and income of

investments accounted for under the equity method.................cccccviiiiennee. 250,279 229,592
Provision for iINCOME tAXES ......ccccuuviiiiiiiiiieieeie e rrree e 16 (40,732) (19,733)
Net income of investments accounted for under ¢hétg method........................ 3,713 10,904
Net Income from continuiNg OPETAtIONS ..........ccumrrrrereeeiiitiiiee e e e e e e e e ee e e $213,260 $220,763
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (Aerding), net of tax................... — (47,923)
Bargain purchase gain (“Amalgamation gain”), netrahsaction expenses......... 274 —
Minority interest, Net Of tAXES .........oooiiiceeee e 17 (18,126) (526)
N[ L o]0 1 4 1= TR $195,408 $172,314
Total earnings per share, basic and diluted ...............cccccoeeeiiieiiicci e, 23 $1.70 $1.18
Earnings (loss) per share from discontinued opmmafibasic and diluted............. $— $(0.33)
Earnings per share from continued operations, taasiadiluted...............ccvvvvvveeeene. $1.70 $1.51
Weighted average shares outstanding, basic an@dlilu................cccccccccemnennnes 114,952,639 146,587,752

(1) Includes the results of AeroTurbine up to the cigsiate of the AeroTurbine transaction, Octob&@07,1.

(2) Includes the results of Genesis Lease Limited (‘&) for the period from March 25, 2010 (datexofjuisition) to December 31, 2010 and the
issue of shares to Genesis and Waha Capital P¥8&hé") (Note 1).

(3) Certain reclassifications have been made to pears/ Consolidated Income Statements to reflecttinent year presentation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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AerCap Holdings N.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011

Year ended December 31,
2010 (1) (2) (3) 2011

Note (US dollars in thousands)

NETINCOME ..ottt e e e st e e ettt e e s nnteeeanteeeennneeeannneeanns 20 $195,408 $172,314
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash pwided by operating activities:
Amalgamation gain (2) 1 (31,023) —
YT gL 1§V ) (= (=) SRR 17 18,126 526
[D1=T o] {=Tol = 1[0 ] o O UPUPRUTTTRT 5 335,558 387,862
ASSEL IMPAIMMENT ...t e e e e e e e aaaaeeeeaaannnnaes 22 22,844 28,250
Amortization of debt ISSUANCE COSES ......oii oot 14 26,410 33,001
Amortization of iINtangibles ... 9 22,070 17,319
Goodwill impairment and amortization..........cece oo 9 318 —
Provision for doubtful notes and accounts recewabl............ccccccccciiiiinii. 4 1231 4,843
Capitalized interest on pre-delivery payments........ccccccvvveviieeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 7 (590) (675)
Gain 0N disposal Of ASSELS.........uuuiiiiiieeerrerireie e e (37,203) (12,681)
Loss on discontinued operations (AeroTurbing)..........ccccoovvviviiciciiiiiiiieeeee e, — 45,553
Mark-to-market of non-hedged derivatiVes .....occe.ooooeeieecccciiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 11 769 23,167
DEfEITEU tAXES. ... tiiieie ettt e e st e e e s e e e anee 16 36,123 24,635
Share-based COMPENSALION .......coiiiiiiiii e 21 3,402 6,236
Changes in assets and liabilities:

Trade receivables and notes receivable, Net .o 4 370) (16,434)

INVENTOTIES ...ttt ettt e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e naneeeeeeees 10 3,183 (18,100)

Other assets and derivative aSSetS........cccccccemiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieaaaa e 11,12 (8,320)  (40,301)

Other HADIIITIES ..vvveieei ittt e e e et e e e e s et e e e e e senreeeeeeans 13 39,573 (23,135)

Deferred rEVENUE .........ooiiiiiiii et a e 14,182 (9,289)
Net cash provided by operating actiVities. ... 641,771 621,581
Purchase of flight equipment........................ 5 (1,939,874) (763,159)
Proceeds from sale/disposal of assets 5 664,059 140,760
Prepayments on flight eqUIPMENt..........ooi e e 7 (140,094) (47,077)
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired(®)...........ccceevvvrrririireiireeeeeenn. 03,691 —
Purchase of INVESIMENLS .........ccoiiiiiiieeeeee e e e 8 (7,500) (2,500)
Proceeds from the disposal of subsidiaries, netsh disposed ......................... — 119,917
Purchase of INtangIibIES............uviuiieei e e e e e e e 9 (9,006) —
Movement in restricted Cash...............ocommme e e e 3 (50,262)  (15,831)
Net cash (used in) iNvVesting actiVities.........cccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee s (1,378,986) (567,890)
ISSUANCE OF DL ..ot s et 14 2,324,609 1,672,089
Repayment of debt............u e 14 (1,485,690)1,626,556)
Debt iSSUANCE COSES PAIH ... .uuieeiiiiiiei e a e 14 (60,889) (37,306)

90,165 110,358
(42,250)  (54,751)

Maintenance payments received
Maintenance payments returned

Security depOoSItS rECEIVEM ...t ceeeeee et a e 29,535 20,135
Security depoSItS FEtUIMNEM ...........uuueieemmcmrr e e eeeeeeeee e e s e s s ereeeeeas (39,710) (37,190)
Repurchase of Shares ... e — (100,000)
Issuance of equity interests (**) 110,243 —
Capital contributions from minority iNterestS..........coovccciviiiiiiiiiieeeee e, 17 32,375 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities...........ccccccoeeveeveeeciiininnns 958,388  (53,221)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ..., 221,173 470
Effect of exchange rate Changes ........... e eeieiiiiiiiiiiieieeiaa e 660 6,161
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period........ccccccvvveveeiiiiinns 182,617 404,450
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Period .....c..cccevvveeiieiiiieciie e, $404,450 $411,081

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottheasolidated financial statements.
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AerCap Holdings N.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011

Year ended December 31,
2010 (1) (2) (3) 2011

Note (US dollars in thousands)

* Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired:
Consideration paid (34.4 million shares issuedsitaae price of $10.83) $372,327 $—
Fair value of net assets aCqUIred.......... o eeeeeeeressrnnssnrnnnnnnneeeeess - (403,350) —
Amalgamation gain (2)........cccceeouuerreresmmmmeeeeeerrnereeeeeereeeee s 31,023 —
(@ TS] g 1= T U1 =To [P 103,691 —
Purchase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired..............cccccooviceeenn. 1 $103,691 $—
**The issuance of equity interest is a net present@an of the

following items:
Consideration paid (29.8 million shares issuedsitaae price of $13.85) $413,376 $—
Purchase of minority iINTErests ............uvicccccmeeeeeeiee i e (262,092) —
Purchase of INVESIMENLS ..........viiiiiiiieee e (41,041) —
Issuance of equity interests (net cash received)um....ccvvvvveeeeeeeiieenn... 1 $110,243 $—
Supplemental cash flow information:

INEEIESE PAI ...eeeeeeeeeeee e ettt e e e e e e e e e 14 185,106 224,129

Taxes paid (refunded)..........cccciiiiiiiimmmer e e 641 135

(1) Includes the results of Genesis for the period fianch 25, 2010 (date of acquisition) to Decemider2®10 and the issue of shares to Genesis and
Wabha.

(2) The Amalgamation gain, net of transaction expen§8274, as presented in the consolidated incoatersent, consists of the Amalgamation gain of
$31,023, as presented in the consolidated statesheash flow and transaction expenses of $30,Kd8e(1).

(3) Certain reclassifications have been made to pearg/ Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows teaethe current year presentation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31, 2010

Balance at January 1, 2010...............cscceceeees
Share-based compensation.............

Issuance of equity capital.................
Purchase of minority interests (1).....
Sale to joint venture partner.............

Comprehensive income:

AerCap Holdings N.V. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

For the Years Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011

Net change in fair value of derivatives, net of

B715taX (2) cevveeeeiiiiiee e
Net income for the period..............
Comprehensive income.................
Balance at December 31, 2010Q........

Year ended December 31, 2011

Balance at January 1, 2011 ...........oooiiiieeee.
Share-based compensation..............

Purchase of treasury stock ..............

Comprehensive income:

Net change in fair value of derivatives, net of

$1,913taX (2) coovvereeeieeieeeeiee e
Net income for the period..............
Comprehensive income.................
Balance at December 31, 2011........

Additional Retained Total
Number of Share paid-in Treasury (loss) Revaluation shareholders’
Shares capital capital stock earnings reserves equity
(US dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

85,036,957 $699 $512,918 $— $751,293 $— $1,264,910

.............. — — — — 2,842 — 2,842
------------- 64,195,469 871 784,832 — — — 785,703
............. — — — — (995) — (995)
............. — — — — 2,072 — 2,072
............. — — — — — 5,005 5,005
____________ — — — — 195,408 — 195,408
.............. — — — — 195,408 5,005 200,413
_____________ 149,232,426 $1,570 $1,297,750 $— $950,620  $5,005 $2,254,945
; 149,232,426 $1,570 $1,297,750 $— $950,620  $5,005 $2,254,945
............. — — — — 7,180 — 7,180
------------- — — — (100,000) — —  (100,000)
............. — — — — — (13,518) (13,518)
............ — — — — 172,314 — 172,314
.............. — — — — 172,314 (13,518) 158,796
_____________ 149,232,426 $1,570 $1,297,750 $(100,000) $1,130,114 $(8,513) $2,320,921

(1) In November 2010, we repurchased Waha's 50% edntityest in AerVenture. The purchase is accounte@$ an equity transaction and
no gain or loss was recognized but decreased siidezd’ equity by $995, through the eliminatiortioé related minority interest.

(2) In 2010 and 2011 we entered into interest rate s@pwhich we achieved cash flow hedge accourttiegtment. During 2011 and 2010
no amounts were reclassified from revaluation keseto the income statement.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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AerCap Holdings N.V. and Subsidiaries
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
(US dollars in thousands)
1. General

The Company

We are an independent aircraft leasing company $@th billion of total assets on our balance shesnly
consisting of 251 aircraft. We are a New York St&sichange-listed company (AER) headquartered inNétherlands
with offices in Ireland, the United States, ChiB8amgapore, and the United Arab Emirates.

These consolidated financial statements includatiteunts of AerCap Holdings N.V. and its subsiderAerCap
Holdings N.V. is a Netherlands public limited liityi company (‘haamloze vennootschap or N)Mormed on July 10, 2006
for the purpose of acquiring all of the assets lafilities of AerCap Holdings C.V. AerCap HoldingsV. is a limited
partnership (commanditaire vennootschidgormed under the laws of The Netherlands on Rine2005 for the purposes of
acquiring the share capital, subordinated debtsanibr debt of debis AirFinance B.V. (“AerCap B.) ivhich occurred on
June 30, 2005 (the “2005 Acquisition”). In antidipa of our initial public offering, we changed ocwrporate structure from
a Netherlands partnership to a Netherlands puibtitdd liability company. This change was effectebugh the acquisition
of all of the assets and liabilities of AerCap Hofgs C.V. by AerCap Holdings N.V. on October 270@0This acquisition
was a transaction under common control and acoglsdiferCap Holdings N.V. recognized the acquisitaf the assets and
liabilities of AerCap Holdings C.V. at their camg values and no goodwill or other intangible assetre recognized.

Special purpose entities

As further discussed in Note 14, we hold equity smdordinated debt investments in ALS I, ALS Il and
AerFunding. ALS I, ALS Il and AerFunding are spég@arpose entities over which we exercise contsla result, we
consolidate the accounts of ALS I, ALS Il and AenBing in our accounts since their inception dates.

In May 2006, we signed a joint venture agreemettt ®@hina Aviation Supplies Holding Company (“China
Aviation”) and affiliates of Crédit Agricole estasting AerDragon (“AerDragon”). AerDragon is 50% oed by China
Aviation and 25% owned by us and Crédit AgricolbeToint venture owned 17 aircraft as of DecemtlgrZB11. We act as
guarantor to the lenders of AerDragon related tat decured by the aircraft which AerDragon purcHatiesctly from us.
We provide certain aircraft and accounting relaenices to the joint venture. We have determihatiwe exercise
significant influence but do not exercise contreéoAerDragon and accordingly, we account for owestment in
AerDragon according to the net asset value. Wighetkception of debt for which we act as guararther obligations of
AerDragon are non-recourse to us. At December @11 2our maximum exposure to losses incurred bypAagon consists
of the carrying amount of our equity investmen$86.5 million and the face value of the debt guezath of $21.8 million,
totaling $58.3 million.

In June 2008, AerCap Partners | Holding LimitedAerCap Partners, a 50% joint venture enteredbieteveen us
and Deucalion Aviation Funds, acquired a portfolid 9 aircraft from TUI Travel. The aircraft acoeir are leased back to
TUI Travel for varying terms. The aircraft portfolwas financed through a $425.7 million senior debility and $125.6
million of subordinated debt consisting of $62.8liom from us and $62.8 million from our joint veme partner. Under
certain circumstances and at certain times, ifdh# venture cannot meet its obligations undergbeior debt facility, and
the joint venture partners do not make additionbdbsdinated capital available to the joint ventuxerCap can be required
to purchase the aircraft from the joint ventured@rice equal to the outstanding senior debtifadialance plus certain
expenses and taxes in connection with the purchéséhave also entered into agreements to provid@gsnent and
marketing services to AerCap Partners. We havemated that AerCap Partners is a special purposty éor which we
exercise control. As such, we have consolidated€CAprPartners in our accounts.

In 2010, we entered into three 50% joint venturéh three separate joint venture partners. Theetjoimt ventures
collectively own ten aircraft, consisting of thr&830 aircraft, three A320 aircraft and four CRXIgaft (joint venture with
Waha). On June 1, 2011 we sold our 50% interetstree A330 aircraft that had been part of a joariture. We have
determined that the remaining two joint venturesspecial purpose entities for which we exercisgrob As such, we have
consolidated these two joint ventures in our act&un 2010, we also entered into a 40% joint ventuth Waha, which
owned 10 aircraft as of December 31, 2011. We katermined that the 40% joint venture is a spguigbose entity.
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AerCap further determined that do not exercisercbon the 40% joint venture and accordingly, weaamt for our
investment in the 40% joint venture at net asskiteva

Genesis Transaction

The Genesis Transaction completed on March 25, Zfi0ly reflected in all AerCap Holdings N.V. 201
consolidated financial statements except for tist fjuarter 2010 income statement (including thalmer of outstanding
shares used for earnings per share calculatioksgash flow statement. The amalgamation gain o#i%8&t of transaction
expenses) is reflected in one line item in the inestatement and the impact of the Genesis Traosam the cash flow
statement was also reflected in a one line itemcfase of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired).

One important factor that led us to undertake thad&sis Transaction included the ability to achsseeral key
strategic and financial objectives in a single $ation, such as access to a significant amoumm@stricted cash without
the dilutive impact on earnings per share as coathbtr other alternatives, the combination of Genesipected unrestricted
cash generation with our growth outlook, the imgnment of our quality of earnings, the increaseungiobal client base,
significant cost synergies and improved share tiatiquidity for shareholders. We believe that @Genesis Transaction
helped to create a company that is a leading fiaatit in the aircraft leasing businesses, wittrangf balance sheet and
diversified and profitable business lines.

The significant amalgamation gain resulted fromdifference between the consideration paid andaih@alue of
net assets acquired as of March 25, 2010. Theda®eradion for Genesis consisted of a fixed numbeshafes (one for one),
which was agreed upon on September 18, 2009. &g price of our shares and Genesis’ shares &84 $ind $8.45,
respectively, on September 17, 2009. Due to th&ehaonditions, both AerCap’s and Genesis’ shaieeprwere trading at
distressed levels and significantly below the bealkie of the shares. Subsequently, the considerpta was determined
by the trading price of our shares on the closiatg @f the transaction (March 25, 2010), multipligcthe agreed upon fixed
number of shares. On March 25, 2010, the tradifge of our shares was $10.83, which remained |dkemn the book value
of our shares. This distressed share price mdtighy the fixed number of shares, resulted in sidenation paid of $372.3
million, which was significantly less than the faiarket value of the net assets acquired of $4®dlibn.

Waha Transaction

On November 11, 2010, we completed a transactitinWaha. As part of this transaction, we issuegraximately
29.8 million new shares to Waha. In exchange, weived $105 million in cash, Waha’'s 50% interesthia joint venture
company AerVenture, a 40% interest in Waha's 106rait portfolio and a 50% interest in Waha'’s 4-gftportfolio. As of
December 31, 2010, AerVenture is wholly owned glibsy of AerCap.

AeroTurbine Transaction

On October 7, 2011, we completed the sale of Aeroifia to ILFC for $228.0 million. As a result ofetlsale we
recognized a loss from discontinued operationAgt$ million in the year ended December 31, 201t [Bss consisted of:
(1) $22.5 million of bank fees, legal fees and cactual incentive payments to AeroTurbine managenigpa $8.7 million
deferred tax asset write-off as a result of thedfer of tax losses to the buyer; and (3) a $16lfombook loss. The sale
resulted in a $119.9 million increase of our cagsition, net of incentive payments and net of Aentolne’s cash held at the
transaction date.

The results of AeroTurbine can be summarized dovist

Period ended
December 31, October 7,

2010 2011
QI ==Y 10 $89,861 $98,798
Income (10SS) before taxeS .....ccceeeiii i ceeeeee e (3,077) 5,900
Provision fOr iINCOME tAXES ........uuuuiiiiiiiiiieieriie e ee e e e e ennneees (122) (3,530)
Income (10SS), NEt OF AX «.eiiiiiiieii e (3,199) 2,370
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The carrying amounts of major classes of assetsiaitities of AeroTurbine as of December 31, 2Gi8:

As of
December 31, 2010

Assets

Flight equipment held for operating 1€ases, Net ... .o $311,643
Fa1VZ=T o1 (o] VPSSR UTPTT T 103,363
Trade receivables, Net Of PrOVISIONS ...t a e e e 35,051
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENTES ............uuiiiiccce e e e e e e e en et rrreereeeaees 35,362
OtNEI BSSBES .. teie ittt mrrr e ettt e e et nnn e 14,363
Liabilities

[T o] TP P RO PR PPRPRI $291,628
Accrued expenses and other ADIItIES.......ceeeeeuiiiiiiiiiice e, 16,313
ACCOUNES PAYADIE ... e e ee e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s s s a e ar e e e e eeeeaaaeeaaaeesesennannnnnnn 12,423
Accrued maintenance lability ....... ... 8,306

As of December 31, 2011 we did not have any assdiabilities from discontinued operations in dbonsolidated
Balance Sheet.

Cash flows provided by operating activities fronsadintinued operations were $19.6 million, cash $layged in
investing activities from discontinued operationsrev$32.7 million and cash flows provided by finagcactivities from
discontinued operations were $16.0 million for pregiod ended October 7, 2011.

Risks and uncertainties

Aircraft leasing is a capital intensive businesd ae have significant capital requirements. Ineotd meet our
forward purchase commitments, we will need to aecesnmitted debt facilities, secure additional ficiag for pre-delivery
payment obligations, use our existing availablddzdances, cash generated from aircraft leasidgales, and, if
necessary, the proceeds from potential capital edar&nsactions. If we cannot meet our obligatiemder our forward
purchase commitments, we will not recover the vallugrepayments on flight equipment on our balasteets and may be
subject to other contract breach damages.

We are dependent upon the viability of the comna¢viation industry, which determines our abitibyservice
existing and future operating leases of our aitcisithough the aviation market recovered signifitta from late 2009, a
deterioration of economic conditions and the curmeerease in oil prices could cause our lessedgfault under their leases
with us, which could negatively impact our castwiioand results of operations. Furthermore, theevafuihe largest asset
on our balance sheet—flight equipment held for apieg leases—is subject to fluctuations in the &alaf commercial
aircraft worldwide. A material decrease in aircradtues could have a downward effect on lease Iseatal residual values
and may require that the carrying value of oumfligquipment be materially reduced.

The values of trade receivables, notes receivaiimgible lease premium assets and the provisiporierous
contracts are dependent upon the financial vighilitrelated lessees, which is directly tied to lte@lth of the commercial
aviation market worldwide.

We have significant tax losses carried forwardame of our subsidiaries, which are recognized aasaets on our
balance sheet. The recoverability of these asselspendent upon the ability of the related estiitegenerate a certain level
of taxable income in the future. If those entitasmnot generate such taxable income, we will ratze the value of those
tax assets and a corresponding valuation allowanddax charge will be required.

We periodically perform reviews of the carryingwes of our aircraft and customer receivables, itorgnthe
recoverable value of deferred tax assets and fffieisacy of accruals and provisions, substantialllyof which are sensitive
to the above risks and uncertainties.
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Related parties

All group companies and related parties mentidnediote 25 and Note 29 are considered to be re(zdeiies.
Transactions between group companies are eliminated consolidation.

Note to the cash flow statement

The cash flow statement has been prepared applyinipdirect method. The cash and cash equivalenbe cash
flow statement comprise the balance sheet item @aditash equivalents.

Receipts and payments of interest, dividends vedeand corporate income tax are included in tisé daw from
operating activities.

Investments in group companies are recognizedctisition cost less cash and cash equivalentsadaiin the
company acquired at the time of acquisition.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis for presentation

The consolidated financial statements were preparadcordance with the statutory provisions oft PaBook 2,
of the Netherlands Civil Code and the firm pronements in the Dutch Accounting Standards as iseyelbe Dutch
Accounting Standards Board. The annual accountdexreminated in U.S. dollars, which is our funcéiband reporting
currency.

Based on Part 9 Book 2 Art. 362.4 of the Netheda@ilil Code the Company did not adopt the modehts for
the balance sheets, the income statements orateersnts of cash flows as prescribed by the Nethesl Civil Code. The
current presentation of primary statements is eddy peers and we believe the use of these pristatgments is necessary
to provide sound judgment on the financial positoid results of the Company. This presentatiombdmpact on the net
income or equity of the Company.

In general, assets and liabilities (except for grequity) are stated at the amounts at which thengwacquired or
incurred with exception of derivatives which areasiered at fair value. The balance sheet and inatatement include
references to the notes.

The principles of valuation and determination afuleremain unchanged compared to the prior year.
Use of estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with generally accepted accountiigiciples
requires management to make estimates and assusfiat affect the amounts reported in the conatddifinancial
statements and accompanying notes. For us, thef estimates is or could be a significant factdeetfng the reported
carrying values of flight equipment, inventory,angibles, goodwill, investments, trade and notesivable, deferred tax
assets and accruals and reserves. Management@anisitbrmation available from professional apmesswhere possible,
to support estimates, particularly with respedtight equipment. Despite management’s best effarsccurately estimate
such amounts, actual results could materially difi@m those estimates.

In the year ended December 31, 2011, we changeestiunates of useful lives and residual valuesedfain older
aircraft. The change in estimates is a result efciirrent market conditions that have negativelgcaéd the useful lives and
residual values for such aircraft. The effect onineome from continuing operations for the yeadeshDecember 31, 2011
was to reduce net income by $7.6 million, or $(0@&Sic and diluted earnings per share.

Change in accounting policy

Gain on sale of assetsWe have historically presented our gain on salessets on a net basis, with the net book
value of the asset being sold and related dirdigeosts netted against sales consideratioraasan sale of assets. As a
result of the acquisition of AeroTurbine, effectid@nuary 1, 2006, we changed our presentationed shaircraft on a gross
basis in our Consolidated Income Statements. A&saltrof the disposal of AeroTurbine in the fougtharter of 2011, and to
align with the presentation of our competitorshia tndustry, we changed our presentation back tovess before the
AeroTurbine acquisition. This presentation has aksen applied retrospectively in our Consolidatetbine Statements to
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provide the reader with meaningful and comparaffiermation. If we would have applied the prior yganss presentation
our revenues and costs would been $785.2 millieh$262.3 million higher in the years ended Dece®bge2010 and 2011,
respectively.

Reclassifications

Cashflow—The Consolidated Statement of Cashflows for thee ymded December 31, 2010 includes a
reclassification, as compared to the 2010 Dutch 8A¥nual Report, of $59.2 million from net cashypded by financing
activities to net cash provided by operating atitigj to better reflect the operating income detifrem maintenance
receipts. There were no changes to the Consolidgdéahce Sheet, Net Income or Total Equity as altre$ this
reclassification in the period.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are translated in®& dollars, which is the currency of the primacpmomic
environment in which the group operates, at théhamge rate prevailing at the time the transactiok place or at the rates
of exchange under related forward contracts whetch sontracts exist. Subsequent receivables obpayaesulting from
such foreign currency transactions are translatedUl.S. dollars at the exchange rate prevailinggah balance sheet date.
Translation differences on non-monetary assetsdtetdst are recognised using the exchange raggsifng at the dates of
the transactions (or the approximated rates).esuling exchange gains and losses are taken todbme statement under
selling, general and administrative expenses. sluig companies have the U.S. dollar as their fonelicurrency, given the
nature of the business.

Consolidation

The consolidation includes the financial informatimf AerCap Holdings N.V., its group companies attter
entities in which it exercises control or whosetcamanagement it conducts. Group companies ditgesrin which
AerCap Holdings N.V. exercises direct or indirectrdnant control based on a shareholding of more thee half of the
voting rights, or whose financial and operatingigiet it otherwise has the power to govern. Pad¢mbiting rights that can
directly be exercised at the balance sheet datalsweaken into account.

Group companies and other entities in which AerBafaings N.V. exercises control or whose centrahagement
it conducts are consolidated in full. Companiesfallg consolidated from the date on which conisofransferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the datedbatrol ceases. Minority interests in group eqaitg group profit are
disclosed separately.

Intercompany transactions, profits and balancesngngroup companies and other consolidated legabpse are
eliminated. Unrealized losses on intercompany aetsns are eliminated as well, unless such adoatifies as impairment.
The accounting policies of group companies andratbesolidated legal persons were changed whemssary, in order to
align them to the prevailing group accounting pgekc

Since the income statement for 2011 of AerCap iHgEIN.V. is included in the consolidated finana&ltements,
an abridged income statement has been disclos#ie(itompany financial statements) in accordande 3&ction 402,
Book 2, of the Netherlands Civil Code.

For a listing of the consolidated companies refendte 29.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and hiighligllinvestments with an original maturity of leékan three
months.

Restricted cash

Restricted cash includes cash held by banks tlsathject to withdrawal restrictions.
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Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent unpaid, current lelsiggations of lessees under existing lease corstrddlowances
are made for doubtful accounts where it is considéhat there is a significant risk of non-recovérye assessment of risk
of non-recovery is primarily based on the extenvtoch amounts outstanding exceed the value ofrggdeld, together
with an assessment of the financial strength amdition of a debtor and the economic conditionsiséing in the debtor’s
operating environment.

Flight equipment held for operating leases, net

Flight equipment held for operating leases, inalgdkircraft, is stated at cost less accumulatededéiion and
impairment. Costs incurred in the acquisition ofwft or related leases are included in the cbgieflight equipment and
depreciated over the useful life of the equipmerteom of the related lease. In instances wher@tinehase price includes
additional consideration which can be allocatethtéovalue of an acquired lease containing abovéehéerms, such
allocated cost is recognized as an intangible Ipesmium which is amortized over the term of tHatesl lease. The cost of
improvements to flight equipment are normally exgashunless the improvement materially increasebtigeterm value of
the flight equipment or extends the useful lifeted flight equipment. In instances where the inseavalue benefits the
existing lease, such capitalized cost is depretiater the life of the lease. Otherwise, the céipéd cost is depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the aircraft.gkit equipment acquired is depreciated over thesiasseful life, based on
25 years from the date of manufacture, using tlaegstt-line method to the estimated residual vallree current estimates
for residual (salvage) values for most aircraftetyjare 15% of original manufacture cost. Differaroetween our estimates
of useful lives and residual values and actual egpee may result in future impairments of airceait/or additional gains
or losses upon disposal. We review residual vadfi@esrcraft periodically based on our knowledgecofrent residual values
and residual value trends to determine if theyaggropriate and record adjustments as necessary.

On each balance sheet date, the company testsewtie¢iie are any indications of assets being sutgec
impairment. If any such indications are preserd,rédtoverable amount of the asset is determinghisiproves to be
impossible, the recoverable amount of the cashrgéing unit to which the asset belongs is iderdifidn asset is subject to
impairment if its carrying amount is higher thamriécoverable value; the recoverable value is ijigeh of the net realizable
value and the value in use.

Net realizable value is determined based on appmadata and reference to an active market. Valuse, is
determined as the present value of cash expecteel teceived from the aircraft in the future, inthg its expected residual
value discounted at a rate commensurate with thecéed risk. Future cash flows are assumed toracwer then current
market conditions and assume adequate time fdedsaween a willing buyer and a willing seller.gexted future lease
rates are based on all relevant information avkd|ahcluding current contracted rates for simdacraft, appraisal data and
industry trends. Residual (salvage) value assumg@@nerally reflect an aircraft's booked residaatept where more
recent industry information indicates a differeatue is appropriate. We generally focus our impaimtrassessment on older
aircraft as the cash flows supporting the carryialye of such older aircraft are more dependenhwporent lease contracts,
which leases are more sensitive to weaknesseeg iglbbal economic environment. We review and stoeskey
assumptions to reflect any observed weakness igltal economic environment. Further deterioratibthe global
economic environment and a further decrease ofadirealues might have a negative effect on thealisted cash flows of
older aircraft and might triggering further impagnts.

If it is established that a previously recognizegbairment no longer applies or has declined, theeased carrying
amount of the assets in question is not set hititzar the carrying amount that would have been deted had no asset
impairment been recognized.

Leases

Operating leases-Leases in which a significant portion of the rigksal rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Paymets under operating leases (net of any incenteasved from the
lessor) are charged to the income statement aaiglst-line basis over the period of the lease.

Net investment in direct finance leasddet investment in direct finance leases wheredbmpany acts as lessor
consists of contracted lease receivables plusxpected residual value on lease termination daggjoipment under finance
lease less unearned income. Initial unearned indomeewly acquired aircraft under finance leasthésamount by which
the lease contract receivables plus the expectidua value exceeds the initial investment inl&@sed equipment at lease
inception. In instances where the terms of a newvrait lease agreement require the classificatidheaircraft and related
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lease from a previous operating lease to a dineah€e lease, initial unearned income under trenfie lease is the
difference between the lease contract receivalietmnfair value of the equipment at the time ef tlew agreement.
Unearned income is recognized as lease revenudtwvégase term in a manner which produces a aunstte of return on
the net investment in the finance lease.

Notes receivable

Notes receivable arise primarily from the restruom and deferring of trade receivables from lessageriencing
financial difficulties. Allowances are made for diul accounts where there is a significant riskiofh-recovery of the note
receivable. The assessment of the risk of non-exgag primarily based on the extent to which antewutstanding exceed
the value of security held, together with an agsess of the financial strength and condition ofebthr and the economic
conditions persisting in the debtor’s operatingieonment.

Capitalization of interest

We capitalize interest related to progress paymmaide in respect of flight equipment on forwardesrand add
such amount to prepayments on flight equipment.arheunt of interest capitalized is the actual egercosts incurred on
funding specific to the progress payments or thewarnof interest costs which could have been awbidehe absence of
such progress payments.

Investments

Group companies and other participating interestghich the company exercises significant influeace stated at
net asset value. We are considered to exercisdisag influence if we hold at least 20% of theting rights.

Net asset value is calculated using the accoumptitigies applied in these consolidated financiatesnents.
Participating interests whose financial informat@@mnot be aligned to these policies are valueddas their own
accounting policies. Participating interests withegjuity deficit are carried at nil. A provisionfa@med if and when we are
fully or partially liable for the debts of the pigipating interest, or has the firm intention ttoal the participating interest to
pay its debts.

Participating interests acquired are initially measl at the fair value of the identifiable assets Babilities upon
acquisition. Any subsequent valuation is basecheratcounting policies that apply to these annc@dants, taking into
account the initial valuation.

Participating interests in which no significantliridnce can be exercised are stated at acquisitioa. fif an asset qualifies as
impaired, it is measured at its impaired value; anije offs are disclosed in the income statement.

Gooduwill/Negative goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of adtipn of subsidiaries over the fair value of idéable net assets
at the dates of acquisition. Goodwill is amortizeda straight line basis over the estimated ugiéulvith a maximum of 20
years and is tested for impairment annually or naften when events or circumstances indicate treaetmay have been
impairment. Negative goodwill is released to incdmaccordance with the weighted average remailifie@f the
depreciable or amortisable assets acquired. Ievbat of a disposal of an asset a relative podfdhe negative goodwill
based on the weighted average book value of tharachjasset is released to the income statement.

Intangible assets

We recognize intangible assets acquired in a bssioembination. The identified intangible asse¢sracorded at
fair value on the date of acquisition. The ratawiortization of intangible assets is calculatedhwéference to the expected
useful life. In instances where the purchase ghfliequipment or the allocated fair value in a bess combination includes
consideration which can be allocated to the vafusnaacquired lease containing above market tesodd) allocated costs is
recognized as an intangible lease premium assedmodized on a straight-line basis over the tefthe related lease as a
reduction of lease revenue. Similarly, we recogaizease deficiency liability as part of accruegenses and other
liabilities for lease contracts where the termgheflease contract are unfavorable to market tamdsamortize the liability
over the term of the related lease as an additideatse revenue. We consider lease renewals @sea iy lease basis. We
generally do not assume lease renewals in therdietation of the lease premiums or deficiencies igi@anarket participant
would expect the lessee to renegotiate the leasieesnmarket terms. We evaluate all intangibletafee impairment where
circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
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Inventory

Inventory, which consists primarily of engine arnidrame parts, is valued at the lower of cost drrealizable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated seflirice in the ordinary course of business, legdiegble variable selling
expenses.

Deferred income taxes (assets and liabilities)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recogniaqutovide for timing differences between the vabfi¢he assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposestbie one hand and for tax purposes on the othderi2e tax liabilities are
calculated based on the tax rate prevailing orbttience sheet date or the rates that will apptiierfuture, insofar as these
have been set down by law.

Deferred taxes are recognized for timing differencencerning consolidated companies, participatitegests and joint
ventures, unless we are able to determine the moofiexpiry of the timing difference and it is rli¢ely that the timing
difference will expire in the foreseeable futuref@red taxes are recognized at face value.

Other assets

Other assets consist of receivables from aircraftufacturers, prepayments, interest and othenvaioieis and
other tangible fixed assets. Other tangible fixeskess consist of computer equipment, motor vehaheksoffice furniture and
are valued at acquisition cost and depreciatedr@dws rates between 16% to 33% per annum oveashets’ useful lives
using the straight-line method.

Shareholders’ equity

Expenses directly related to the purchase, sallaistue of new shares are directly charged agsi@seholders’
equity, after processing of the relevant profit édfects. Other direct changes in shareholdersitgque also recognized
after processing of the relevant profit tax effects

Minority interest

The minority interest in group equity is carriedta amount of the net interest in the group corgsaconcerned.
Insofar as the group company concerned has a megadt asset value, the negative value and othareflosses are not
allocated to the minority interest, unless thedlparty shareholders have a constructive actuaation, and are capable, to
clear the losses. As soon as the net asset vathe gfoup company is positive again, profits ay@mallocated to the
minority interest. Transactions between the Aer@agbit's minority interests are eliminated. Gaind ésses arising from
acquisitions and disposals of minority interestsracognized through shareholder’s equity.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized for legally enforcealleamstructive obligations existing on the balaskeet date, the
settlement of which is probable to require an owifbf resources whose extent can be reliably estighdrovisions are
measured on the basis of the best estimate ohtl@ats required to settle the obligations as obtdance sheet date.
Provisions are stated at the present value oftperaliture expected to be required to settle thigations. If the
expenditure to settle obligations is expected todzevered from third parties, the recovery isiedras an asset on the
balance sheet if it is likely to be received upetilement of the obligation.

Provision for onerous contracts-We make an provision for onerous contracts whaseundiscounted costs of
performing under a contract or series of relatattre@ts exceed the undiscounted benefits expeatlkd terived from such
contracts. In connection with a purchase businestmation, accruals are recorded at the preséme vd such differences.

Accrued maintenance liability

In all of our aircraft leases, the lessees arearesiple for maintenance and repairs of our flightipment and
related expenses during the term of the leaseartresnstances, we may incur maintenance and regpp@nses for off-lease
aircraft. We recognize leasing expenses in ourrimestatement for all such expenditures. In manyaipwg lease and
finance lease contracts, the lessee has the dbligat make a periodic payment of supplemental teasnce rent which is
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calculated with reference to the utilization offi@mes, engines and other major life-limited comgta during the lease. Up
to 2008 we did not recognize such supplementalremgived as revenue, but as an accrued maintehahitigy until the

end of the lease, at which point the supplemeptakrwas recognized as lease revenue. In 2008haveyed the estimate of
the amount of maintenance rent expected to be reseld to lessees. The change in estimate arosdliimplementation
of an improved model used to forecast future maimee reimbursements.

We record as revenue all maintenance rent recegttsxpected to be repaid to lessees. We estilmatmtal
amount of maintenance reimbursements for the eletige and only record revenue after we have redesmough
maintenance rent under a particular lease to dbeeestimated total amount of revenue reimbursesnémthese leases,
upon lessee presentation of invoices evidencingadhepletion of qualifying maintenance on the aiftcoa engine, we make
a payment to the lessee to compensate for theotts maintenance, up to the maximum of the supefgal maintenance
rental payments made with respect to the leaseamint

In most lease contracts not requiring the payméstipplemental rents, the lessee is required ttelieer the
aircraft in a similar maintenance condition (normalar and tear excepted) as when accepted undirattes with reference
to major life-limited components of the aircrafp The extent that such components are redeliveradiifferent condition
than at acceptance, there is an end-of-lease cavapen adjustment for the difference at redelivég recognize receipts
of end-of-lease compensation adjustments as leasaue when received and payments of end-of-ledjgstments as
leasing expenses when paid.

In addition, we may be obligated to make additiggefments to the lessee for maintenance relateehses (lessor
maintenance contributions or top-ups) primarilatet! to usage of major life-limited components odng prior to entering
into the lease. In all lease contracts where weetyy make lessor contributions to compensatetfalifging maintenance
work during the lease, we record an accrued maames liability through a charge to leasing expesdése commencement
of the lease based on our estimate of maintenarem@swhich will occur during the lease.

For all of our lease contracts, any amounts ofieatimaintenance liability existing at the end tdase are released
and recognized as lease revenue at lease ternmn¥tioen flight equipment is sold, the portion of #iccrued maintenance
liability which is not specifically assigned to thayer is released from the balance sheet and mezzjas net gain on sale
of assets as part of the sale of the flight equigtme

Debt

Term debt is initially recognised at fair valuet nétransaction costs incurred. Borrowings aressglently stated
at amortised cost, being the amount received takimgunt of any premium or discount, less transaatosts.

Any difference between the proceeds (net of traimacosts) and the redemption value is recognisélde income
statement over the period of the borrowings udimgeffective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments
We use derivative financial instruments to manageexposure to interest rate risks and foreignenay risks.

All derivatives are recognized on the balance shetfteir fair value (market value). Market valadhie amount at
which an asset can be traded or a liability setbletiveen knowledgeable, willing parties in an artaiggth transaction. If no
market value can be readily and reliably estabtishearket value is approximated by deriving it frtre market value of
components or of a comparable financial instrumenby approximating market value using valuatiordels and valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include usingneasm’s length market transactions between knogdadle, willing
parties, if available, reference to the currentkeavalue of another instrument that is substdytthe same, discounted cash
flow analysis and option pricing models, makingathnce for entity-specific inputs.

When cash flow hedge accounting treatment is aeliethe changes in fair values related to the &éffeportion of
the derivatives are recorded in revaluation reseraed the ineffective portion is recognized imraggly in income.
Changes in fair value related to the effective iparbf the derivatives are reclassified out of tea#ion reserves into income
for any ineffective portion of the derivative caatt which is calculated at each quarter end. Anreftected in revaluation
reserves related to the effective portion are ssifi@d into earnings in the same period or perthating which the hedged
transactions affects earnings.
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We discontinue hedge accounting prospectively wheme determine that the derivative is no longéeaive in
offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flefva hedged item; (ii) the derivative expires oold, terminated, or
exercised; or (i) management determines thatgtheding the derivative as a hedging instrumenbitonger appropriate. In
all situations in which hedge accounting is distorgd and the derivative remains outstanding, wey¢he derivative at its
fair value on the balance sheet, recognizing chaingthe fair value in current-period earnings. Témaining balance in
revaluation reserves at the time we discontinug&eatcounting is not recognized in the income staie unless it is
probable that the forecasted transaction will mauo. Such amounts are recognized in earnings whsarings are affected
by the hedged transaction.

When cash flow hedge accounting treatment is rioiesed, the changes in fair values between peaoels
recognized as a reduction or increase of intesgstrese on the income statement in accordance wit2oRB.

Net cash received or paid under derivative corgraghere material in any reporting period, is dfess as
operating cash flow in our consolidated cash fltatesnents.

Revenue recognition

As lessor, we lease flight equipment principallglenoperating leases and report rental income lsatader the life
of the lease as it is earned. We account for lagesements that include step rent clauses onigtstiime basis. Lease
agreements for which base rent is based on floatilegest rates are included in minimum lease paysieased on the
floating interest rate existing at the inceptiortlaf lease; any increases or decreases in leaseepts/that result from
subsequent changes in the floating interest rate@ntingent rentals and are recorded as increaskescreases in lease
revenue in the period of the interest rate chahgeertain cases, leases provide for rentals basegage. The usage may be
calculated based on hourly usage or on the nunflmrctes operated, depending on the lease contfetcease revenue
recognition on a lease contract when the collditiiof such rentals is no longer reasonably astufer past-due rentals
which have been recognized as revenue, provisienesdablished on the basis of management’s assessifrcollectibility
and to the extent such rentals exceed relatedisedaposits held, and are recorded as expens#gdncome statement.

Most of our lease contracts require payment in adeaRentals received, but unearned under these lea
agreements are recorded as deferred revenue baldrece sheet.

Net gain on sale of assets originate from the gldércraft, engines and parts and are recogniZzeehwhe delivery
of the relevant asset is complete and the risksd has transferred to the buyer.

Revenues from direct finance leases are recogizete interest method to produce a level yield dve life of
the finance lease. Expected unguaranteed residliss of leased assets are based on our assesdgmesitiual values and
independent appraisals of the values of leasedsass®aining at expiration of the lease terms.

Revenue from secured loans, notes receivablesthed iaterest bearing instruments is recognizedroeffective
yield basis as interest accrues under the assda@atdracts. Revenue from lease management feesagnized as income
as it accrues over the life of the contract. Reeelnom the receipt of lease termination penalegcorded at the time cash
is received or when the lease is terminated, iectibn is reasonably assured. Other revenue ieslaay net gains we
generate from the sale of aircraft related investsesuch as our subordinated interests in sezatiith vehicles and notes,
warrants or convertible securities issued by osgdes, which we receive from lessees as compem$atiamounts owed to
us in connection with lease restructurings.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are time apportioakohg into account the effective interest ratetfar relating
assets and liabilities. The treatment of intergpeases for loans received takes account of angdidion costs.

Exchange rate differences

Exchange differences arising upon the settlememafetary items are recognized in the profit arsd l|ccount in
the period that they arise.

38



Personnel remuneration
Salaries, wages and social charges are takee fordfit and loss account when due, and in acceelaith
employment contracts and obligations.

Share-based compensation

Management of the Company receives share basedersiaion. We recognize compensation expense when it
becomes probable that participants in share-bameahiive plans who hold direct or indirect equitierests in our shares or
options to acquire such shares will be able toea@hfair value. The amount of such expense is ohited by reference to
the fair value of the share or share option ordtite of grant. The timing of expense recognitiotatermined with
reference to the timing of lapsing of restrictiamsrestricted shares and vesting on share opfineisiding the lapsing of
repurchase rights which allow other parties to repase participants’ shares at less than fair nnaddee.

The amount of compensation expense recognizee$tricted shares is derived with reference to oess of fair
market value of the shares at the date of granttheeprice paid. The amount of expense recogniztdrespect to share
options is based on the fair value of the optiangithe share valuation method described in notaritBthen applying a
Black-Scholes option pricing model to the underyghare value. The value of each of the equitytgramrecognized on a
straight-line basis over the applicable vestingquks.

The offsetting entry for the compensation expersegnized for equity grants is to additional paid-apital with
no resulting effect on total shareholders’ equityrer than the positive effect of the deferreditarefit related to the tax
deductible portion of share-based compensatiorgelsar

Tax on profit/(loss) on ordinary activities

Profit tax is calculated on the profit/loss beftaration in the profit and loss account, takingiatcount any losses
carried forward from previous financial years (ifssas these are not included in deferred tax slstak exempt items and
non deductible expenses. Account is also takemafiges in deferred tax assets and deferred talhitiedowing to changes
in the applicable tax rates.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed by dividing incongglable to ordinary shareholders by the weighteerage
number of ordinary shares outstanding during thiegdeFor the purposes of calculating diluted esgsiper share, the
denominator includes both the weighted average eumbordinary shares outstanding during the pesiod the weighted
average number of potentially dilutive ordinary&sa such as share options.

Segment Reporting

A business segment is a group of assets and opesaigaged in providing products or servicesahasubject to
risk and returns that are different from those thio business segments. A geographical segmengéged in providing
products or services within a particular econommigimnment that are subject to risks and returas éne different from
those of segments operating in other economic enmients.

Financial instruments and risk management

Our primary market risk exposure is interest ratk associated with short and long-term borrowibgaring
variable interest rates and lease payments undseddied to floating interest rates. To manageitiérest rate exposure, we
enter into interest rate swap and cap agreemergsard/also exposed to foreign currency risk, wharhadversely affect our
operating profits. To manage this risk, we enté&s forward exchange contracts.

The following discussion should be read in conjinrctvith Notes 2, 3 and 11 to the audited constdiddinancial
statements which provide further information on derivative instruments.

Interest Rate Risk-The rentals we receive under our leases are lmaséded and variable interest rates. We fund
our operations with a mixture of fixed and floatirege debt and finance lease obligations. An isten@e exposure arises to
the extent that the mix of these obligations atenmatched with our assets. This exposure is prignaranaged through the
use of interest rate caps, swaps and interesfloats using a cash flow based risk management matiess model takes the
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expected cash flows generated by our assets ailitiés and then calculates by how much the valughese cash flows
will change for a given movement in interest rates.

Under our interest rate caps and floors, we widkree or pay the excess, if any, of LIBOR, resenthly or
quarterly on an actual/360 adjusted basis, ovestitiee rate of the relevant cap.

Our Board of Directors is responsible for reviewanyl approving our overall interest rate managepelnties and
transaction authority limits. Specific hedging gawts are approved by the treasury committee awtitign the overall
policies and limits. Our counterparty risk is mon&d on an ongoing basis, but is mitigated by #io that all of our interest
rate derivatives, except ALS I's derivatives, reégquivo-way cash collateralization. Our countergartire subject to the prior
approval of the treasury committee.

Foreign Currency Risk and Foreign Operatiea®ur functional currency is the U.S. dollar. Weun&uro-
denominated expenses in connection with our officéthe Netherlands and Ireland. We enter intoifprexchange
contracts based on our projected exposure to for@igrency risks in order to protect ourselves ftbmeffect of period
over period exchange rate fluctuations. Mark-tokmagains or losses on such contracts are rec@sledrt of selling,
general and administrative expenses since mosirafian-U.S. denominated payments relate to suchresgs. Since we
currently receive substantially all of our revenired).S. dollars and we hedge a material portionwfnon-dollar
denominated expenditures, we do not believe tichbage in foreign exchange rates will have matéariphct on our results
of operations. However, the portion of our businemsducted in foreign currencies could increaghénfuture, which could
increase our exposure to losses arising from cayréactuations.

Credit risk—The values of trade receivables and notes recieiaab dependent upon the financial viability of
related lessees, which is directly tied to the theaf the commercial aviation market worldwide. Yaform a credit
evaluation on all lease counterparties with whoncwaeduct material business. We also actively motite credit-
worthiness of significant lessees to minimize tbstdo us of lessee defaults.

Inflation—Inflation generally affects our costs, includiredli®g, general and administrative expenses aneroth
expenses. However, we do not believe that our filmhnesults have been, or will be, adversely affiddy inflation in a
material way.

3. Restricted cash

Restricted cash consists of the following at Decendd.:

2010 2011

Cash securing our obligations under ECA-guaranfi@@icings. ............ceevvveeeeeeescmmmmeeeennns $36,703  $38,365
Cash securing our obligations under ALS 1 debt..........cccovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 39,770 39,331
Cash securing our obligations under ALS 1l deblo.cc....ovvviiiiiiiiiiiie e, 13,982 14,941
Cash securing our obligations under UBS revolvireglit facility debt.................c.ooo i eee 56,594 58,591
Cash securing our obligations under Genesis Furidmged (“GFL") securitization debt.. 18,526 24,564
Cash securing our obligations under TUI portfolégjaisition facility debt.......................... 11,608 11,747
Cash securing our obligations under other debit.............ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e, 47,745 54,742
Cash securing our obligations under the LILO headés (Note 15) and cash securing the

guarantee of lease obligations/indebtedness of @ Isublessee (Note 13).................... 6,837 —
Cash securing our obligations under derivativerimsents (Note 11) ............ooooiiiiiiiiceenne (11,380) (7,170)
(01 T P UPT T TPUPRPPI 2,079 2,214

$222,464 $237,325

The cash securing our obligations under all out &edilities is restricted and can only be usegadg for operating
expenses incurred by the respective financing \ehiaed to pay for interest and debt amortizatiothefrespective debt. The
majority of the restricted cash represents colbeatiof these structures in the previous period¢hvhiill be paid as interest
and debt amortization at the next payment date.cilkh securing our rights and obligations underdgve instruments
relates to interest rate caps and swaps for whizhad to pay cash into restricted cash accountbdadoenefit of our
counterparties or for which we received cash iegiricted cash accounts from our counterpartiesdobenefit.
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4. Trade receivables, net of provisions

Trade receivables consist of the following at DeobenB1:

2010 2011
Trade reCeIVADIES...........uveeeiie ittt $51,661 $19,593

Provision for doubtful aCCOUNtS..........ooii oo (2,606) (3,530)
$49,055 $16,063

Trade receivables include amounts invoiced to Esgerespect of lease rentals and maintenance/essé\s of

December 31, 2011, we did not have any tradesvaoleis recorded in relation to lessee defaultstrade receivables are

due within one year.

The change in the provision for doubtful accoustsét forth below:

Year ended December 31,
2010 2011
$3,392 $2,606
1,167 6,241
— (5,473)
(1,953) 156
$2,606 $3,530

Provision at beginning of Period............. e e
Expense for doubtful aCCOUNLS............ooicecmee e
Sale Of ACTOTUIDINE .......eiiiiiiiiiiiiie e et eaeeee e
L@ 1 1= (11 TSSO
Provision at the end of Period..............ooivemevieeiieiiie e

(1) Other includes direct write offs and cash actimg for certain trade receivables.

5. Flight equipment held for operating leases, net
Movements in flight equipment held for operatingdes during the periods presented were as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2010 2011

Net book value at beginning Of PEriod ........ccoceeiiiiiiii e

Fair value of flight equipment acquired in aCQUOBIE ...........ceeeiiiiiiiiiieeeanaiiieiiiceeeeen. 1,337,412

Yo (o 1110 3PP PUPUTRPR
D ]=T o] £=TolF= 11T o U PPRPR (340,823) (386,158)
IMPAIrMENE (NOTE 22) ... it ceeeee ettt e et e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e annas (23,899) (27,077)
DISPOSAIS ...t ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e ab et e e e e e eeeeaaaeas (646,841)  (333,140)
Transfers to direct finance leases/flight equipnieid for sale............cccccvvveeeeeririrs . (3,550)

I U153 (= 0 (o TR T V2= 1) (o] USSP
Sale of AeroTurbine ...............ocoeen

$5,366,071 $8,173,575

2,531,719 882,625

(46,514) (11,4?5)
—  (314,851)

Net book value at end of period

$8,173,575 $7,983,544

Accumulated depreciation/impairment at Decembe2810 and 2011 ................ceceeeeee $(1,009,843) $(1,066,422)

At December 31, 2011, 245 out of our 251 ownedaitand seven owned engines were on lease uneeatom

leases to 89 lessees in 46 countries. The geographcentrations of leasing revenues are set dubta 19.

Prepayments on flight equipment (including relatagitalized interest) of $468,933 and $151,550 Hemen
applied against the purchase of aircraft duringyters ended December 31, 2010 and 2011, resggctive
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The following table indicates our contractual cotmants for the prepayment and purchase of flightmgent in
the periods indicated as of December 31, 2011:

2012 2013 2014 Thereafter
Capital eXPENItUIES ........coveieieiiee et eeeeee e $466,231  $220,648 $— $294,793
Pre-delivery pPayments ..........cc i 31,320 57,742 91,119 18,224

$497,551  $278,390 $91,119 $313,017

As of December 31, 2011, we expect to make capipénditures related to five A330, seven A320 aftand ten
Boeing 737 aircraft (excluding the remaining 31 Airen Airlines purchase-leaseback Boeing 737 dicira2012 and
thereafter. As we implement our growth strategyremtly focused on the mid- to long-term, and expauar aircraft
portfolio, we expect our capital expenditures toré@ase in the future. We anticipate that we witiduhese capital
expenditures through internally generated cashdalsaw downs on our committed revolving crediilfées and the
incurrence of bank debt, and other debt and edgstyances.

Our current operating lease agreements expiretbeanext twelve years. The contracted minimum fitaase
payments receivable from lessees for equipmenborcancelable operating leases at December 31, #@14s follows:

Contracted
minimum
future lease
receivables

$942,212
891,168
762,176
646,514
524,857
1,465,597
$5,232,524

The titles to certain aircraft leased in the Unigtdtes are held by a U.S. trust company as raehbyd).S. law. We
are the beneficial owner of these aircraft andatheraft are recorded under flight equipment helddperating lease on the
consolidated balance sheets. The trust compargdnignéstered by a bank. The aircraft are segregatad the bank’s assets
and will not be considered part of the bank’s bapkey estate in the event of a trustee bankruptcy.

6. Notes receivable

Notes receivable consist of the following at Decentil:

2010 2011
Secured Notes receivable ..............cvev e e esvee e e, $5,114  $4,794
Notes receivable from lessee restructurings ..cceeeevvvvevveveeeiicmeeeee. 10,383 406

$15,497  $5,200

The minimum future receipts under notes receivabl@ecember 31, 2011 are as follows:

Minimum future
notes receivable

2002 ——————— e $4,289
20 3. e ————— e 911
$5,200
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7. Prepayments on flight equipment

In December 2005, we placed an order with Airtmrgtie forward purchase of 70 aircraft, includingefaircraft
subject to reconfirmation rights. (“2005 Forwarddér”). During 2008 and the first two months of 2002 notified Airbus
that we would not take delivery of the five air¢radibject to reconfirmation rights. In 2009 fouddaibnal aircraft were
added to the forward order. As of December 31, 2821aircraft had been delivered and 12 aircrafevgeld. The
remaining five A320 aircraft to be delivered aDafcember 31, 2011, are scheduled to be deliverieba 2012 through

2013.

In December 2006, we placed an order with Airlauadquire 20 new A330 wide-body aircraft. In MayZ0we
added an additional ten A330 aircraft to this ordie2009, two additional A330 aircraft were addedhe forward order. As
of DecembeB1, 2011, 27 aircraft had been delivered of whighteaircraft were sold and five aircraft remairtecbe
delivered pursuant to the agreement. The remalinrecaircraft are scheduled to be delivered in 2012

In 2010, we signed an agreement with Boeing cagettie purchase of up to 15 Boeing 737-800 airceaftsisting
of ten firm aircraft delivering in 2015 and fivenghase rights.

In connection with the current forward order cants, we are required to make scheduled prepayrtemtsd these
future deliveries (Note 5). A total amount of irgst of $7,978 and $4,439 was capitalized with resfpethese payments for
the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2011, respect

Following is a summary of the movements in prepayts on flight equipment during the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2011:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011
Net book value at beginning of period........ccccceeiiiiiicennanenn. $527,666 $199,417
Prepayments Made .........covvvveeeeeeeiis s scccmmmeee e eeeaeeee 132,706 43,313
Prepayments applied against the purchase of #ighipment..... (468,933) (151,550)
Interest capitalized ... 7,978 4,439
Net book value at end of period.............ccoeeeeiiiiiieiiiieee e, $199,417 $95,619

8. Investments
Investments consist of the following at December 31

2010 2011
25% equity investment in unconsolidated joint veat{AerDragon)..... $30,332 $36,473
40% equity investment in unconsolidated joint veat{AerLift) .......... 41,662 46,456
43% equity investment in unconsolidated joint veat{AerData)......... 991 1,150

$72,985 $84,079

Our equity investment in our unconsolidated joiabhtures, AerDragon, AerLift and AerData, are actedrfor at
net asset value.

9. Intangible assets

The following table presents details of amortizahtangible assets and related accumulated amtiotiza

As of December 31, 2010
Accumulated

Gross amortization Net
LEASE PrEMIUMS......uviiieeeeiitiieeeeee et s e e e e tbae e e e e e s sntbaeeaeesastreeeeeenanens $73,673 $(27,448) $46,225
Customer relationShipS—Parts ........oovvvvesccceeii e ,800 (9,229) 10,571
Customer relationships—engiNesS .........ccccceeeeeeeee e 3060 (2,516) 1,084
FAA certificate at ABrOTUIDINE.......uuviiiiis e ,100 (343) 757
NON-COMPELE AQrEEMENT......uuuiiriiirieeirsreremeer e e e e e ee e e e e e e s e s s e memreeeeeeeeeeees 1,100 (1,100) —
Net book value at end of period.............ccoeeeeiiiiiiiiie i, $983 $(40,636) $58,637
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As of December 31, 2011

Accumulated
Gross amortization Net
LEASE PIEMIUMS ..eevveeiuereeeteessteesese e o e essteessteessaeessaaessseessseessessnsnssnns $67,882 $(38,204) $29,677
Net book value at end of Period...........ccuveciiiiiiiiiiie e $67,882 $(38,204) $29,677

The following table presents the changes to amabstezintangible assets during the periods indicated

Year ending December 31,

2010 2011
Net carrying value at beginning of period.............cccoccvivieiiiiiiiec e $31,399 $58,637
Fair value of intangibles acquired in acquisitians...............ccccccvieeiiiiieeee e, 42,975 —
Sale Of ABTOTUIDINE ...ttt e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeas — (10,468)
Purchases of intangible lease premiums........cccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 9,006 —
YN g o] 412 11T ] o FA TP (22,070) (17,319)
IMPAIrMENT (NOTE 22) .....eeiiiiieiiiiieee e s sttt e e e (2,673) (1,173)
Net carrying value at end of period ..........ccoeeeii e $58,637 $29,677

Future amortization of the intangible assets oertérms of their useful lives is as follows:

Amortization
of intangible
assets

.................................................................................................................... $11,578
............................................................... 8,431
6,137
3,107
.................................................................................................................... 424
$29,677

The remaining weighted average amortization pefidodhe amortizable intangible assets is 37 mo(2040: 49
months). Please refer to Note 22 for the impairnagratysis of intangible assets.

10. Inventory

Following are the major classes of inventory at&msber 31,

2010 2011
Engine and airframe Parts ......... ... oo $119,440 $13,953
WOTK-IN-PIOCESS. ......cveiveeeeeeeeeeee e eeeeeeeeanaeeaeeteeseaneeeaeseeseeeneesas 1,645 —

$121,085 $13,953

The decrease in inventory in the year ended Dece8he€011 is mainly caused by the AeroTurbine Saation.

11. Derivative assets and liabilities

The objective of our hedging policy is to adapisk adverse position with respect to changes er@st rates and
foreign currencies. We have entered into a numbiterest rate derivatives to hedge the curredtfature interest rate
payments on our variable rate debt. Furthermoréawve entered into a number of foreign currencyvagisies to hedge the
current and future Euro - US Dollar exposure tolmusiness. These derivative products can inclugedst rate caps, floors,
options and forward contracts.

As of December 31, 2011, we had interest rate sweagps and floors and several foreign currency ddvwcontracts
with combined notional amounts of $3.8 billion (P0%$4.2 billion) and a combined negative fair vatfi€6.1 million
(2010: $0.6 million negative). The variable benchkriaterest rates associated with these instruntamiged from one to
six-month LIBOR.
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We have not applied hedge accounting to any ofbltere derivatives. The change in fair value ofdbgvatives,
therefore, is recorded in the income statemenhasaease of interest expense as specified below:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011
Change in fair value of interest rate caps andrfloo.............eeeeeviiiiicnenen. $27,720  $59,312
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps acdumesenesis Transactian.. (22,947)  (39,536)

$4,773  $19,776

As of December 31, 2011 we had four interest ratigps for which we achieved cash flow hedge accognti
treatment. The four interest rate swaps had a awedhiotional amount of $0.5 billion and a combinedative fair value of
$9.8 million as of December 31, 2011. As of Decen8@de 2010 we had two interest rate swaps for whietachieved cash
flow hedge accounting treatment. The two interatt swaps had a combined notional amount of zet@ammbined
positive fair value of $5.7 million as of Deceml3dr, 2010. The change in fair value related to ffexve portion of these
four interest rate swaps is recorded, net of taxevaluation reserve. We do not expect to redlaasnounts from
revaluation reserves to net interest over the h2xnhonths.

Some of our agreements with derivative countergargequire a two-way cash collateralization of\ive fair
values. Cash under such arrangements is includessiricted cash (Note 3).

Counterparties to currency exchange and interéstierivatives consist of major international fingh institutions.
The Company continually monitors its positions #&mel credit ratings of the counterparties involvad Bmits the amount of
credit exposure to any one party. While the Company be exposed to potential losses due to théteigklof non-
performance by these counterparties, losses ar@ntictpated. The Company closely monitors the itrnesk associated with
its counterparties and customers and to date hasxperienced material losses.

The maximum time period for which we hedge our expe to forecasted transaction cash flow is 12syear
excluding the variability related to the paymentraérest on floating rate debt obligations.

12. Other assets

Other assets consist of the following at Decemter 3

2010 2011
Other tangible fixed aSSetS ...........cciiveeeccce e $9,634 $3,802
Receivables from aircraft manufacturer ... ..coveeeeeeeiieeeeeennnnn... 18,281 12,990
Prepaid EXPENSES ......cooiiii et 5,539 4,601

Other reCEIVADIES. ..... oo e e 23,686 11,291

$57,140 $32,684

13. Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consisheffollowing at December 31:

2010 2011
Guarantee Hability............ccooviiiiiiieieeee et e $1,251 $—
ACCIUEH EXPENSES ...eiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeet i e i eieesaaaes st rataeeeeeannennrrsreenneees 73,691 29,682
ACCIUE INEEIESE ..vviiiiei i eme e 24,137 26,702
Lease AefiCIENCY ....cuiieeee e et r e e, 22,310 18,074

$121,389  $74,458

Lease deficiencytease deficiency represents lease rates for cugase contracts which are below current market
rentals for the applicable aircraft at the timguofchase. The lease deficiency amortizes overeimaining term of the
related lease agreements as a non-cash increl@ssarevenue. The remaining weighted average eatioh period for the
lease deficiency is 109 months.
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14. Debt

Debt consists of the following as of December 31:

Weighted average
interest rate
December 31,

2010 2011 (1) 2011 (2) Maturity

ECA-guaranteed finanCings ..............ceeeecmmmmvneveneennnee $1,577,325%$1,662,810 2.48% 2023
ALS 1 dEDL...eiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 806,574 640,332 0.53% 2032
ALS 11 AEDL ..o 803,852 693,180 2.13% 2038
Revolving credit facility.............coooeccviiice e 591,676 461,421 3.18% 2016
GFL securitization debt.............ccoeeiii e eeeeesiiieeee e 627,704 624,973 0.52% 2032
TUI portfolio acquisition facility ............ccccceccviiiiieineennnn. 313,223 262,302 1.93% 2015
Skyfunding B737-800 acquisition facility ......eue...ceeeee... — 133,669 3.86% 2021
AT revolving credit facility 291,628 — — —
Subordinated debt joint ventures partners(3) ... .ee.... 87,568 64,280 19.35% 2022
Other debt.......ocviiiiiie e 1,466,613 1,568,198 4.19% 2023
Debt iSSUANCE COSES ..ot ieeeeeeecirerreree e (152,001) (148,675)

$6,414,162 $5,962,490

1. As of December 31, 2011, we remain in compliandé thie respective financial covenants across the
Company’s various debt obligations.

2. The weighted average interest rate in the tableebzcludes the impact of derivative instrumemttgriest
rate caps and interest rate swaps, which we hdiédge our exposure to interest rates.

3. Subordinated debt issued to two of our joint vemfeartners in 2008 and 2010.

Aggregate maturities of debt and capital leasegakibbns during the next five years and thereafteraa follows:

Debt
maturing

$800,861
731,267
739,025
1,093,315
909,666
1,837,031
$6,111,165

ECA-guaranteed financings — A320 aircraft—In April 2003, we entered into an $840.0 millioxpert credit
facility (“ECA Facility”) for the financing of upd 20 A320 Airbus Family aircraft up to December 2@05. Funding under
the facility is provided by commercial banks, bt repayment is guaranteed by the ECA. In Janu@0g,2he ECA Facility
was amended and extended to cover an additionalanioraft and its size increased to a maximumla? $illion. In
November 2008, the export credit facility was fertamended to cover an additional aircraft andibgimum amount of
the facility remained unchanged. The terms of émeling commitment in the ECA Facility are such thatECA only
approve funding for aircraft that are due for detivon a six-month rolling basis and have no obiligato fund deliveries
beyond that time frame. The margin over three-mahBOR ranges from 0.12% to 0.90%. We are obligatetepay
principal on ECA loans over a ten or 12-year tefime ECA Facility contains certain net worth finaala@ovenants, a breach
of which would cause us to lose some of our opamnatiflexibility under our leases, such as a rezjent to grant pledges
over certain bank accounts to the respective lendieiaddition, all loans under the ECA Facilityntain change of control
provisions that grant the lenders the right to pyepent of their loans in the event of a changeootrol, unless the lenders
consent to the change of control.

The security structures of the ECA-guaranteed detidire that legal title to the aircraft be tramefd to and held by
a special purpose company controlled by the lendféeshave entered into head lease agreements cuilbfect aircraft
which transfer the risk and rewards of ownershithefaircraft to us. Aircraft subject to these stwes are recorded as flight
equipment held for operating lease on our balaheets. The obligations outstanding under the E@aAnitings are secured
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by a pledge of our shares to the lenders which legl title to the aircraft financed under thepexgive financing. The
obligations of each of our aircraft-owning subsittia under the ECA Facility are guaranteed by us.

ECA-guaranteed financings 2008—Airbus A330 and A32€amily aircraft — In December 2008, we entered
into a $1.4 billion export credit facility for tHenancing of up to 15 Airbus A330 aircraft. Frorme to time since 2008, the
export credit facility has been further amendeddeer certain additional Airbus A330 and A320 fanalrcraft and an ECA
capital markets transaction in relation to thre@@aircraft. The maximum size of the facility wasreased to $1.6 billion.

Funding under the facility is provided by commelbianks, but the repayment is guaranteed by the. HGA
margin over three-month LIBOR is 1.47%, and a gigaint tranche of this ECA debt has been fixed weghted average
rate of 3.02%. The interest rates for the remaifdags will be agreed on a rolling basis. We aré@ated to repay principal
on ECA loans over a ten or 12-year term. The expedit facilities contain affirmative covenantstamary for secured
financings. The facilities also contain net woithafhcial covenants. In addition, loans under the&@xport credit facilities
contain change of control provisions that grantiémelers the right to prepayment of their loanthevent of a change of
control, unless the lenders consent to the chahgentrol.

The export credit facilities require legal titlettee aircraft be transferred to and held by a speirpose company
controlled by the respective lenders. We will efméo lease agreements on these aircraft whictsteanhe risk and rewards
of ownership of the aircraft to AerCap. The obligas outstanding under the export credit faciliaeés secured by, among
other things, a pledge of the shares of the compdnigh holds legal title to the aircraft financeader the facility. Each
subsidiary’s obligations under the financings arargnteed by us.

ECA-guaranteed financings 2009 — A320 aircraft- In March 2009, we entered into a $846.0 milliopert
credit facility for the financing of up to 20 AirbuA320 aircraft. Funding under the facility is pieded by commercial banks,
but the repayment is guaranteed by the ECA. Tlezdst rate for the aircraft financed as of Decerdfiei2011, is fixed and
floating, with the fixed rate tranche bearing agtged average interest cost of 4.23%, and theifipaate tranche bearing
an average margin of 1.11% over three month USDORBWe are obligated to repay principal on ECA bawer a ten or
12-year term. The export credit facilities contaffirmative covenants customary for secured finagsi The facilities also
contain net worth financial covenants. In additimans under the 2009 export credit facilities eamthange of control
provisions that grant the lenders the right to pyepent of their loans in the event of a changeootrol, unless the lenders
consent to the change of control.

The export credit facilities require legal titlettee aircraft be transferred to and held by a sppeeirpose company
controlled by the respective lenders. We will efméo lease agreements on these aircraft whictsteanhe risk and rewards
of ownership of the aircraft to AerCap. The obligas outstanding under the export credit faciliges secured by, among
other things, a pledge of the shares of the compdnigh holds legal title to the aircraft financeader the facility. Each
subsidiary’s obligations under the financings arargnteed by us.

As of December 31, 2011, five A320 family aircraftder this facility have been delivered from thenofacturer.
Following the redemption of shares issued by AetMiensuch that AerCap AerVenture Holding NV becahee100%
owner of the issued share capital in AerVenturis, fcility will no longer be utilized. Only the Brrt Credit 2008 facility
will be available for the financing of future coatted Airbus deliveries subject to customary ECAditions.

At December 31, 2011, we had financed 44 aircnadien ECA-guaranteed financings. The net book vafue
aircraft pledged to the ECA was $2.0 billion at Beber 31, 2011.

ALS | debt—Aircraft Lease Securitisation Limited (“ALS 1”) ia special purpose company incorporated with
limited liability in Jersey, Channel Islands, ongust 10, 2005. The share capital of ALS | is owBBdL% by Jersey
charitable trusts and 4.9% by AerCap Ireland araddensolidated subsidiary. ALS | was formed f@ plurpose of raising
securitized debt financing on 42 of our aircrafiehhwere not then subject to other secured finggxi®n May 8, 2007, we
completed a refinancing of ALS | with the issuant&1.7 billion of securitized notes in one clas®\AA-rated class G-3
floating rate notes. The proceeds from the refimanwere used to redeem all outstanding ALS | detier than the most
junior class of notes, to refinance the indebtesieat had been incurred to purchase 24 previ@gsjyired aircraft, and to
finance the purchase of four additional new aitciatreasing ALS I's aircraft portfolio size to &ircraft. As a result of the
refinancing, in 2007, we recorded additional inséexpense of $27.4 million related to the writbeffunamortized debt
issuance costs. Following a number of aircraftsdteere are 51 aircraft in the ALS | portfoliodDecember 31, 2011.

The primary source of payments on the notes i®lpagments on the aircraft owned by the subsidianieALS I.
We retained the most junior class of notes in #wisgtization, as a result of which we still condate ALS I's results in our
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financial statements. The net book value of theaiaing 51 aircraft pledged as collateral for theusitization debt was $1.1
billion at December 31, 2011.

ALS 1 is bankruptcy-remote from us and the lenderALS | may only look to proceeds derived from 8%®ALS |
aircraft for repayment. The indenture agreemenichvboverns the securitized notes, require that Ah8ld a designated
amount of cash aside in restricted accounts faréutash flow requirements of ALS I. All cash hblidALS I is recorded as
restricted cash on our balance sheets. The indeatsio requires ALS | to comply with a number ofiggal and operating
covenants.

ALS Il debt—On June 26, 2008, we completed a securitizatiomhiich Aircraft Lease Securitisation Il Limited
(“ALS 11") issued securitized class A-1 notes atdss A-2 notes, rated A+ by Standard & Poor’s atdop Moody'’s. At
closing in June 2008, the class A-1 notes eaclaharlitstanding principal balance of zero, and wesged to commitment
holders. The commitment holders committed to adednnds, subject to certain conditions.

The principal balance of the class A-1 notes iaseel in an amount equal to the amount advanceddby e
commitment holder. Funded class A-1 notes may lbbanged for class A-2 notes subject to certain itiond. The class A-
1 notes are ranked pari passu with the class A&sno

The advances made by the commitment holders weledo purchase 30 aircraft from AerVenture Lagsl
Limited, a subsidiary of AerVenture Limited (ournsmlidated joint venture). All 30 aircraft have heatelivered to the
transaction and the 8Gircraft was delivered in May 2010. The 30 aircea among the 70 aircraft being delivered by
Airbus to AerVenture Limited between 2007 and 200He primary source of payments on the notes willdase payments
on the aircraft owned by subsidiaries of ALS Il.€Tfimal maturity date of the notes will be June 2638. During the year, a
portion of A-1 notes were exchanged for A-2 notes.

The notes are secured by security interests irpletijes or assignments of equity ownership andfiogade
interests in the subsidiaries of ALS Il as welbgsALS II's subsidiaries’ interests in leases o Hircraft they own, by cash
held by or for them and by their rights under agreets with the service providers. Rentals and vesgpaid under leases of
the ALS Il aircraft are placed in a collection ascnband paid out according to a priority of paynsent

At December 31, 2011 30 aircraft were financed ir8Al. The net book value of 30 aircraft pledgedcabateral
for the securitization debt was $1.1 billion at Peter 31, 2011.

Revolving credit facility—AerFunding 1 Limited (“AerFunding”) is a specialypose company incorporated with
limited liability in Bermuda. The share capital&€rFunding is owned 95% by a charitable trust a¥tddy AerCap Ireland;
AerFunding is a consolidated subsidiary. AerFundig formed for the purpose of acquiring used aft@ssets which we
acquire in the market. AerFunding entered into mmzourse senior secured revolving credit facditying 2006 in the
aggregate amount of up to $1.0 billion with a sgatgé of financial institutions led by UBS.

On June 10, 2010, the facility was amended andetha@ving loans under the UBS revolving credit fégi which
are divided into two classes, were amended. Thermar advance limit on class A loans was amend&¥@5.5 million
from $830.0 million and the maximum advance limit@ass B loans was amended to $144.5 million f$dm0.0 million.
The borrowing period during which new advances tmaynade under the facility expired on May 9, 2011.

On June 9, 2011, the facility was amended to aftmvan additional two year revolving period withhaiee year
term-out period, extending the transaction to R0#6. The maximum facility size was amended to $F#illion and the
commitment and borrowings were amended to a sitlghs of loans. In addition to UBS Securities Ll&hders to the
transaction are Credit Suisse AG, Citibank N.A, NoaGlobal Financial Products Inc. and Scotiabamtofe plc.

In addition to borrowings under the revolving ctddcilities, AerFunding has also issued subordidatotes to us
at each aircraft purchase. Borrowings under thelvévg credit facility can be used to finance betwé&3% and 78% of the
lower of the purchase price and the appraised \@ltige eligible aircraft. In addition, value enkarg expenditures and
required liquidity reserves are also funded bylémelers.

All borrowings under the revolving credit faciligre subject to the satisfaction of customary camustand
restrictions on the purchase of aircraft that waelslilt in our portfolio becoming too highly contated, with regard to
both aircraft type and geographical location. Bairms under the revolving credit facility are sesuiby, among other
things, security interests in and pledges or ass@gts of equity ownership and beneficial interésed| of the subsidiaries
of AerFunding, as well as by AerFunding’s interdstthe leases of its assets. Creditors of AerFumdiay only look to the
assets of AerFunding and its subsidiaries for reqt—the obligations of AerFunding 1 Limited arenfrecourse to us.
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The UBS revolving credit facility includes geneaaid operating covenants that restrict additionddlirtedness in
the AerFunding subsidiaries owning the relatedraftcthe payment of dividends and other limitatavhich are customary
for such credit facilities.

At December 31, 2011, we had financed 18 aircradien the UBS revolving credit facility. The net llomlue of
aircraft pledged to lenders under the credit faciias $0.6 billion at December 31, 2011.

Genesis securitization debt On December 19, 2006, Genesis Funding Limite&Gel, completed a
securitization and issued a single class of AAAdaB-1 floating rate notes. The proceeds of thestetion were used by
GFL to finance the acquisition of a portfolio of ditcraft. Following a humber of sales, there eé8aBcraft in the GFL
portfolio as of December 31, 2011. The primary sewf payments on the notes is the lease paymaritseaircraft owned
by the subsidiaries of GFL. The notes have the fitesfea financial guaranty insurance policy issumdFinancial Guaranty
Insurance Company, or FGIC, which has issued adiaaguaranty insurance policy to support the payhof interest when
due on the notes and the payment of the outstamatingipal balance of the notes on the final m&yulate of the notes and,
under certain other circumstances, prior thereto.

The notes initially were rated Aaa and AAA by Motdinvestors Service, Inc., or Moody's, and Stadd&r
Poor’s Rating Services or S&P, respectively. Thitng was based on FGIC's rating. FGIC has suffergdificant
downgrades of its ratings since the issuance ofitiies and is currently unrated by Moody’s and S&#a result, Moody's
and S&P have published stand-alone ratings of tHienGtes of A3 and A-, respectively.

Credit Agricole provides a liquidity facility in éhamount of $60.0 million, which may be drawn upopay
expenses of GFL and its subsidiaries, senior hpdgments and interest on the notes. The final ritptate of the notes is
December 22, 2032.

Interest on the notes are due and payable on ahiydydsis. Scheduled monthly principal paymentshennotes
commenced in December 2009 and, subject to satisfyertain debt service coverage ratios and othezrants, will
continue until December 2011. Since December 191 28Il revenues collected during each monthlyqeeare applied to
repay the outstanding principal balance of the s)aifter the payment of certain expenses and b#lities, including the
fees of the servicer, the liquidity facility proeidand the policy provider, interest on the notes iaterest rate swap
payments, all in accordance with the priority ofip&nts set forth in the indenture.

GFL may voluntarily redeem the new notes for a ngoléon price of the notes equal to the outstangimggcipal
balance of the notes. In addition, GFL must payaegrued but unpaid interest on the notes and ssmipm due to FGIC
upon redemption of the notes. GFL may redeem tkesrio whole or in part, provided that if a defandtice has been given
under the trust indenture or the maturity of anieedias been accelerated then GFL may only redeenotes in whole.

The notes are secured by first priority, perfectedurity interests in and pledges or assignmengsjaity ownership
and beneficial interests in the subsidiaries of (XRkir interests in the leases of the aircrafy thwn, cash held by or for
them and by their rights under agreements with GEQAe initial liquidity facility provider, hedgeoonterparties and the
policy provider. The notes are also secured bgradir similar interest in any of the aircraft i ghortfolio that are registered
in the United States or Ireland.

At December 31, 2011 38 aircraft were financechan&FL securitization. The net book value of 38raift pledged
as collateral for the securitization debt was $l#on at December 31, 2011.

TUI portfolio acquisition facility —In June 2008, AerCap Partners | Holding LimitedAerCap Partners |, a 50%
joint venture established between us and Deuc&lioation Funds, entered into a sale and leaselradisaction pursuant to
which it agreed to purchase 11 Boeing 737-800Bsiging 757-200 and two Boeing 767-300 aircraft fitwa TUI Travel
Group, or TUI, and lease the aircraft back to TUI.

To finance the purchase of the 19 aircraft, a slidasi of AerCap Partners | entered into a seniotilifg in an
amount of up to $448.6 million with Crédit Agricoléfw IPEX-Bank GmbH, Deutsche Bank AG London Brarmnd HSH
Nordbank AG which was arranged by Crédit Agricate &fW IPEX-Bank GmbH. The senior facility is dived into two
tranches, the first being used to finance the mgetof the 11 Boeing 737-800 aircraft and the sktoifinance the purchase
of the other eight aircraft. AerCap Partners | maptay the lenders for the amounts drawn on thiséaeility in monthly
installments starting on July 1, 2008 and the fiesg of each month thereafter (each a repaymeaj.dehte principal amount
outstanding under the loan in relation to the firahche must be repaid in full on April 1, 201%ldhe principal amount
outstanding under the loan in relation to the sddoanche on April 1, 2012.
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The aggregate principal amount of the loans oudstgnunder the senior facility as of December 3, RPwas
$262.3 million. Following drawdown of the amountsrélation to the 19 aircraft, the remaining conmatt under the
facility was cancelled subsequent to June 30, 2008.

Borrowings under the first tranche of the seniailiy bear interest at a floating interest rateook month LIBOR
plus a margin of 1.58% until April 1, 2013 and argia of 1.75% thereafter. Borrowings under the secwanche of the
senior facility bear interest at a floating inténege of one month LIBOR plus a margin of 2.00%&etest under the senior
facility is payable monthly in arrears on each sepant date. Borrowings under the AerCap Partné&silities may be
prepaid without penalty, except for break fundingts if payment is made on a day other than a mpatdate. The
maturity date of the senior facility will be, inggect of the first tranche, April 1, 2015, andréspect of the second tranche,
April 1, 2012. We are currently in the processesfinancing the second tranche of this facility.

If AerCap Partners | is the owner of the aircrafttbe relevant maturity date of the senior faci(jiyt option date)
relating to the 15 aircraft (April 1, 2015 with pest to the 11 Boeing 737-800 aircraft and Apri2Q12 with respect to the
remaining four aircraft) and amounts under thelitgaiemain outstanding with respect to those aiftcon that maturity date
of the senior facility (put option date), Crédit daple can require AerCap Holdings N.V. (i) to plase those aircraft, (ii) to
purchase those aircraft and the shares of theareldéessor of those aircraft or (iii) to purchase beneficial interest that
AerCap Partners | has in those aircraft. Créditiéae can, subject to certain provisions includige rights of Deucalion
Aviation Funds, also exercise the put option o\arCap Holdings N.V. insolvency event.

Borrowings under the senior facility are securedasgong other things, charges over the sharesi@aePartners
I, AerCap Partners | Holding Limited and Lantanacfaft Leasing Limited, charges over various bac¢oants, mortgages
over the financed aircraft and security assignmeftmter alia, the lease agreements and lettiecsedlit provided to
AerCap Partners | by Royal Bank of Scotland plcee $anior facility contains customary covenantssimured financings
through special purpose companies. AerCap PartigrEso subject to covenants included in theaefiaicility (a) to
provide loan-to-value ratio appraisals to the agenagreed dates and (b) that the ratio of trafichiecraft to all financed
aircraft must be at least 43%. The net book vafuibaircraft pledged to lenders under the creatitlity was $0.4 billion at
December 31, 2011.

SkyFunding Facility

General. On October 24, 2011, SkyFunding Limited, a whoNyned subsidiary of AerCap Ireland Limited,
entered into a $402.0 million credit facility, whigvas co-arranged by Crédit Agricole Corporate landstment Bank,
Norddeutsche Landesbank Girozentrale, Commonw8alitk of Australia, Landesbank Hessen-Thiringen Z&intrale and
DVB Bank SE. Crédit Agricole Corporate and Investiri®ank acted as co-ordinating bank and seniortagen

The ten-year credit facility will provide long-terfimancing for up to 12 Boeing 737-800 NG airciafbject to
leases with American Airlines Inc.

The loans under the facility are divided into semd@ns and subordinated loans. Each senior lenilgvarticipate
in senior loans with respect to the aircraft altedato such senior lender in an amount equal tgeitsor commitment.
AerCap Ireland Limited, as subordinated lender, ld@articipate in each subordinated loan in an amhtmbe agreed
between SkyFunding Limited and AerCap Ireland Ladifrom time to time.

As of December 31, 2011, four of the 12 aircraftehbeen delivered and financed under the facility,aggregate
principal amount of the senior loans outstandindeaurthe facility was $133.7 million and the undrasemior commitment
available for drawdown under the facility was $Z6@illion. Each senior loan for an undelivered giftis available for
drawdown up to three months after the end of thedaled delivery month for such undelivered aiitci@ince the
bankruptcy filing of American Airlines, as of Mar@3, 2012 we took delivery of another four airciafthe remaining 31
aircraft. As of March 23, 2012, eight aircraft hdeen financed under the facility.

All borrowings under the facility are subject t@tbatisfaction of customary conditions precedent.

The senior loans bear interest at a floating ister@te of one month LIBOR plus a margin of 2.8%%#yable
quarterly in arrears on each repayment date. SldiRgriLimited has fixed the debt on a number ofralfittwith a weighted
average interest cost of 4.39%, and has also ehiteiee certain interest rate caps.

All borrowings under the facility may be voluntgriprepaid, subject to minimum payment amounts anit@
provisions, and subject to a prepayment fee 0f%.00the amount prepaid if the voluntary prepayniemade before the
first anniversary of the drawdown, a prepaymentdie.50% of the amount prepaid if the voluntarggayment is made on
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or after the first and before the second annivgrethe drawdown and a prepayment fee of 1.00%h@amount prepaid if
the voluntary prepayment is made on or after tieerse and before the third anniversary of the drawdadrhere are no
prepayment penalties for any voluntary prepaymetaide on or after the third anniversary of the di@wmal

Mandatory prepayments of borrowings under theifgalre required under a number of circumstancetuding:
(a) upon the occurrence of a total loss with ressfzea financed aircraft (in which case mandatagpayment shall apply to
such affected aircraft), (b) if, as a result oharmge in law, any of the security documents cetasbs valid or enforceable,
(c) in respect of any loan, any of the insuranedetting to the applicable aircraft are not obtainedhaintained in
accordance with the requirements of the facilitgwech aircraft is operated in a place excluded frleeninsurance coverage
(unless such aircraft is covered by contingentrisusce policies taken out by the AerCap group) ai)dn(respect of any
loan, SkyFunding Limited enters into a replacentease in respect of the related aircraft which da#scomply with the
requirements of the facility.

We are obligated to repay the principal over aytear term from the initial drawdown date of eacéno
Borrowings under the senior facility are securedasgong other things, mortgages on the aircradigaments of
SkyFunding Limited's beneficial interest in the @wirust relating to each aircraft and SkyFundimgited's and the
relevant owner trustee's interests in the leasamdentation relating to each aircraft. The facitipntains customary
covenants for secured financings, including geremdl operating covenants.

At December 31, 2011, we had financed four airaratter the Skyfunding facility. The net book vabfeircraft
pledged to lenders under the facility was $0.4dsillat December 31, 2011.

Other debt—We have entered into various other commercial Benalncings to fund the purchase of individual or
small groups of aircraft and for general corpomateposes in respect of which the aggregate prihogtstanding as of
December 31, 2011 was $1.6 billion. These finarxinglude:

Amount outstanding at
December 31, 2011

(US dollars in thousands)

Pre-delivery payment facilitieS............ovvccemeeeecevevieeieeeeeeeeee, $47,436
Secured aircraft portfolio transactions......cceeeevvvevveeveeeeeeeennnnnn, 232,614
Secured aircraft finanCiNgS ..........oooi i 1,000,302
Facilities for general corporate purpoSes.......cccccccveeeeereccnnnennn, 170,000
Japanese operating [€ase...............e e 75,011
Other fiNANCINGS ...voovieeeee e et e e e e e eeeaeeeeeeeeees 42,835
TOMAL et $1,568,198

The financings mature at various dates through 20B8 interest rates are based on fixed or flodtiBPR rates,
with spreads on the floating rate transactionsirangp between 0.24% and 5.50% or fixed rate batvie88% and 12.00%.
The majority of the financings are secured by, agnatiher things, a pledge of the shares of the didy&@s owning the
related aircraft, a guarantee from us and, in oedases, a mortgage on the applicable aircraftofAdur financings contain
affirmative covenants customary for secured finagsi At December 31, 2011, we had financed 51aitrand seven
engines under other debt. The net book value cditteeaft pledged to other commercial bank finagsiwas $1.7 billion at
December 31, 2011.

15. Provision for onerous contracts

Provision for onerous contracts relates to thefoithg item:

2010 2011
Lease-in, lease-out tranSactions...........cueeeeeeeereriinieereerinnenneennn.. $12,928  $3,971
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The movement in the provision for onerous contraatsbe summarized as follows:

2010 2011
Balance January 1,.........coooiuuiiiieeiiiceeciiieee et $22,363 $12,928
Movements
Release to operating 1€ase-in COStS ........ccowwerreeeeeeeeeenn, (9,435) (8,957)

$12,928 $3,971

Accrual for onerous contracts relates to leasée@se-out transactions (“LILO”). At December 3012, we leased-
in four aircraft from two different lessors undgrevating head leases that mature between 20120431 2t December 31,
2011, we had entered into sublease agreementseutral different customers covering these sangeadiir For all four
aircraft, the lease termination dates of the sidgle@re matched to the lease termination dates tirelbead leases. The
contracted sublease receipts are insufficient ¥@icour monthly obligations under the head leahese transactions are

recorded at their net present value.

We have established a liability equal to the défere between the present value of head lease egand the
present value of sublease revenue, discountechadaiate discount rates. The amount of this lisbdmortizes to income
monthly on a constant yield basis as we meet oligatipns under the head leases.

Following is a summary of the undiscounted congdcehinimum lease payments under the respective lbaads
and subleases at December 31, 2011:

Head lease Sublease

payments receipts
20002 ————————— $11,822 $7,550
20—t — 510

$11,822  $8,060

As referenced in Note 3, we are required, in sametances, to maintain deposits in restricted adsoumto cash-
back letters of credit which are security to thepective headlessors for our obligations undetth® transactions.

16. Income taxes

We have subsidiaries in a number of tax jurisdiegigrincipally, The Netherlands, Ireland, the BdiStates of
America and Sweden. Income tax expense by tadjatien is summarized below for the periods indécht

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011

Deferred tax expense (benefit)
The NEtherlands ........ccoooviiiiiiee e $25,102 $5,065
IFEIAN ... 18,087 6,668
United States Of AMEriCa .........uuuuviiiiiiiiiiieeiiieee s (2,494) 7,847
SWEAEN ...ttt et e e et et e e 6 633
40,701 20,213

Current tax expense (benefit)

United States Of AMErICa .........uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieee s (764) (1,730)
The Netherlands ........ccvveviiiii e 673 1,250
(91) (480)
$40,610 $19,733

Income tax expense (Denefit) ......cooceiiiiceeee
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Reconciliation of statutory income tax expensedtma income tax expense is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate(a)-..........cccvveeeeren. $63,339  $57,398
Valuation alloWanCe .............cooiiiiiiie s et 27,400 9,661
Tax on global activities(D).........oeiri i, (50,129) (47,326)

(22,729)  (37,665)

Actual income tax expense (DENEFit) .........ccceeeceiueiiiiieiiiiciie e, $40,610  $19,733

€) The statutory income tax rate in the Netherlands 280% for the year ended December 31, 2010 ahd. 20

(b) The tax variance as a result of global activiteemainly caused by our operations in countries wikhwer
statutory tax rate than the statutory tax ratehe Wetherlands.

The calculation of income for tax purposes diffeignificantly from book income. Deferred income tayrovided
to reflect the impact of temporary differences bewthe amounts of assets and liabilities for firglmeporting purposes
and such amounts as measured under tax law irati@ug jurisdictions. Tax loss carryforwards andederated tax
depreciation on flight equipment held for operatiegses give rise to the most significant timinedences. In addition, the
U.S. subsidiaries have significant timing differernc respect of payments and receipts under tlse{ga lease-out
transactions described in Note 15 and timing déffiees with respect to capitalized expenses.

The following tables describe the principal compuref our deferred tax assets and liabilitiesurisfiction:

December 31, 2010

The
Netherlands Ireland U.sS. Sweden
Depreciation/IMPairMeENt .............ccueevr e ereeeereeeereeeereeeveeennas $(95,105) $80,883 $33,029 $—
3= o) ARSI — 18,662 — —
Share-based compensation...........ccooovivcveececcieeiee e — — (778) —
10 1YY 0170 Y25 PSR — — (6,575) —
T e= g Lo ] o] (=TSRSS — 3,800 4,581 —
Lessee reCceivables .........ccoooviiiii i — — (611) —
LOSS-MakiNg CONrACES .....vvvviiiiiiiiiiiie s e e e e e e e e e e s — — (481) —
INEEIESE EXPEINSE ..veiiiieeiiieieie e eeeeeee et e e e e e e — — (12,936) —
Accrued maintenance liability .............ooi i (5,682) (788) (6,804) —
Obligations under capital leases and debt obligatio.................. — (6,484) — —
INVESTMENTS ..t — (2,500) — —
Losses and credits forward ..............oooieeeeeei (64,346) (126,049) (15,745) (8,471)
L@ (3T PSP EPPPSUPPRP (4,610) 1,571 (3,457) —
Valuation allowance on taxX aSSets ...........ceeeeeeiiiumvreiiiiiieeeeeeeees 44,696 — — —
Net deferred tax (asset) iaDility............oeceevveevvereeeeereereees $(125,047) _ $(30,905)  $(9,777) __ $(8,471)
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December 31, 2011

The
Netherlands Ireland u.s. Sweden
Depreciation/IMpPairMeNt.............oeeeiiuvmmm e e e e eeivreeeeeeseirreeee e $(94,538) $152,948 $(1,058) $—
5= o) AU ETT T PPRRR — 16,516 — —
Share-based compensation...........ccooovivceecceccieeeee e, — — (132) —
T e= g Lo ] o] (=TSR (996) 2,452 — —
LOSS-MakiNg CONrACES .....vvviviiiiiiiiiiie s e e e e e e e e — — 1,828 —
INEEIESE EXPENSE ..viiiiieiiiiiieie e eeeeeee et e e e e e e — — (8,174) —
Accrued maintenance liability .............ooi i (2,741) (6,742) (1,731) —
Obligations under capital leases and debt obligatio.................. — (6,064) — —
INVESTMENTS .. — (2,500) — —
Losses and credits forward ..............oooioeeeeei (73,861) (186,477) (6,058) (7,316)
ONET e e (1,368) 1,158 946 55
Valuation allowance on taxX aSSetsS ..........cceeeeeeiiiumvreviirieeeeeeeeeens 54,357 — — —
Net deferred tax (asset) liaDility............oeceevvvevevereeeeereeeeees $(119,147 _ $(28,709) _ $(14,379) _ $(7,261)

The change in the valuation allowance for the detbtax asset has been as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011
Valuation allowance at beginning of period............ccccccoveviieeieiiiiiec e, $17,296 $44,696
Increase of allowance to income tax ProViSiON. .o ..cveeeeeeeieiiiiiiiieeeeeee 27,400 9,661
Valuation allowance at end of pPeriod...........cccceveiiiiiiiiiie e, $44,696 $54,357

We did not have any unrecognized tax benefitseatenber 31, 2010 and 2011.

Our primary tax jurisdictions are the Netherlaridsited States, Ireland and Sweden. Our tax returiifie
Netherlands are open for examination from 2006 éodwin Ireland from 2007 forward, in Sweden fro@®8 forward and
in the United States from 2008 forward. None of @rreturns are currently subject to examination.

Our policy is that we recognize accrued interesthenunderpayment of income taxes as a componéntesést
expense and penalties associated with tax liasldis a component of income tax expense. Duringy, 204 did not incur
any interest on tax payments. There was no acéntiebst or accrued penalties on tax paymentdlareianuary 1, 2011 or
December 31, 2011.

The Netherlands

The majority of our Netherlands subsidiaries anme pba single Netherlands fiscal unity and arduded in a
consolidated tax filing. Due to the existence ¢éiast bearing intercompany liabilities, curremtéapenses are limited with
respect to the Netherlands subsidiaries. The laasg¢€redits forward expire with time which trigg¢he valuation
allowance. Deferred income tax is calculated usiiregNetherlands corporate income tax rate (25%3lkgd to be in effect
when the temporary differences reverse.

Ireland

Since 2006, the enacted Irish tax rate is 12.5%.g@incipal Irish tax-resident operating subsidiaas significant
losses carry forward at December 31, 2011 whick gse to deferred tax assets. The availabilitthefe losses does not
expire with time. In addition, the vast majorityaf of our Irish tax-resident subsidiaries arattad to accelerated aircraft
depreciation for tax purposes and offset net taxatdome and loss within our Irish tax group of pamies within a given
tax year. Accordingly, no Irish tax charge aroserdythe year. Based on projected taxable prdfitsur Irish subsidiaries,
including our principal Irish tax-resident operatisubsidiary where we hold significant Irish tagdes, we expect to recover
the full value of our Irish tax assets and haveraobgnized a valuation allowance against suchtaas®ecember 31, 2011.

54



United States of America

Our U.S. subsidiaries are assessable to federadtatelU.S. taxes. Beginning with the tax year mgdi
December 31, 2006, we filed a consolidated fedacame tax return in the U.S. which includes thecamts of
AeroTurbine until the date the shares of AeroTuebirere sold (October 7, 2011). The blended federdlistate tax rate
applicable to our consolidated U.S. group is 37f6f4he year ended December 31, 2011. Due to tistesce of tax losses,
which expire over time, no current tax expenseainshe U.S. in 2011. Based on projected taxatdétp in our U.S.
subsidiaries, we expect to recover the full valiew U.S. tax assets and have not recognizeduatiah allowance against
such assets at December 31, 2011.

Sweden

The Swedish entity has significant losses carrw&d at December 31, 2011, which give rise to detktax assets.
The availability of these losses does not expitth time. Accordingly, no Swedish current tax chaagese during the year.
Based on projected taxable profits in our Swedigisgliaries we expect to recover the full valuewf Swedish tax assets
and have not recognized a valuation allowance aebeer 31, 2011.

17. Minority interest, net of tax

The movement in minority interest, net of tax, @nsummarized as follows:

2010 2011

Balance January 1,.........coooiuuiiiieeiiiceeciiie et $215,303 $6,047
Movements

Capital contributions from minority interests..........cccccccceeeeeenn. 37,988 —
Sale to joint venture partner (2,072) —
Purchase of minority interest (1) ........veeeeeeeeeieeieeeeeeeeee e (263,298) —
Sale of minority iNterest .............ccoviimeeeiii i, — (492)
Minority interest income for the year........ccoceeveeceeeeeeeneeneane, 18,126 526
Balance DECEMDET 31, .......c.cviveveereeee s e s e eseeeeseenen e $6,047 $6,081

(1) In November 2010, we repurchased Waha's 50% entityest in AerVenture. The purchase is accourded f
as an equity transaction and no gain or loss wesgrézed. The purchase decreased shareholdersy doyui
$995, through the elimination of the related mithomterest.

18. Share capital

From the date of our acquisition of AerCap B.Vjust prior to our initial public offering, we weeeNetherlands
limited partnership under the name of AerCap Hadi.V. with $370,000 of partnership capital hefddur limited
partners and one general partner, all located keitburg. In anticipation of our public offering, #&ap Holdings N.V. was
formed with 45,000 shares held by the same Luxegbntities. AerCap Holdings N.V. issued one adddicshare to
acquire all of the assets and liabilities of Aer@&gdings C.V. in a common control transaction aftkich, AerCap
Holdings C.V. was put in liquidation. On Novemb&; 2006, we effected a 1,738.6 for one share igdlitlting in total
shares issued and outstanding of 78,236,957 andeddhe par value of each ordinary share fromGEt@0.01. Because
our conversion from a Netherlands limited partnigrsh a Netherlands public limited liability compawas accomplished in
a common control transaction, we have retroactivedigcted our capital structure during the pemduten our group was
owned by AerCap Holdings C.V. (limited partnershag)if it were owned by AerCap Holdings N.V. based’8,236,957
shares outstanding.

On November 27, 2006, we sold 6,800,000 share23p8&r share in an initial public offering. We riweg net
proceeds of $143,017 after deducting underwritiisgalints and commissions and offering expenseshpapg us. We used
the net proceeds from the initial public offeringgpexisting cash to retire $168,600 of senior sutgbrdinated debt of
AeroTurbine. In connection with the early retirernefithis debt, we wrote off $3,300 of debt issuanosts and paid
prepayment penalties of $1,686. On November 276288 completed the initial public offering of 2601000 (including
the above mentioned 6,800,000 shares) of our andsteares on The New York Stock Exchange and orusiug, 2007 we
completed the secondary offering of 20,000,000taxtdil ordinary shares on The New York Stock ExgfearOn March 25,

55



2010, the all-share acquisition of Genesis was ¢eteg and increased our outstanding ordinary sharé&#,348,858. On
November 11, 2010, we completed a transaction Alith Dhabi-based investment holding company Wahapaks of this
transaction our outstanding ordinary shares inegtay 29,846,611. On August 5, 2011 and Septenthe2(ill, we
announced that AerCap’s Board of Directors appravstare repurchase program. On November 2, 20Tbmpleted the
share repurchase program for 2011. In total weieed|®,402,663 ordinary shares for a consideraifd$100.0 million with
an average share price of $10.64.

As of December 31, 2011, our authorized share @aginsists of 250,000,000 ordinary shares witaravalue of
€0.01. Our outstanding ordinary share capital aeeember 31, 2011 included 149,232,426 ordinhayes of which
9,332,982 ordinary shares are held as treasurk.stoc

The additional paid-in capital is also acknowledgsdgaid-in capital for tax purposes.
19. Share-based compensation
Cerberus Funds Equity Grants

Effective June 30, 2005, companies controlled byp&eis (“Cerberus Funds”) which indirectly owned®%®of our
equity interests put into place an Equity Incenttan (“Cerberus Funds Equity Plan”) under whichmhbers of our senior
management, Board of Directors and an employeeedfe€us (the “participants”) were granted eithstrieted shares or
share options (“Cerberus Funds Equity Grants”uithscompanies. The value of the Cerberus FundsyEGuants is
derived exclusively with reference to the valumof shares.

In addition to formal vesting restrictions, thentsrof the Cerberus Funds Equity Grants containedigions which
allowed the Cerberus Funds to repurchase anycgestrshares or shares obtained through the exafca®ions upon the
occurrence of certain employment termination eventessation of service on the board of diredimrshare options issued
to our independent directors. All holders of Ceusgfund Equity Grants signed a Share Agreemertdrinection with our
initial public offering which gives each of thenethght to exchange their Cerberus Fund sharelase options for our
shares or options on our shares directly with theb€rus Funds and which limited the repurchase dfjthe Cerberus
Funds to the period prior to November 27, 2008. &ehange right was exercisable as of Novembe2@J8 and is valid
for a period of three years from that date, and sudisequently extended with two years until Noven2e 2013. As of
November 27, 2008, the participants are no longgtricted from selling their vested interests in shares and the Cerberus
Funds’ rights to repurchase restricted sharesanestobtained through the exercise of options weot@in employment
termination rights has lapsed. All share optioranted under the Cerberus Funds Equity Plan areisabte for a period of
ten years from the date of issuance.

Since all of the Cerberus Fund Equity Grants isaredshares or share options in the Cerberus Famdisince the
right of the holders of the Cerberus Funds Equitsr® to exchange their shares in the CerberussHonaur shares
starting November 27, 2008 is not directly with g existence of the restricted share and shdiensfs not dilutive to our
share ownership.

The fair values of all shares and share optiongsvith a zero strike price (all of which wereuisd prior to our
initial public offering in 2006), were calculated their respective grant dates based on the vdlaarainderlying shares at
the time of our initial public offering. To this kee, a discount for lack of marketability was apglito reflect the fact that
(i) the shares being valued represent an illiquidamity interest in a closely-held indirect holdiogmpany without access to
a recognized market and (ii) the shares are sutgesijnificant restrictions which prevent thearsfer or pledge. The
amount of compensation expense recognized folicestrshares is derived with reference to the exoé&ir market value
of the shares at the date of grant over the prde, jif any. The restricted shares granted to thkb€us employee are subject
to mark-to-market valuations at each reportingqeeri

The amount of expense recognized with respectdoesbptions with a strike price is based on thevalue of the
option using a Black-Scholes option pricing moddide value of each of the Cerberus Funds Equity Griarrecognized on
a straight-line basis over the applicable vestiegquls.

For options valued with a Black-Scholes optionipdanodel, we have used the following assumptions:

AV o] = L1 1 YOO URP 38.25%-39.90%
EXpected lIife. ... 5.00-5.93 years
Risk-free INterest rate ..........uvevieiiiiiiiiee e 4.67%-4.72%
Dividend Yield Fate .........uuueeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 0.00%

56



Since our shares had not traded in the public maitkidne time of the valuations, we derived ourtibty
assumptions by comparison to peer group compahiesexpected life represents the period of timeofiteons are expected
to be outstanding. The risk free rate is basechertS. Treasury yield curve in effect at the tihgrant and which has a
term equal to the expected life of the options. &kgected dividend yield is based on our historgaifpaying regular
dividends in the past and our current intentiontagiay regular dividends in the foreseeable futtitee differing
assumptions used result from the differences ireetgul life among the different tranches of shateop valued.

A summary of activity during the years ended Decen#d, 2010 and 2011 for all issuances under thbebas
Funds Equity Plan is set forth below. Because thaber of shares and share options under the Cerbainds Equity Plan
are shares and share options of the Cerberus Fonvdsyship interests in the table below have bésed as the equivalent
number of our shares which are represented by ¢nlee@us Funds shares.

Number of
Restricted
Shares/Options
Beginning outstanding January 1, 2010 .................. 2,211,360
Exercises of Cerberus Funds shares/options foctdire
holdings of AerCap shares............cccovvimmmmennnns (1,465,395)

Ending outstanding December 31, 2010........comm.. 745,965
Beginning outstanding January 1, 2011 .......cccc...... 745,965
FOrfEItUIES .. —
Ending outstanding December 31, 2011....... .o 745,965

There are no remaining share options which altesabject to future vesting criteria.

AerCap Holdings NV Equity Grants

On October 31, 2006, we implemented an equity itheemplan that is designed to promote our interbgts
enabling us to attract, retain and motivate dine;temployees, consultants and advisors and dlgjninterests with ours
(“NV Equity Plan”). The NV Equity Plan provides ftine grant of nonqualified share options, incensiiare options, share
appreciation rights, restricted share, restricteate units and other share awards (“NV Equity G'anib participants of the
plan selected by the Nomination and Compensatianr@ittee of our Board of Directors. Subject to certadjustments, the
maximum number of equity awards available to begé under the plan is equivalent to 4,251,848 Gomis shares.

The terms and conditions of NV Equity Grants, inlihg vesting provisions for share options, are rheitged by
the Nomination and Compensation Committee, exd®it tinless otherwise determined by the Nominaiuh
Compensation Committee, or as set forth in an awgrdement: (a) each NV Equity Grant is granteddoryears from the
date of grant, or, in the case of certain key eygxs, (i.e., employees owning more than 10% obedinary shares), for
five years from the date of grant; provided, howewe share option period may extend beyond tersyfeam the date of
grant; (b) the option price per share for incensliare options may not be less than 100% of tiherfaiket value of the
ordinary shares except that the option price paresfor a key employee may not be less than 1108tecfir market value
of the ordinary shares at the time the incentisaloption is granted; and (c) incentive shareoogtimay only be issued to
the extent the aggregate fair market value of shaith respect to the exercise of the incentiveeslbations for the first time
by an option holder during any calendar year is032@0 or less, with any additional share optioriadgp&reated as
nonqualified share options. As of December 31, 20&lhave 2,012,254 share options outstanding uhdedV Equity
Plan which have been granted to certain of oureciirand — by now- former employees. In additiompfadecember 31,
2011, we have 44,949 share options outstandingruhdeNV Equity Plan which have been granted tdadeiof our current
and —by now- former Non-Executive Directors.
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Following is a summary of issuances to-date uriteeNV Equity Plan:

Weighted Average

Number of Options Exercise Price
Options outstanding at January 1, 2010.....cceeeiiiiiiiieieeeeeiee s 2,575,000 NA
FOMEITUIES ...ttt (612,500) NA
Options iSSUE AUIING YEA ........uuurereees s eeeeeeeeeeaaaaaaaaaaaaeasaaaaaaenneene 321,041 22.54
Options outstanding at December 31, 2010....cccccceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, 2,283,541 NA
Options outstanding at January 1, 2011 ..... oo 2,283,541 NA
FOMRITUIES ...ttt (150,000) NA
Options exercised dUriNg YEA ..........uui it aoooe e (100,000) 2.95
Options iSSUE AUIING YEA ........uuuueeeees s eeeeeeeeeeeaaaaaaaaaaaeesaaaaaannneenes 23,662 11.29
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011...ccccceeeeiiiiiiiiiicnneinniineeeeeee, 2,057,203 NA

The weighted average remaining contractual terthe@®.1 million options outstanding at DecemberZ,1 is 6.1
years. The weighted average grant date fair vaueptions issued in 2008 is $1.52 per option. Tshare-based
compensation recognized for the above options @339 and $1,431 for the years ending Decembe2@l) and 2011,
respectively. In light of the difficult economicronment prevailing at the end of 2008, the Nortioraand Compensation
Committee adjusted the performance criteria forpiagormance tranches relating to fiscal years 22020 and 2011. This
change has been accounted for as a modificatitretdlV Equity Plan with respect to the performabesed options for
those years and the weighted average fair valuagedior issuances which include the tranches stitgetbe modification
include the fair values as of the date of modifaatFor both the original and modified award, uggtriteria were not
probable of being met at the time of the modifizatitherefore no additional expense was recograsealresult of the
modification. As of December 31, 2011, we have cletey recognized the share-based compensatiomegpeelated
to NV Equity Grants. There are no remaining shat&goas which are still subject to future vestingeia.

The value of the options issued under the NV EgRian was calculated by a Black-Scholes optioniqgionodel
using the following assumptions:

RV /0= L1 1 Y/ RSO SRR 33.92%-38.42%
EXpected lIife ... 5.33-6.53 years
Risk-free INterest rate ........c.ueevveiiiiiiiiee e 1.89%-4.20%
Dividend Yield Fate .........uueeeeiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e 0.00%

Volatility assumptions were derived by comparisompeer group companies due to the lack of sigaifi¢crading
history in our shares. The expected life represingtperiod of time the options are expected todistanding. The risk free
rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvdfaceat the time of grant and which has a terma¢tiuthe expected life of
the options. The expected dividend yield is basedw history of not paying regular dividends ie fast and our current
intention not to pay regular dividends in the feable future. The differing assumptions used résuh the differing fair
value dates among the different tranches (timeéuaseperformance- based).

In addition to the share options, as of DecembefB11 a total number of 1,760,000 AER restrictesks units are
outstanding under the NV Equity Plan which havenbgmanted to certain of our employees. All restdicshare units are
subject to vesting conditions. 925,000 of thestiodsd share units will vest, subject to the vagttonditions, on May 31,
2015. 435,000 of these restricted share unitsweilt, subject to the vesting conditions, on MarthZ915. 100,000 of these
restricted share units will vest, subject to thstiviy conditions, on February 28, 2015. 100,00these restricted share units
will vest, subject to the vesting conditions, onyM&d, 2014. The remaining 200,000 share unitsweidit, subject to the
vesting conditions, on May 31, 2013. Assuming tsiablished performance criteria are met and thdorieitures occur,
we expect to recognize share-based compensatitedeb NV restricted share units of approximagdys million during
2012, $5.2 million during 2013, $4.8 million duri2§14 and $1.7 million in 2015.
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20. Segment information
Reportable Segments

Following the sale of AeroTurbine we manage ouinmass, analyze and report our results of operatiartbe basis of
one business segment—Ileasing, financing, salemandgement of commercial aircraft. The leasingyfaing and sales of
engines and parts (“Engine and parts”) is includdtlis segment as this constitutes an insignifigant of our business after
the sale of AeroTurbine.

The following table sets forth the percentage af&revenue attributable to individual countriggsesenting at
least 10% of total lease revenue in any year basazhch airline’s principal place of business far years indicated:

2010 2011
RUSSIA ..ttt 10.8% 9.8%
GBIMNANY ...ttt et e e e e e e e mmmmmaaab bt bt e ettt e e e eeaaaaaaaaaaasaeaaaannnnnnaes 11.4% 9.7%

The following table sets forth the percentage afjidived assets (flight equipment and intangibleess) attributable
to individual countries representing at least 10%otal long-lived assets in 2011 based on eadimais principal place of
business for the years indicated:

2011

[ 0T = 10.7%

The following table sets forth the lease revenuenmiividual country based on each airline’s prpatiplace of
business for the year indicated:

Country 2010 lease revenue 2011 lease revenue
VLT I USRS $103,305 $108,466
United States Of AMEIICA .......coieiiii et e e e e e e e e 76,505 106,918
(CT=T 00 F=1 0 )Y TP PUPTPRTTRR 109,783 97,975
UK et ettt et e e e et e et e e et e eateeena e et e e et eatn——————_ 32,719 73,808
(O o1 o T WO PPRRRR 42,941 69,555
0] (=T VPSPPSR PPRRR 29,461 45,555
[T 7= PSPPSR 38,376 45,096
[gTo o] =TT I WU PP OO 49,540 39,875
7= Y2 PRRPEPRS 26,970 39,399
[T = Y P 22,674 38,016
= 1 [ PP 35,059 36,530
BIAZIl....evitiiteee it e et aaaeeaaeteeere bbb ————. 20,578 29,329
0] 18 o - PRSPPI 28,071 25,971
(OF=1 ¢ 7= (o F- N0 PSPPI 13,701 25,872
TUPK Y ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e aabnbe e et e et e e e aaaaaaeeeeeesanns 23,740 22,886
[ T2 11 = T o O PP 19,727 21,295
(O] 1 31T PP UUUPPURRR 287,024 279,995
o] = | OO RRUPPPPOR $960,174 $1,106,541

During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2f@llease revenue and no long-lived assets weibud#tble to
The Netherlands, our country of domicile.

21. Selling, general and administrative expenses

We had 356 (including 208 employed by AeroTurbimed 153 persons in employment as of December 31 20
and 2011, respectively.
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Selling, general and administrative expenses ircthé following expenses:

Year ended December 31,

2010 2011
Personnel eXpenses (1) (3)...ccveecree e esveeerveessreeereeaeseeenns $55,623 $69,176
SOCIAl SECUIMIES ..eevieiiiiiiiiie ettt e eee e 4,308 4,257
PENSIONS ...ttt oe e e e e 1,967 2,089
Other personnel EXPENSES .........cvveeeeeiiieeeeeeeee e, 3,062 3,002
Travel eXpensSes .......cccovvvevveeeccevev e 7,812 8,691
Professional services..........ccccoovuvviicceemmnene 6,893 17,007
OffiCe EXPENSES ....uvvvriiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e, 10,047 9,661
Directors eXpenses.........uueeeeeeeieeieeeeacccenens 4,789 5,582
Aircraft management fee (2)...........cccccvveeee 6,395 26,841
Mark-to-market on derivative instruments and fonetgirrency
FESUILS...ovviiiiiie e i e (1,651) 2,811
Other eXPEeNSES.......cccovvevievccciieeeeeeeeeeeee 10,983 10,790
$120,228 $159,907

(1) Includes share-based compensation of $3.4 milli@h%¥.9 million in the years ended December 310201
2011, respectively.

(2) Includes a one-off charge of $24.5 million relatinghe buy-out of the Genesis portfolio serviciights in the year
ended December 31, 2011.

(3) Includes termination and severance payments of i®8ldn in the year ended December 31, 2011.

We incur Euro-denominated expenses in connectitim auir offices in The Netherlands and Ireland. theryear
ended December 31, 2011, our aggregate expensesoiated in currencies other than the US dollachsas payroll and
office costs and professional advisory costs, &3 million in US dollar equivalents and repreedr32.7% of total
selling, general and administrative expenses.

The table below provides the number of our empleyseeach of our principal geographical locationsfethe
dates indicated.

Location December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Amsterdam, The Netherlands...................... 70 74
Shannon, Ireland............cccccoooovviiiiiieeenn. 55 54
Fort Lauderdale, FL........ccccooeeiviviiieii e 17 15
Miami, FL(L)..oooeiriiiiiiiiiiieieeees 126 —
Goodyear, AZ(L) .....uueeeeeeeeeiiiiaaaaaaaae i 44 —
Other (1, 2) oo 44 10
TOtal..ccooieeeeecce e 356 153

(1) For the year ended December 31 2010 thesadosahcluded employees of AeroTurbine which weuaregl in
2006 and sold in 2011.

(2) We lease small offices in Shanghai (China),Wmited Arab Emirates and Singapore.
22. Asset impairment

Asset impairment includes the following expenses:

2010 2011
Impairment of flight equipment............ccooeeei i $22,631 $35,848
Reversal of impairment of flight equipment... .. evvvvieiiiieiiiriiiieeeeeee, (2,460) (8,771)
Intangible [ease Premiumi. ... ... .. e 2,673 1,173

$22,844 $28,250
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Our long-lived assets include: flight equipment;antory and finite-lived intangible assets. We tesg-lived
assets for impairment whenever events or changascimmstances indicate that the assets’ carryinguat is not
recoverable from its fair value.

We performed an impairment analysis of our longdivassets during the year 2011 and as of Decerib@031. In
this impairment analysis, we focused on aircrafeolthan 15 years, since the cash flows suppootimgarrying values of
those aircraft are more dependent upon curreng leastracts, which leases are more sensitive.ditiad, we believe that
residual values of older aircraft are more expdeatbn-recoverable declines in value in the curesmnomic environment.
If conditions again worsen, significant uncertagstmay cause a potential adverse impact on oundsssiln particular, our
estimates and assumptions regarding forecastedloaghfrom our long-lived assets would need tad@ssessed. This
includes the duration of the economic downturn glaith the timing and strength of the pending reagyboth of which
are important variables for purposes of our longdi asset impairment tests. Any of our assumptioag prove to be
inaccurate which could adversely impact forecastesh flows of certain long-lived assets, especfaliyaircraft older than
15 years.

Based on our estimate of fair value as of DecerBtheP011, we recorded an impairment on our flightipment of
$35.8 million and a reversal of $8.8 million. Ompairment analysis also resulted in an impairmentur finite-lived
intangible assets of $1.2 million, which was trigggeby renegotiated contracts.

The following assumptions drive the discounted dislis: contracted lease rents per aircraft throcgient lease
expiry, subsequent re-lease rates based on cunaaketing information and residual values baseduwrent market
transactions. We review and stress test our kayngstsons to reflect any observed weakness in thbajleconomic
environment. Further deterioration of the globaremmic environment and a further decrease of dtreadues might have a
negative effect on the discounted cash flows oo&drcraft and might trigger further impairments.

There can be no assurance that the Company’s ésiraad assumptions regarding the economic enveatrar
the period or strength of recovery, made for puegaxf the long-lived asset impairment tests witlyerto be accurate
predictions of the future. A deterioration in tHetzal economic environment and a decrease of sggataialues will have a
negative effect on fair values, which might thégder further impairments on our assets.

23. Earnings per ordinary share

Basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) is ledémliby dividing net income by the weighted averafjour
ordinary shares outstanding. As disclosed in N&teHere are 3.8 million share options and resticthares outstanding
under the NV Equity Plan, however the diluted eagriper ordinary share is insignificant and thexefwt different from
the basic earnings per ordinary share. The compuatabf basic and diluted earnings per ordinaryesifiar the periods
indicated below are shown in the following table:

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Net income for the computation of basic and dilutadhings per share $195,408 $172,314
Weighted average ordinary shares outStandingummmm««eeeeeeeeeesameeeeeenns, 114,952,639 146,587,752
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per ordinary Sha..........ccccccceeeeeennn. $1.70 $1.18

24. Related party transactions

AerDragon consists of two joint venture companieagon Aviation Leasing Company Limited, or Dragbased
in China and AerDragon Aviation Partners Limitedd@rDragon, based in Ireland. Both companies aneeaib0% by
China Aviation Supplies Holding Company, 25% byiliffes of Crédit Agricole and 25% by AerCap. 1020 AerCap
assigned a purchase right it had with Airbus uenCap’s 1999 forward order agreement relatingté\a20 aircraft
which was then directly acquired by AerDragon. didition, during 2007 AerCap sold an A320 aircrhfittwas subject to a
lease with an airline to AerDragon and guaranteerbpagon’s performance under the debt which wasrasd by
AerDragon from AerCap in the transaction. Bothhede transactions were executed at terms, whidbeli®ve reflected
market conditions at the time. AerCap providesdeaanagement, insurance management and aircraftraasagement
services to AerDragon. AerCap charged AerDragata of $0.7 million as a guarantee fee and fos¢hmanagement
services during 2011. We apply net asset valuedo25% investment in both joint venture compamdesordingly, the
income statement effects of all transactions wiitiee of the joint venture companies are eliminatedur financial
statements.
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AerCo is an aircraft securitization vehicle fromiathwe hold all of the most junior class of subaated notes and
some notes immediately senior to those junior ndés do not recognize value for the AerCo notesctvive still hold on
our consolidated balance sheets. Through March 2#@0&onsolidated AerCo, but we deconsolidated étecle in
accordance with GAAP at that time. Subsequentealtconsolidation of AerCo, we have received isterem AerCo on
its D note investment of $1.7 million, $0.8 milligh1.7 million and $0.4 million for the six monteded June 30, 2005, the
period from June 27, 2005 to December 31, 2005y¢he ended December 31, 2006 and the year endszhiber 31, 2007,
respectively. In addition, we provide a varietynminagement services to AerCo for which we receiged of $4.1 and $3.3
million the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2@kpgectively.

On November 11, 2010 we issued approximately 29l&mnew shares to Waha. In exchange, we rece$iib
million in cash, Waha's 50% interest in the joietture company, a 40% interest in Waha's 10-airgaftfolio and a 50%
interest in four CRJ aircraft.

25. Commitments and contingencies

Property and other rental commitments

We have entered into property rental commitmenth third parties also have lease arrangementsredhect to
company cars and office equipment. Minimum paymantier the property rental agreements are as fellow

2,084
1,199
915
923
600
713

$6,434

Legal proceedings

VASP litigation

We leased 13 aircraft and three spare enginesagddi Area de Sado Paulo, or VASP, a Brazilian airlinel 982,
VASP defaulted on its lease obligations and we centad litigation against VASP to repossess ourafirdn 1992, we
obtained a preliminary injunction for the reposgmsand export of 13 aircraft and three spare exggfrom VASP. We
repossessed and exported the aircraft and engiri29P. VASP appealed this decision. In 1996, tighlCourt of the State
of Sao Paulo ruled in favor of VASP on its app®éé were instructed to return the aircraft and eagito VASP for lease
under the terms of the original lease agreemefs.High Court also granted VASP the right to semkalges in lieu of the
return of the aircraft and engines. Since 1996 aweelpursued this case in the Brazilian courts tjinotarious motions and
appeals. On March 1, 2006, the Superior Court stickidismissed our most recent appeal and on Bp2D06 a special
panel of the Superior Court of Justice confirmeal $uperior Court of Justice decision. On May 1%62@e appealed this
decision to the Federal Supreme Court. In Septe2®@9® the Federal Supreme Court of Justice prasioier the case
ordered an opinion on our appeal from the offic¢éhef Attorney General. This opinion was provide®itober 2009. The
Attorney General recommends that the extraordiappeal should be accepted for trial and that tee eauld be subjected
to a new judgment, before the Superior Court ofideisThe Federal Supreme Court is not bound byieion of the
Attorney General. However, our external legal c@linsformed us that it would be normal practicdake this opinion into
consideration. There are no assurances though il Federal Supreme court would rule in accareavith the
Attorney General opinion or, if it did, what thetoome of the judgment of the Superior Court ofidesivould be.

On February 23, 2006, VASP commenced a procedurthdocalculation of the award for damages andesihen
both we and VASP have appointed experts to assstdurt in calculating damages. Our external legahsel has advised
us that even if we lose on the merits, they dobedieve that VASP will be able to demonstrate aapdges. We continue to
actively pursue all courses of action that may\aelable to us and intend to defend our positiagovously.

In July 2006, we commenced a claim for damagekedrEnglish courts against VASP based on the damages
incurred as a result of the default by VASP un@éses lease obligations where the leases were geddm English law.
VASP was served process in Brazil in October 20@i¥ia response has filed an application to chakethg jurisdiction of
the English court which we will oppose. VASP haplagul to the Court to adjourn the date for the gpof its application
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to challenge the jurisdiction of the English Cauending the sale of some of it's assets in Br&¥#. have opposed this
application and by an order dated March 6, 200&thglish court dismissed VASP’s applications. Ipteenber 2008 the
bankruptcy court in Brazil ordered the bankruptEy/ASP. VASP has appealed this decision. In Decer@be8, we filed
with the English court an application for defaultijgment for loss of profits plus accrued interestar seven lease
agreements. On March 16, 2009 we obtained a dgtalgtment in which we have been awarded a claiappfoximately
$40.0 million for loss of profit plus accrued irgst under seven lease agreements. In order tadhtaiaward, we will need
to begin enforcement proceedings in Brazil agai#ssP, which is currently in bankruptcy. We cannivegany assurance as
to the outcome of this claim.

In addition to the claim in the English courts wavé also commenced proceedings in the Irish cagadmst VASP
based on the damages we incurred as a result defaelt of VASP under nine lease obligations whbeeleases were
governed by Irish law. The Irish courts have grdraa order for service of process, however VAS&uisently opposing
this service of process in Brazil. The Braziliarp8tior Court of Justice ruled that service of psscen VASP has been
completed, however VASP have appealed that dec@sidmpending the outcome of that appeal we cana&eran
application to the Irish courts.

Our management, based on the advice of exterrall teginsel, has determined that it is not necegsamake any
provision for this litigation because we do notiket the outcome of this case will have a matefi@ct on our consolidated
financial condition, results of operations or célslvs.

Transbrasil litigation

In the early 1990's, two AerCap-related comparties ‘(AerCap Lessors") leased an aircraft and twgres to
Transbrasil S/A Linhas Areas (“Transbrasil”), a nd@funct Brazilian airline. By 1998, Transbrasitigefaulted on various
obligations under its leases with AerCap, alondhwiher leases it had entered into with GeneradtEteCapital
Corporation (“GECC") and certain of its affiliat€$E affiliates” and collectively with GECC, the E5Lessors"). GECAS
was the servicer for all these leases at the tBubsequently, Transbrasil issued promissory notes'Notes") to the
AerCap lessors and GE Lessors (collectively thessbes") in connection with restructurings of thaskes. Transbrasil
defaulted on the Notes and GECC brought an enfazneaction on behalf of the Lessors in 2001. Cameeuly, GECC filed
an action for the involuntary bankruptcy of Trarastik.

Transbrasil brought a lawsuit against the Lessofebruary 2001, claiming that the Notes had ih l@en paid at
the time GECC brought the enforcement action. d72@he trial judge ruled in favor of Transbra$ihat decision was
appealed. In April 2010, the appellate court piidisa judgment (the “2010 Judgment”) rejectingltbesors' appeal,
ordering them to pay Transbrasil a statutory pgredfual to double the face amount of the Notess(piterest and monetary
adjustments), and awarding Transbrasil damagemTpiosses incurred as a result of its bankrupitbg. 2010 Judgment
provided that the amount of such losses would brilzded in separate proceedings in the trial cdordune 2010, the
AerCap Lessors and the GE Lessors separately Siledial appeals before a federal appeals conairil. These special
appeals have since been admitted for hearing. Ags@razilian counsel believes AerCap’s specialegbjis well-grounded
and has a reasonable chance of success. In July PHnsbrasil sued for provisional enforcemerthef2010 Judgment and
submitted its alleged calculation of the statuteeyalty which, according to Transbrasil, amountedpgproximately $210
million in the aggregate with interest and monetjustments. The 2010 Judgment did not deterrhitheie was joint and
several liability among the Lessors. AerCap congethdt, based on its interest in the Notes, itpqutionate share of any
statutory penalty is approximately seven perceatCap filed a motion opposing provisional enforcatred the 2010
judgment, arguing, among other things, that Trassibs calculations are incorrect and that it taitbfl to differentiate
among the amounts owed by each defendant. Thesmangs, and the question of whether the AerCapdredmve any
liability to TransBrasil will be determined in othproceedings. Transbrasil also initiated procegslio determine the
amount for which each of the Lessors is allegeidlylé as a result of the Transbrasil bankruptcye @burt appointed an
expert to determine this amount and the AerCapdrssappointed an assistant expert. We believe we $imong arguments
to convince the expert and the court that the ApriGessors are not liable for any damages as at r@stitansbrasil’s
bankruptcy because, among other reasons, it wak@dterCap Lessors, but GECC alone, who broughinboluntary
bankruptcy action against Transbrasil.

Our management, based on the facts and the advicagesnal legal counsel, has determined that isyeoessary
to make any provision for this litigation because @o not believe the outcome of this case will haveaterial effect on our
consolidated financial condition, results of opienad or cash flows.
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26. Fair values of financial instruments

The fair value of a financial instrument as the amat which the instrument could be exchangedduoreent
transaction between willing parties, other thaa fiorced or liquidation sale. Fair values of fin@hinstruments have been
determined with reference to available market imfation. However, considerable management judgnsengtgjuired in
interpreting market data to arrive at estimatefaifvalues. Accordingly, the estimates presenteim may not be
indicative of the amounts that we could realize icurrent market exchange. The carrying amountsaindalues of our
most significant financial instruments at Decen®®r2010 and 2011 are as follows:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Book value Fair value Book value Fair value

Assets
ReStHCtEd CASN......cooiiiiieiett e e e $222,464 $222,464 $237,325 $237,325
Derivative assets 55,211 55,211 21,050 21,050
Cash and cash equivalents ............cc.uvvecccceeeiiiiiiiiieieeeeee, 404,450 404,450 411,081 411,081

$682,125 $682,125 $669,456 $669,456
Liabilities
(D)1= o) TSRS $6,414,162 $6,177,381 $5,962,490 $5,710,399
Derivative liabilitieS........cooeeiiiiiiiiiicce e, 55,769 55,769 27,159 27,159

$6,621,932  $6,233,150 $6,138,324  $5,737,558

27. Directors’ remuneration

Our remuneration policy for Non-Executive and exaeudirectors can be found in our Remunerationdyol
(available on our website) and in the Remunera®eport 2011 included in this Annual Report. Thdddielow indicates
the total remuneration paid to or earned by theqres who are Non-Executive directors as per DeceBihe011:

Directors fee
(EUR *1,000)

M. P KOMEWEG ...ttt ettt 205.0
MI. M. JONKNAI ... ..o 173.0
MI. J. CRAPMEN .. e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 136.2
Y = B - Tl =Y OO 116.0
Y Y IR e - To o] o EO OO PPPOPPURRRRRR 116.3
M R WAIAEN ...t s e bt eeaeaeeeeens 124.2
YT T ] 1 (o] o PSR 94.0
Mr. S.R. AINOGIMI ..o 75.0
Mr. H.A. Al SHEMIMATT ..ot veevbmmne e e e e e eeeees 57.6
Total 1,097.3

We paid Mr. Kelly, our only executive director achief executive officer, an annual base salaryl@RE00.0 and
we accrued for the payment of an annual bonus d#430.0. In addition to the remuneration above, K&lly received
contributions to his defined benefit plan and otl@ployment benefits such as health insurance @odnpany car
allowance which were not material to his total rexemation in 2011.

In March 2012, the Board of Directors approvedramaase in the compensation package of the exeatitiector
including an annual grant of AER restricted sharisu

We paid Mr. Heinemann, our former chief executiffecer (until after the AGM in May 2011), a basdeasg of
EUR156.0, a bonus of EUR400.0 and a severance payh&UR1,689.9. In addition to the remuneratibowe, Mr.
Heinemann received contributions to his definedcefieplan and other employment benefits such atthesurance and a
company car allowance which were not material ottiial remuneration in 2011.
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The table below shows Directors’ equity interesthi@ Company as of December 31, 2011. As regandtyeq
awards granted under the Bermuda Parent planhtire siumbers in the table represent the equivalember of our shares
into which the Bermuda Parent shares and sharenspéire exercisable.

Cerberus AerCap
Fund Holdings N.V.
Options(1) Options/Shares/Restricted Share Units
Ordinary
shares
acquired
through  Ordinary  Ordinary
Ordinary exercise shares shares
shares of acquired acquired
underlying Ordinary Cerberus  through through Fully
vested, but shares Restricted  Fund  conversion  open Diluted
unexercised underlying share  exchange of Genesis market Ownership
options(2)(3) options(4) units (9) _right(8)  shares (9) purchases Percentage(5)
Directors:
Salem Al Noaimi — 2,151 — — — — *
Homaid Al Shemmari — — — — — — *
James N. Chapman 55,300 3,925 — — — 3,000 *
Paul T. Dacier — 3,925 — — 2,609 7,500 *
Michael Gradon — 3,925 — — 2,609 — *
Aengus Kelly(7) 122,015 625,000 500,000 252,791 — 12,000 *
Pieter Korteweg — 7,850 — 27,230 — — *
Marius J. L. Jonkhart 27,734 3,925 — — — 15,000 *
Gerald P. Strong(6) — 3,925 — — — — *
Robert G. Warden(6) — 3,925 — — — — *

* Less than 1.0%.

Q) Shareholdings reflect indirect beneficial owsteép of AerCap Holdings N.V. held through ownersbfpestricted
ordinary shares or options issued by the Cerbeunsl$-to acquire ordinary shares of the Cerberug$-an
ordinary shares of AerCap Holdings N.V. owned kg @erberus Funds on a fully-diluted basis, assuithiag
vesting and exercise of all outstanding share aptio

(2 All options outstanding expire on June 30, 2015

3) The exercise price of these options is equitale $7.00 per ordinary share.

4) 21,287 options expire on December 31, 2020cang a strike price of $14.12 per option; 23,668ans expire on

(%)

(6)

(7)
(8)
(9)

December 31, 2021 and carry a strike price of $pet option; the remaining 625,000 options corwif50,000
options that expire on December 11, 2018 with iesprice of $2.95 per option and 375,000 optidra £xpire on
September 13, 2017 with a strike price of $24.63.

Percentage amount assumes the exercise bystsins of all options to acquire shares exerasatihin 60 days
and no exercise of options by any other person.

Mr. Warden is a Managing Director of Cerberwapital Management, L.P. and Mr. Strong is Manadiirgctors of
affiliates of Cerberus Capital Management, L.P.

Mr. Kelly is both a member of our Board of Oiters and our Chief Executive Officer.
After disposal of shares to satisfy personabine tax, as applicable.

Acquired through conversion of ADR’s in Gendstasing Limited into the Company’s ordinary shares
connection with the amalgamation with Genesis ondi&5, 2010.

All of our ordinary shares have the same votingtsgThe address for all our officers and directerdo AerCap

Holdings N.V., AerCap House, Stationsplein 965,7LCE Schiphol, The Netherlands.
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28. Subsidiary undertakings

The subsidiaries which are taken up in the conatdidi financial statements are direct and indiresiliaries

100% owned, unless otherwise stated.

The Netherlands

AerCap AerVenture Holding B.V.
AerCap B.V.

AerCap Group Services B.V.

AerCap Dutch Aircraft Leasing | B.V.
AerCap Dutch Aircraft Leasing IV B.V.
AerCap A330 Holdings B.V.

AerData B.V. (42%)

AerCap Leasing XIII B.V.

AerCap Leasing XIV B.V.

AerCap Leasing XVI B.V.

AerCap Leasing XXIX B.V.

AerCap Dutch Aircraft Leasing VII B.V.
AerCap Leasing XXX B.V.

AerCap Netherlands B.V.

AerCap Dutch Aircraft Leasing VIII B.V.
AMS AerCap B.V.

AerCap Funding | B.V.

AerCap Funding Il B.V.

Clearstream Aircraft Leasing B.V.
GFL Aircraft Leasing Netherlands B.V.

Ireland

AerCap Irish Aircraft Leasing 1 Limited
AerCap Celtavia 4 Limited

AerCap Celtavia 5 Limited

AerCap Celtavia 6 Limited

AerCap Administrative Services Limited
AerCap Cash Manager Limited

AerCap Cash Manager Il Limited

AerCap Financial Services (Ireland) Limited
AerCap Fokker Limited

AerCap Ireland Limited

Air Maple Limited (in liquidation)

GPA Group Limited

GPA Aero Citra Limited (In Liquidation)
AerFi Group Limited

Irish Aerospace Limited (in liquidation)
AerCap Jetprop Limited (in liquidation)
Skyscape Limited

Sunflower Aircraft Leasing Limited

Jasmine Aircraft Leasing Limited

Jasper Aircraft Leasing Limited

AerCap A330 Limited

AerCap Engine Leasing Limited

Rosso Aircraft Leasing Limited

Azzurro Aircraft Leasing Limited

AerCap Partners 2 Holding Limited and subsidia§o)
AerCap Partners | Holding Limited and Subsidia(&3%)

AerCap Note Purchaser Limited

Sweden
AerFi Sverige AB
Genesis Funding Sweden 1 AB

France
Lille LocatioS.A.R.L
Metz Location S.A.R.L.
Toulouse Location S.A.R.L.
Biarritz Location S.A.R.L.
Nice Location S.A.R.L.
Genesis Funding FranceA.B.L.
Genesis Funding France2.B.L.

U.K
AerCap UK Limited

Norway
Genesis Funding Norway 1 A/S
GLS Norway Alpha A/S

Ireland
AerCap A3Bldings Limited
AerCap A330 Ireland Liedt
AerCap Partners 3 Holdimgited and Subsidiaries (50%)
Stellastream Aircraft ke Limited
Surestreamcraft Leasing Limited
Leostream Aircraft limgd imited
Geministream Airttafasing Limited
Peornscraft Holdings Limited
Peony Aircraft Leasing Lindte
Triple Eight Aircraft Holdys Limited
Triple Eight Atraft Leasing Limited
Librastream Aircraft Leasing Limited
Streamlifércraft Leasing Limited
Virgostream Aircraft Leasing Limited
AerCap Hoilg & Finance Limited
AerCap et Asset Investment 1 Limited
AerCap Ireland Asset Investment 2 Limited
AerCap Irelandreling 1 Limited
AerVenture Explogasing Limited
Andes Aircraft lsggy Limited
Harmonic Aircraft Leasing Lirad
Upstream Aircraft &ieg Limited
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Ireland

Lishui Aircraft Leasing Limited

Berlin Aircraft Leasing Limited

Pirlo Aircraft Leasing Limited

Jade Aircraft Leasing Limited
AerVenture Limited (and subsidiaries)

Ireland
Mainstream Aircrdfeasing Limited
Rouge Aircraft Laag Limited
Symphonic Aircrafteasing Limited
Genesis Ireland AgiatTrading 1 Limited
Genesis hidlaviation Trading 2 Limited

AerDragon Aviation Partners Limited and Subsidisui25%) Genesis Ireland Aviation Trading 3 Limited

Castletroy Leasing Limited

SkyFunding Limited

SkyFunding MSN 31133 Limited
Polyphonic Aircraft Leasing Limited
Burgundy Aircraft Leasing Limited
Melodic Aircraft Leasing Limited

Next Generation Aircraft Leasing Limited
AerCap Irish Aircraft Leasing 1 Limited
AerCap Asset Finance Limited

Bermuda

AerCap (Bermuda) No.3 Limited

AerCap Holdings (Bermuda) Limited

LC Bermuda No. 2 Limited

LC Bermuda No. 2 L.P.

AerCap Bermuda A330 Limited

Flotlease 973 (Bermuda) Limited
AerFunding 1 Limited and subsidiaries (5%)
AerCap International Bermuda Limited
Copperstream Aircraft Leasing Limited
Goldstream Aircraft Leasing Limited
Silverstream Aircraft Leasing Limited
Wahaflot Leasing 3699 (Bermuda) Limited
Whitestream Aircraft Leasing Limited
Ararat Aircraft Leasing Limited

Genesis Funding Limited

Genesis China Leasing 1 Limited

Genesis China Leasing 2 Limited

Genesis Funding Atlantic 1 Limited
Genesis Acquisition Atlantic 1 Limited
Genesis Acquisition Limited

Genesis Atlantic 1 Limited

Genesis Portfolio Funding | Limited

GLS Atlantic Alpha Limited

Lare Leasing Limited

Roselawn Leasing Limited

Ross Leasing Limited

Westpark 1 Aircraft Leasing Limited
Aircraft Lease Securitisation Il Ltd. and subsi@ar(5%
owned by AerCap Ireland Limited.)

Genesis Ireland Aviatiomding 4 Limited
Flotlease MSN 973 Limited

Danang Aircraft Leaglimited

Danang Aircragasing No 2 Limited

Fansipan Aircrafmited

AerVenture Leasidd imited

Cayman Islands

AerCap HK-320-A Limited
AerCap HK-320Q-Bnited
AerCap HK-320-C Limited
AerCap Aircraft Purchase ltédi

us
AerCapup Services ,Inc
AerCap, Inc.
AerCap LegdiiSA I, Inc
AerCap LeaslgA Il, Inc
Genesis LegsiUSA Inc.

Isle of Man
AerCap International (IOMthited
AerCap Holding (MQ Limited
Acorn Aviation Lieal
Crescent Aviatldmited
Stallion Aation Limited
AerCap Note Purcha$®M) Limited
AerlLift Leasing Jet Liedl (50%)
AerlLift Leasihgmited and susidiaries (40%)

Jersey
AerCap Jet Limited
Aircraft Lease Securitisation Ltd. and subsidia(®$8%)

Cyprus
Wahaflot Leasing 3 Limited
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Company Financial Statements
AerCap Holdings N.V.
Company Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2010 and 2011 (after proposedafit appropriation)

December 31,

2010 1) (2) 2011

(US dollars in thousands except share and
per share amounts)

Assets Note
Cash and cash equIValENES ............covieceeeceeee e $705 $173,839
ReStHCtEd CASN......eiiie e e 1,283 —
INVESTMENTS ...ttt e e e e beemm e e e 30 2,786,583 2,651,840
@1 g 1=T g 11T =Y TSR 2,097 6,654
TOAl ASSELS ...ttt ettt e $2,790,668 $2,832,333
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Accrued expenses and other liabilities.......ccceevvereicerie i, $6,288 $6,226
Payable t0 SUDSIAIAIY ........cooviiiiiiiimmemm e 427,016 421,304
Negative goOdWIll .........ccceviiiiii e 31 102,419 83,882
Total Liabilities. .......ooieie et 535,723 511,412
Ordinary share capital, €0.01 par value (250,00D@@dinary shares

authorized, 149,232,426 ordinary shares issuedatsanding............. 1,570 1,570
Additional paid-in capital .........coocviiiiceeeee e 1,474,008 1,474,008
REVAIUALION FESEIVES ..ottt st 5,005 (8,513)
Treasury stock (9,332,982 ordinary shares) ........ccoccoeeeivmmmeeeeieeeennens, — (100,000)
Accumulated retained €arnings ............coueecmeeerreereeeniee e smeemnees 774,362 953,856
Total Shareholders’ EQUILY..........coouiiiiiiiiiiieciee e 32 2,254,945 2,320,921
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ EqQUItY........cccocceieeriieniimmee e $2,790,668 $2,832,333

(1) Certain reclassifications have been made to pearsl Company Balance Sheets to reflect the cuyesant presentation.

(2) In accordance with RJ240.210, we made a reclaasdit of $103,161 from additional paid-in capitakétained earnings relating to share-based

compensation.

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtheadensed financial statements.

68



Company Financial Statements
AerCap Holdings N.V.
Condensed Income Statements
For Year Ended December 31, 2010 and 2011

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2010 December 31, 2011
Note
Result from participation after taxation.......ccecccecveveeee. 30 $176,97 $148,77
Other income and expenses after taxation..................... 18,43¢ 23,53’
NetInCome . ...t $195,40i $172,31.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed financial statements.
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29. Summary of significant accounting policies
General

The company financial statements have been prefragztordance with the statutory provisions oftBaBook 2,
of the Netherlands Civil Code and the firm pronements in the Guidelines for Annual Reporting i& letherlands as

issued by the Dutch Accounting Standards Board.

The principles of valuation and determination afuléfor AerCap Holdings N.V. and the consolidafiedncial
statements are the same. For these principlesfesetoethe consolidated financials statements.

The financial statements of the Company are pteddn accordance with accounting principles gdheazcepted
in the Netherlands. The income statement is preddantaccordance with Part 9, Book 2, Art 402 ef Hetherlands Civil
Code.

Investments

Investments consist of investments in subsidiafiee. majority participating interests (direct andirect) in which
the AerCap Holdings N.V. is able to exercise cdrdre stated in principle at net asset value. Téieasset value of majority
participating interests is determined in accordamitie the principles underlying these consoliddiaencial statements.

30. Investments

The movement in investments can be summarizeollag/s:

Total
Balance as of JANUAry 1, 2010 ..........coieeeiieeiieeitee e ctre st ee e e s re e st s ememmesbe e saaeesaeeesmmesnreesbeeesreeenreea $1,530,359
IMOVEIMENLES ...t e ettt e e e ettt e e e e emmmmm s e e e e e e et e e e e s e e e e s e e e e e s
Share-based COMPENSALION ...........oce .t e e teeeeatee e et e e ateeeaasbeesameeaeeesbeee s asmseeaesnbeeesasseessnseeeen: 2,842
INVESTMENLS IN SUDSIAIANES ... ettt ettt e emee e e e s ne e e e eneee e amneen, 1,076,408
RESUIL Of SUDSIHIANES ... ettt e reeme e e et e e ea e e e e be e e e enbe e e e nee e e anees 176,974
Balance as of DeCemMBDEr 31, 2010 ......... ... oomeeeeeee ittt e e e eeitteeeeeeseatbeeeeemmmmesreeeeeeseaesees e e e nrreeeens $2,786,583

Total
Balance as of JANUArY 1, 2011 .........cooiieeeiiee e cciee ettt et e sttt ememme st e e sate e stee e smmesnreesbeeesbeeenraea $2,786,583
Y o)L= g 1T o] PP PP RPN
Share-based compensation 7,180
Dividend..........cccooiiiiiiee e (290,700)
RESUIL Of SUDSIHIANES ... ettt ettt e e ea e e e e bt e e e enbe e e e neeeesnees 148,777
Balance as of DEeCemMDBDEr 31, 2011 ............umoeeeeeee ettt eeeeeitte e e e e s eatbe e e e emmmmmasteeeeeeseaasees e e e nrreeeens $2,651,840
31. Negative goodwill

The movement in negative goodwill can be summadrazefollows:

Total
Balance as of JANUAIY 1, 2000 .......cooiiioiiiieie ettt s eeamme et e et e e nr e e ennee s $115,853
IMIOVEIMENLES ...ttt ettt ettt e e e e ettt et e e e 2 e as bt s £mmmmm s s sk e e £ e e e e e bt et e e e e e s e e e e e e ennnbeeaaens
Release to the INCOME SLALEMENL............commeeeeeiieeeeiii e e eeesseessmmmreeeeeeeessees s e sssssssssrannes (13,434)
Balance as of DECEMDET 31, 2010 ...........uvvmmmmmreeeeeeeiitrrereeeeeitreeeeesiaissreeessmmmnessessesssassssesmmmesesnsresesens $102,419
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Total

Balance as of JANUArY 1, 2011 .........cooiieeeieeiie e ciee ettt et eemrmme st esaae e stee e smme e nreesbeeesbeeeareea $102,419

IMOVEIMENLES ...t ettt e e e ettt e e e s s emmmmm s e et e s e e e e e e s e e e e s e e e e e

Release to the income statement............. (18,537)

Balance as of December 31, 2011 $83,882

32. Shareholders’ Equity

The movement in shareholders’ equity can be sunzethas follows:
Additional Retained  Treasury Total
Number of Share paid-in (loss) stock Revaluation shareholders’
Shares capital capital earnings reserves equity
(US dollars in thousands, except share amounts)

Year ended December 31, 2010
Balance at January 1, 2010.................. 85,036,957 $699 $686,334 $577,877 $— $— 1,264,910
Share-based compensation................. — — — 2,842 — — 2,842
Issuance of equity capital..................... 64,195,469 871 784,832 _ _ _ 785,703
Purchase of minority interests (1)........ — — — (995) — — (995)
Sale to joint venture partner.................. — — — 2,072 — — 2,072
Comprehensive income:

Net change in fair value of derivatives,

net of $715 taxX (2)...ceeveeeereveeiiee e — — — — — 5,005 5,005

Net income for the period................... — — — 195,408 — — 195,408

Comprehensive income..................... — — — 195,408 — 5,005 200,413
Balance at December 31, 2010............ 149,232,426 $1,570 $1,471,166 $777,204 $— $5,005 $2,254,945
Year ended December 31, 2011
Balance at January 1, 2011................. 149,232,426 $1,570 $1,471,166 $777,204 $— $5,005 $2,254,945
Share-based compensatian................. — — — 7,180 — — 7,180
Purchase of treasury stock................... — — — —  (100,000) — (100,000)
Comprehensive income:

Net change in fair value of derivatives,

net of $1,913 tax (2).....ccccveveeviivvnnnnn. — — — - — (13,518) (13,518)

Net income for the periad.................. — — — 172,314 — — 172,314

Comprehensive income.................... — — — 172,314 — (13,518) 158,796
Balance at December 31, 2011............ 149,232,426 $1,570 $1,471,166 $956,698 $(100,000) $(8,513) $2,320,921

(1) In November 2010, we repurchased Waha's 50% eqiityest in AerVenture (Note 1). The purchase toaoted for as an equity transaction and no
gain or loss was recognized but decreased sharrsbuity by $995, through the elimination of tetated minority interest.

(2) In 2010 and 2011 we entered into interest rate sv@pwhich we achieved cash flow hedge accourttisgtment. During 2011 and 2010 no amounts

were reclassified from revaluation reserves tartheme statement.

33. Employees

AerCap Holdings N.V. had 30 employees at DecemheRB11 (2010: 12 employees). The disclosure oadirs'

remuneration is included in note 27.
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34. Audit fees

The following audit fees were expensed in the ine@tatement in the reporting period:

2010

(U.S. dollars in thousands)

Audit of the financial statements............coceeereeiiiieeiereerennnnn. $1,967
Other audit related SErviCes ..........covvvveemmmeeeiieeeeeeee e, —
LI Y 1= VA (o1 —

0] = F R $1,967

The fees listed above relate only to the procedapgdied to the Company and its consolidated gentjties by
accounting firms and external auditors as refetodd Section 1(1) of the Dutch Accounting Firmse®sight Act (Dutch
acronym: Wta). The total audit fees include an amadi $1,617 and $1,163, charged by Pricewatert@ospers

Accountants N.V., for the years ended DecembeRB10Q and 2011, respectively.

35. Fiscal unity

The company forms a fiscal unity for corporate imeotax and turnover tax purposes with AerCap B.Nd&f the

Tax Collection Act, the company is jointly and seally liable for the taxes payable by the groupe Téx expense
recognized in the financial statement of AerCap.Ba/subsidiary, is based on its profit for finaheeporting purposes.
AerCap Holdings N.V. settles its intercompany ba&mwith AerCap B.V. based on the subsidiary'sifiaf financial

reporting purposes.

36. Declaration of liability

AerCap Holdings N.V. has issued a declarationaifility as referred to in Article 403 of the Netlards Civil

Code in respect of a significant number of its Dutabsidiaries.

Amsterdam, March 23, 2012

Pieter Korteweg

Aengus Kelly

Salem Al Noaimi

Homaid Al Shemmari
James (Jim) Chapman
Paul Dacier

Richard (Michael) Gradon
Marius Jonkhart

Gerald (Liam) Strong
Robert (Bob) Warden

AerCap Holdings N.V.
AerCap House
Stationsplein 965
1117 CE Schiphol
The Netherlands
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Other information
37. Subsequent events

In 2012, we took delivery of additional four Amean Airlines aircraft of the remaining 31 aircras of March 23,
2012, eight of the 35 aircraft have been finanaadlen the Skyfunding facility.

In 2012, we terminated the leases of three A3&9aft and one A321 aircraft with one of our lessdéngfisher
Airlines.

In 2012, we have been assigned an investment gagerate credit rating of BBB- with a stable ool by
Standard and Poor's Ratings Services.

38. Profit appropriation

According to article 26 of the Articles of Assodmat, the Board of Directors determines which amedrdam the
Company’s annual profits are reserved. The Boafdictors has determined that the entire 2011itgrehall be reserved
and that no profits shall be distributed as divitieto the shareholders. Thus, the result for tiae gaded December 31,
2011 a gain of $172.3 million, will be includedthre retained earnings.
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Independent auditor's report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of AprBaldings N.V.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statés2011 as set out on pages 24 to 72 of AerCapihidN.V.,
Amsterdam, which comprise the consolidated and emyalance sheet as at 31 December 2011, theliclatsd and
company profit and loss account for the year theded and the notes, comprising a summary of acit@upblicies and
other explanatory information.

Board of Directors’ responsibility

The board of directors are responsible for the gn&jon and fair presentation of these financiaeshents and for the
preparation of the directors’ report, both in acizerce with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Co#&erthermore, the board
of directors are responsible for such internal @ras it determines is necessary to enable theapagion of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatermérdther due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hiisancial statements based on our audit. We agedwur audit in
accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch 8tnds on Auditing. This requires that we complyhvéthical
requirements and plan and perform the audit toiolb&msonable assurance about whether the finasteii@ments are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidibevidence about the amounts and disclosuréifinancial
statements. The procedures selected depend ondfters judgment, including the assessment ofritkes of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whethertd fraud or error. In making those risk assesssn¢he auditor
considers internal control relevant to the compsamyeparation and fair presentation of the findrat@ements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate icitbteamstances, but not for the purpose of expngsah opinion on the
effectiveness of the company'’s internal control.gmit also includes evaluating the appropriatenésscounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimatés by the board of directors, as well as evimgdhe overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basisour audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give &tamd fair view of the financial position of AerCHpldings N.V. as at 31
December 2011, and of its result for the year #veated in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of thecB¢ivil Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Secti@92:sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, weehao deficiencies to
report as a result of our examination whether thectbrs’ report, to the extent we can assessbban prepared in
accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, whdther the information as required under Sectid392 sub 1 at b-h has
been annexed. Further we report that the directepsrt, to the extent we can assess, is consisidénthe financial
statements as required by Section 2: 391 subHeddutch Civil Code.

Amsterdam, 23 March 2011

PricewaterhouseCoopers Accountants N.V.

P.C. Dams RA
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